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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman) *
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Mr. Lo Kai Cheong
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson *
Dr. Zhang Wei *
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* non-executive director
* independent non-executive director

AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Chairman)
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
22/F., Kings Wing Plaza 1

3 On Kwan Street

Shek Mun

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

° Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

o Hang Seng Bank Limited

° Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited

o Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

° Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

° The Bank of East Asia, Limited

e  The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

SHARE REGISTRARS
e Hong Kong
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

e Cayman Islands
Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

LEGAL ADVISERS

e Hong Kong Law
King & Wood Mallesons
Reed Smith Richards Butler

e Cayman Islands Law
Maples and Calder

STOCK CODE
896 (ordinary shares)

WEBSITE

www.hanison.com

CORPORATE INFORMATION 2 &) & ¥}

FEEXIBE
5B

#AEDH

£

ZEH35E
RiInES —Hi2218

£ By
EE - BER S F 1T

EEEX&
EISRAT (BB)BRAF
o EERTHRAA
o REIITERT (M) BRAF

o LEBERTARAF

o EBITR{T(HFB)AERLA
o RDRTARAF

e BBLBEZRITARAA

&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂf
& &
BEEHREFLEETLERLA
EBET
ERAER1835%
AP NTME

e HEHE
Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

R
e FEZRE
SHRAERA

BREERAREMT

e HEHEZLE
BEEEMEBAR

B {7 X8R
896 (LM 17)

L

www.hanison.com

LIS e AT PR A W] 2018/2019 4E 3 03



GROUP STRUCTURE
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Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
S 5 Al

REVENUE & PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV St

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
I am pleased to present to our shareholders the results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “Hanison”) for the year ended 31 March
2019.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded
revenue from continuing operations of HK$1,948.1
million, representing a year-on-year decline of 19.9%
from HK$2,432.4 million (restated) recorded in the
previous financial year which are mainly resulted from
the decline in revenue from the Construction Division
and Property Development Division. Consolidated profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$578.0 million (2018: HK$616.3 million), a decrease of
6.2% over the profit attained last year. The decline was
mainly attributable to the decrease in contributions from
the Building Materials Division as a result of the drop in
revenue and lower gross profit ratio, coupled with the
legal and professional fees incurred in relation to the
spin-off and separate listing of the Company’s aluminium
windows, doors and curtain walls business, through
Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (“Million
Hope").

The basic earnings per share and diluted earnings
per share for continuing and discontinued operations
for the year were HK55.7 cents and HK54.9 cents,
representing decreases of 10.7% and 9.6% respectively
when compared with HK62.4 cents and HK60.7 cents
respectively last year.

As at 31 March 2019, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$3,779.4 million (2018: HK$3,725.7
million), representing an increase of 1.4% over last
year. Net asset value per share as at 31 March 2019 was
HK$3.46 (2018: HK$3.56).
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DIVIDEND

On 22 February 2019, the Company declared a special
interim dividend by distribution in specie of all shares
in Million Hope, representing the entire issued shares
of Million Hope. The distribution was made by way of
allocating 2 Million Hope shares for every 5 shares of
the Company held by the shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on
12 March 2019. The relevant share certificates of Million
Hope were despatched to the Company’s shareholders
on 18 March 2019. The aggregate amount of this special
interim dividend was approximately HK$500.0 million.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per share in cash for the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: HK5.0 cents per share) to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 5 September 2019. This, together with an
interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share (2018: HK2.2
cents per share) in cash distributed during the year, gives
a total cash dividend of HK7.5 cents per share for the
year (2018: HK7.2 cents per share). The proposed final
dividend will be paid on 17 September 2019 following
approval at the annual general meeting scheduled to be
held on 27 August 2019.

SPINOFF AND SEPARATE LISTING OF
MILLION HOPE

On 19 September 2018, Million Hope submitted a listing
application to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) for a separate listing on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange by way of introduction,
through a distribution in specie by the Company of the
entire issued share capital of Million Hope. The spin off
was subsequently completed on 19 March 2019 upon the
successful listing of Million Hope.

Subsequent to the separate listing of Million Hope,
Million Hope and its subsidiaries (the “Million Hope
Group”) ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company.
Million Hope Group is engaged in design, supply and
installation of facade and curtain wall systems, with a
focus on curtain walls, aluminium windows and doors.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT = Ji§ #it & &
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT 3 JiF #t f 3

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economy is weakening due to the ongoing
Chinese-US trade conflict. The problem will have a large
impact on China and US economy, as well as the future
global economic outlook. To face the challenges, China
has prioritised its aim in encouraging stronger domestic
consumption and services industry with the necessary
monetary, fiscal and employment support.

Hong Kong's economy will, to a great extent, be
influenced by the external economic and politic
headwinds. The unfavorable factors will not only affect
Hong Kong's exports and asset markets, but will also
dampen local investments and private consumption
sentiments. We will have a difficult year ahead and
taken together all the economic and politic uncertainties,
caution may seem like the best policy for companies,
investors, consumers, and even governments. But caution
carries its own costs: companies and countries that fail to
invest may well fall by the wayside. We are determined
to proactively explore our development opportunities
among such external environment.

HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Besides the successful spin-off and separate listing of
the Group’s design, supply and installation of facade
and curtain wall systems, with a focus on curtain walls,
aluminium windows and doors business on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 19 March 2019, this year
also marks the 30th anniversary for Hanison. While we
are celebrating this memorable year with our persistently
stable achievement of a net profit after tax of HK$578.0
million, we immediately commence to plan for the future
ahead, to take Hanison to greater heights.
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Recently we are experiencing severe competition in our
construction and renovation businesses and uncertainty
over our property development and property investment
businesses. Labour market in Hong Kong is likely to
continue to tighten, pushing up the wages, and thus
the costs of the construction and renovation businesses.
Our primary objective is to maintain a team of loyal
and competent workforce and to adopt new innovative
technologies to bring greater productivity to and deliver
higher quality for our products.

The downward adjustment of the Hong Kong property
price in last August has given some hope to the potential
property buyers to buy properties at a more affordable
level. These potential buyers will generally choose a
wait and see attitude, thus slowing down the property
market. We will seek this opportunity to acquire certain
high potential properties with relatively low and
affordable prices.

With regard to the Property Investment Division, we have
acquired properties, including Hollywood Hill in April
2018, The Connaught (in which the Group held 50%
interest) in November 2018 and Hay Nien Building in
May 2019 to strengthen our property portfolio. To realise
the gains on enhancement of property values, we have
disposed of certain units in the Shatin Industrial Centre
and Queen Central held by a joint venture with a private
investment fund, in which the Group has 40% interest.

With regard to the Property Development Division,
during the year under review, we have disposed of 9
residential units and 10 car parking spaces of Mount
Vienna, Fotan which is held by a joint venture with a
private investment fund in which the Group has 25%
interest. We have also disposed of Mee Wah Factory
Building to recognise a significant gain on disposal in
November 2018. The Group completed the acquisition of
Central Industrial Building, in which the Group has 50%
interest, in June 2018.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT = Ji§ #it & &
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PROSPECTS

Politic uncertainties are clouding the global economic
prospects and global growth is anticipated to slow to
2.9% in 2019. With the trade tensions remain unresolved,
international trade and investment are expected to be
softened.

In Hong Kong, the Government projected that our GDP
in 2019 will drop to between 2% to 3%, down from
last year's 3%. However, the low unemployment and
interest rates have provided strong support to Hong
Kong economy, especially the property market. We wiill
move forward with caution amidst this challenging and
uncertain environment.

APPRECIATION

Our employees have always been the strength and
backbone to our Group. Their commitment towards the
Group is the major factor which has brought us where
we are. We would never have been able to achieve this
successful journey without their loyalty, persistence and
efforts.

Trust is an important element that holds the relationships
between our Group and our business partners and
shareholders for the years that have passed. We look
forward to their continuing trust and support in future.

We anticipate that many more anniversaries, many more
success stories and many more achievements are yet to
come our way.

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman
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Public rental housing development
at Shek Mun Estate Phase 2, Shatin
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CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

The revenue for the Construction Division was
HK$1,621.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$2,037.9 million).

During the year, the Construction Division continued
to work on the projects on hand. The total amount
of contracts on hand as at 31 March 2019 for the
Construction Division amounted to HK$1,906.9 million.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Construction of public rental housing development
at Shek Mun Estate Phase 2, Shatin, New Territories

(2) Construction of public rental housing development
at Choi Yuen Road Sites 3 and 4, Sheung Shui, New
Territories

(3) Construction of sports centre, community hall and
football pitches in Area 1, Tai Po, New Territories

(4) Construction of a 30-classroom secondary school at
Site 1A-2, Kai Tak Development, Kowloon

30-classroom secondary school at Site 1A-2,
Kai Tak Development
MiEEREIA 218 2 — 300 E+H &
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Public rental housing development at
Choi Yuen Road Sites 3 and 4, Sheung Shui
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Sports centre, community hall and
football pitches in Area 1, Tai Po
AHEFIBEZBER HEFERERS

Awards

(1)

)

14

In May 2019, construction of sports centre,
community hall and football pitches in Area 1, Tai
Po under Hanison Construction Company Limited
("HCCL") was awarded the 25th Considerate
Contractors Site Award - Public Works — New
Works — Gold Awards and Merit in Outstanding
Environmental Management Award, co-organised
by the Development Bureau and Construction
Industry Council.

In April 2019, construction of public rental housing
development at Shek Mun Estate Phase 2, Shatin
under HCCL obtained Certification of Merits of
Construction Industry Category in the 2018 Hong
Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence.
This award recognized our commitment and
performance on environmental management which
was led by the Environmental Campaign Committee
co-organised by the Environmental Protection
Department and nine organisations.
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(3) In March 2019, construction of sports centre,
community hall and football pitches in Area 1,
Tai Po under HCCL obtained Building Site (Public
Sector) Category — Bronze Award and Outstanding
Performance in Work-at-height Safety Prize at
the Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme
2018/2019 organised by the Labour Department.

(4) In May 2018, construction of 30-classroom secondary
school at Kai Tak and construction of sports centre,
community hall and football pitches at Tai Po under
HCCL won the 24th Considerate Contractors Site
Award - Merit in Public Works — New Works and
Merit in Outstanding Environmental Management
& Performance Award, co-organised by the
Development Bureau and Construction Industry
Council.

Outlook

Despite the global market uncertainty, many
international companies continue to choose to establish
a presence in Hong Kong in order to gain access to the
Asian market. Hong Kong’s geographical proximity to
China, strong financial and banking expertise, low and
simple tax system, free trade, free flow of funds and
information are the characteristics that make Hong
Kong a world-class city for investment. The influx of
these international companies could lead to an increased
demand for office spaces, which in turn will benefit the
construction industry.
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Residential projects continued to be active in 2018 as
both the private and public sectors steadily built up
private and public housing supply to plug the city’s severe
housing gap. For residential property, Financial Secretary
Mr. Paul Chan Mo-po estimated that some 100,400 public
housing units will be completed in the next five years
and about 93,000 units of first-hand private residential
property in the next three to four years. The 2019-
20 land sale program comprises 15 residential sites,
including seven new sites, railway property development
projects, Urban Renewal Authority projects and private
development or redevelopment projects, with an
estimated capacity to generate a total of about 15,500
units. It shows the Hong Kong Government's efforts and
determination to solve the housing problem in Hong
Kong.

On the Hong Kong Government’s infrastructure works,
two mega projects, the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge
and Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link,
opened last year, and six more are on the way: the Sha
Tin-Central Link; Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link and Tuen
Mun Western Bypass; Lok Ma Chau Loop; West Kowloon
Cultural District; Kai Tak Development; as well as the
Kwu Tung North, Fanling North and Hung Shui Kiu new
development areas in the northern New Territories.
Taken together, the construction industry in Hong Kong
will be busy over the years ahead.

Despite the boom in the numbers of construction works,
an international survey released in 2018 listed Hong
Kong as the third most expensive place to build, after
New York and San Francisco. The survey indicates that the
average construction cost in Hong Kong was the highest
in Asia. The shortage in labour supply amid increasing
volume of construction works is a major factor driving up
construction costs.
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The labour shortage situation has also been further
worsened by ageing of the workers. As at June 2018,
42% or a total of 200,122 registered workers were at
and over the age of 50. This is a trend that will continue
into 2019 unless construction companies do something
to draw more people into the construction industry or
to use new innovative technologies that will require less
labour works at sites. To address the cost and labour
shortage challenges, Hong Kong Government has set up
a HK$1 billion Construction Innovation and Technology
Fund to help the industry equip more automation
technology, make use of pre-fabricated parts, and
adopt innovative construction methods such as building
information modeling to increase productivity.

Over the past few years, the Group has been
experiencing severe competitions in tendering for
building construction works. To stay competitive, we
have to focus on controlling our costs and improving
our overall efficiency. We have also to enhance safety
standards in the workplace and maintain a healthy
working environment for our workers.
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INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Interior and
Renovation Division recorded a revenue of HK$189.4
million, as compared with HK$168.9 million last year.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31 March
2019 for the Interior and Renovation Division amounted
to HK$79.5 million.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Building renovation works of Cavendish Heights
(Block 1-7) at 33 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout,
Hong Kong

(2) Alteration and addition works for 99-101 Lai Chi
Kok Road, Kowloon

(3) Proposed renovation works for Pentecostal Mission
Hong Kong and Kowloon Church at 71 Waterloo
Road, Kowloon

OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 %5 1] JgH
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Major Projects Awarded Subsequent to the
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2019

(1) Combined fitting out works for hotel and office
packages for proposed hotel and office building at
43 Heung Yip Road, Hong Kong

(2) Full reinstatement at 24/F — 26/F of Exchange Square
3, Central, Hong Kong

Awards

(1) In March 2019, building renovation works of
Cavendish Heights (Block 1-7) under Hanison
Interior & Renovation Limited (“HIRL") obtained
Certificates of Good Performance and Meritorious
Prize in Safety Teams Category under the
Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme
2018/2019 organised by the Labour Department.

(2) In October 2018, alteration and addition works
for Wan Chai Takan Lodge Project under HIRL
was awarded The Top Winner of Bronze Award of
Contractor in RMAA Works at the CIC Sustainable
Construction Award 2018. This award was organized
by the Construction Industry Council to recognize
our performance of corporate governance, supply
chain management and environmental protection.

(3) In May 2018, building renovation works of
Cavendish Heights (Block 1-7) under HIRL was
awarded the 24th Considerate Contractors Site
Award - Merit in Non-Public Works — RMAA
Works and Merit in Outstanding Environmental
Management & Performance Award, co-organised
by the Development Bureau and Construction
Industry Council.
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Outlook

The property market in Hong Kong has been busy during
the past few years. As one of the major downstream
markets, interior design and renovation market has also
been benefited. Apart from that, the renovation works
for other completed buildings remain robust as property
owners are more willing to renovate and upkeep their
properties to preserve or enhance their property value.
The Mandatory Building Inspection Scheme (MBI Scheme)
which demands for repairing works for ageing building;
the implementation of Urban Renewal Strategy (URS)
which is an approach to rejuvenate older urban areas by
way of redevelopment, rehabilitation, revitalization and
heritage preservation; as well as the Revitalization of
Industrial Buildings Scheme which encourages owners to
redevelop industrial buildings constructed before 1987
are also the major drivers supporting the continuous
growth of the interior design and renovation market.

The interior and renovation market in Hong Kong is
highly fragmented with approximately a thousand
companies offering interior design services and
renovation works. Competition has always been severe.
When it comes to choosing a design and renovation
company, generally the key considering factors for
customers include price, quality of services, timeline
of project and track record of the interior design and
renovation service providers. The customers’ expectations
are high. Hence a market player should possess strong
capability to offer innovative and unique design to
provide ideal conditions of comfortable and modern
living, and deliver satisfactory renovation works with top
quality and competitive prices to meet the customers’
requirements or even above their expectations.
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Similar to the ageing working force problem in the
construction industry, there is insufficient supply of
experienced and specialized workers for the interior
and renovation contractors in Hong Kong. Therefore
additional resources may be required to seek and
maintain experienced workers as well as qualified
subcontractors to undertake projects that demand high
quality and in a timely manner.

Our interior and renovation sector is facing severe
competition and increasing labour costs. Besides our
extensive experience and knowledge in the industry,
we have competitive advantages over our competitors
in that we have more advanced machineries and
equipment. Our mast-climbing tower platforms offer
benefits such as better ventilation and environmental
hygiene to customers during the renovation works.
Together with our proven track record in the industry, we
hope we can make a difference.

Moving forward, our main target remains the interior
and renovation works for the luxury residential buildings.
We will also attempt to bid for the interior and
renovation works for shopping centres, hotels and office
buildings.
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Design, supply and installation of suspended
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BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION

The Group's Building Materials Division specialises in
the supply and installation of interior products such
as different types of suspended ceiling system, metal
cladding system, demountable partition system, fire
related protection system, decorative moulding, raised
flooring and wood flooring.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the revenue of
the Building Materials Division was HK$93.2 million
compared with that of HK$76.7 million (restated) last
year.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31 March
2019 for the Building Materials Division amounted to
HK$57.7 million.

Major Projects Completed

(1) ASD Contract No. SS C502 for design and
construction of West Kowloon Government Offices
at Yau Ma Tei — Design, supply and installation of
external ceiling system
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Design, supply and installation of external ceiling system for
West Kowloon Government Offices at Yau Ma Tei
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Major Projects Undertaken

(M

()

3)

(4)

(5)

Construction of a 30-classroom Secondary School at
Site 1A-2, Kai Tak Development, Kowloon - Design,
supply and installation of suspended ceiling system

Museum Plus (M+) at West Kowloon Cultural
District — Supply and installation of metal ceiling
system

Proposed office development at 1 Hennessy Road,
Hong Kong — Supply and installation of suspended
ceiling system

Proposed residential development at Castle Peak
Road, Kwu Tung, New Territories Lot No.2640 in
D.D.92 - Supply and installation of suspended
ceiling system

Proposed Site C1 Development at Area 86, TKOTL
70RP Tseung Kwan O, New Territories, Lohas
Park Package 7A & B - Supply and installation of
suspended ceiling system
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(6)

Proposed residential & commercial development
at Yau Tong Lot No.42, 1 Lei Yue Mun Path, Lei
Yue Mun, Kowloon - Supply and installation of
suspended ceiling system, timber flooring and
skirting

Major Projects Awarded During the Financial
Year Ended 31 March 2019

(1

)

©)

(4)

Construction of Sports Centre, Community Hall and
Football Pitches in Area 1, Tai Po — Design, supply
and installation of suspended ceiling system and
hardwood sport flooring system

Proposed residential development at TMTL 500
Kwun Chui Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories —
Supply and installation of suspended ceiling system

Proposed redevelopment at No.3 Marble Road,
North Point — Supply and installation of external
ceiling system and aluminium louvre

Proposed residential redevelopment at No.23
Robinson Road, Hong Kong at Carpark — Supply and
installation of external ceiling system

Major Project Awarded Subsequent to the
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2019

(1

26

MTR SCL Contract No.1123 - Exhibition Station -
Design, supply and installation of suspended ceiling
system
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Outlook

The Building Materials Division has devoted in delivering
superior quality and fine installation works for ceiling
and flooring to clients. Over the years, its extensive
experience and knowledge in working with the MTR
has gained competitive advantages in bidding for
MTR stations’ ceiling and flooring works. It has also
undertaken the supply and installation works for ceiling
and flooring for different clients, such as museums,
residential properties, sports centres and community
halls.

The Building Materials Division believes that new ideas,
technology, and materials will ensure the continuing
growth and improvement of its business. It aims to
remain a prominent market player and offers only the
best to reach all its clients’ ideals, with the mindset,
persistence and commitment to provide excellent
products and services.
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Property Development
Division

Mount Vienna at Fo Tan, Shatin
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

The Property Development Division recorded no revenue
during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$73.1
million).

As for the joint venture project, Mount Vienna, the low
density residential project in Fo Tan, New Territories
in which the Group has 25% interest, the Group has
recorded the sales of 9 residential units and 10 car
parking spaces during the year. The profit was recognised
as share of profit of joint ventures. One more unit was
sold subsequent to the financial year end. The remaining
2 units are being offered for sales.

LUXEAST, the Group’s 49% interest in the parcel of
land situated at FEARKEMBENIEBE ™R X H
7l &= =81 (West of Wenyuan Road and South
of Houfutinggang, Haining, Zhejiang Province, the
People’s Republic of China) for the development and
construction of office, retail, car parking spaces and other
development pertaining to the land. The respective &
EFTEE (Building Ownership Certificates) have been
issued in March 2015. A total of 130 R EBEE 4 E (Sale
and Purchase Agreement for Commodity Flat) have been
signed up to the end of the reporting period in which
126 units had been delivered to customers.

In June 2018, a joint venture in which the Group has
50% interest acquired the Central Industrial Building,
located in Kwai Chung, New Territories for the property
redevelopment purpose. It is under design stage now and
we recently submitted a planning application for extra
gross floor area.
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In July 2018, the Group completed a series of acquisitions
from various vendors holding an industrial building,
namely Mee Wah Factory Building situated at No. 1 Tsat
Po Street and No. 19 Sam Chuk Street, San Po Kong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for an aggregate consideration of
HK$850.0 million for redevelopment. In August 2018, the
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of 100% interest in a subsidiary which indirectly
held Mee Wah Factory Building at a consideration of
HK$1,252.9 million. The disposal was completed on 15
November 2018.

For a piece of land at No. 57A Nga Tsin Wai Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon with the objective of
developing the property into a premium residential
project, lease modification for redevelopment has been
applied and is under processing.

For the pieces of agricultural land at Tong Yan San Tsuen
in Yuen Long, a land exchange application for residential
use was made in 2012 with the Lands Department. It is
expected that the offer of land premium will be issued
soon.

For the proposed residential development project with
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited at So Kwun Wat, Tuen
Mun, planning application to the Town Planning Board
was completed in the previous financial year. A land
exchange application to convert the land to residential
use will be made with the Lands Department in due
course.
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Outlook

The market headwinds, such as the China-US trade
conflict, a slowing Chinese economy resulting in fewer
PRC property buyers, the slide in the stock market and
the value of the Renminbi have caused the downward
adjustment of the Hong Kong property price in last
August, thus slowing down the property market a bit for
a short period of time as the potential buyers chose a
wait-and-see attitude.

The UBS Global Wealth Management claims that Hong
Kong market is one of the most overvalued and at great
risk of being in a property bubble. The escalating trade
conflict between China and the US has also posed a great
risk to the property market. The Hong Kong government
has taken various steps to cool down the property market
and slow down the property price growth, to make
properties more affordable for locals. However, with low
possibility of an interest-rate increase in the US, the total
deposits in Hong Kong at record high and the strong
desire of the Hong Kong people to own a property for
dwelling, the property prices strengthened again during
the first quarter of 2019.

For residential property, Financial Secretary Mr. Paul
Chan Mo-po estimated that some 100,400 public housing
units will be completed in the next five years and about
93,000 units of first-hand private residential property
in the next three to four years. The 2019-20 land sale
program comprises 15 residential sites, including seven
new sites, railway property development projects, Urban
Renewal Authority projects and private development
or redevelopment projects, with an estimated capacity
to generate a total of about 15,500 units. It shows the
private property developers’ interests and the Hong Kong
government’s determination in providing residential
housing in the years ahead to fill the housing gap.
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On the private residential housing, following the
government'’s policy on vacant private residential units
that was adopted since the middle of 2018, property
developers will be taxed on vacant private residential
units on the primary market that have not been occupied
for more than six of the last 12 months at 200% of the
rental value. This is equivalent to approximately 5%
of the property value, assuming a rental yield of 2.5%.
Signs are already pointing to private residential property
developers being cautious in planning for their property
development and sales programs.

During the year under review, the Group has disposed of
Mee Wah Factory Building which was originally intended
to be acquired for redevelopment. It has also sold 9
residential units and 10 car parking spaces of the Mount
Vienna in Fotan, in which the Group has 25% interest.
The Group will plan for the development of the land at
Tong Yan San Tsuen, No. 57A Nga Tsin Wai Road and So
Kwun Wat when the time is right. In China, the Group
will continue to lease out units of LUXEAST in Haining,
Zhejiang, through its 49% owned joint venture, with the
objective of selling them at the most favourable prices.

Going forward, the Group is optimistic about the
property market in Hong Kong. Besides the strong
demands from the local Hong Kong people for residential
properties, overseas investors, and the people from
the Mainland China, find Hong Kong as a good place
to live and for real estate investments. Here, they can
store money outside of their countries and in Hong
Kong dollars, which is pegged to the US dollar, and is
considered more stable than other foreign currencies.
The Group will cautiously seek for opportunity to
acquire suitable and affordable land to strengthen our
development land portfolio.
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT DIVISION

The Property Investment Division recorded a revenue of
HK$40.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$57.9 million).

To diversify its investment portfolio, the Group
completed the acquisition of the company holding a
property for serviced apartment business, now namely
Hollywood Hill, located at No. 222 Hollywood Road,
Hong Kong in April 2018. In addition, a joint venture of
the Group in which the Group has 50% interest entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire a company
holding the whole block of property, now namely The
Connaught, located at No. 138 Connaught Road West,
Hong Kong. The transaction was completed in November
2018. In May 2019, the Group acquired a whole block of
industrial property namely Hay Nien Building located at
No. 1 Tai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

As the Group considered that the market presented a
good opportunity to unlock the value of the properties,
several sale and purchase agreements were entered
into to dispose of its properties. In April 2018 and
May 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of certain workshops and car parking spaces of Shatin
Industrial Centre at a consideration of HK$158.4 million
and HK$209.8 million respectively. The transactions
were completed in October 2018 and September 2018
respectively. In May 2018, a joint venture of the Group
in which the Group has 40% interest entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of its wholly owned
subsidiary which directly held a serviced apartment,
Queen Central, located at No. 338 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong. The transaction has been completed in
October 2018.
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Investment properties of the Group including various
units at Shatin Industrial Centre, some units at Kings
Wing Plaza 1 in Shek Mun, Hollywood Hill at No. 222
Hollywood Road, One Eleven in Sai Ying Pun, No. 31
Wing Wo Street in Sheung Wan, some units at Kin Wing
Industrial Building in Tuen Mun, various land lots in
D.D. 76 Ping Che in Fanling, retail shops of The Austine
Place in Tsim Sha Tsui, and following three investment
properties in which the Group has 50% interest:
PeakCastle in Cheung Sha Wan, Hoi Bun Godown in Tuen
Mun and The Connaught at No.138 Connaught Road
West, all contributed satisfactory rental incomes to the
Group during the financial year.

Investment properties including West Castle, West Park
and The Edward are now under renovation in order to
improve the respective rental incomes and to enhance
the property values.

OPERATIONS REVIEW £ % |0l J&fi
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West Park at Nos. 256-258 Tung Chau Street
(rendering of the development)
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Outlook

Despite the market sentiment turned uncertain by end of
2018 following the China-US trade conflict, Hong Kong's
external trade and inbound tourist arrival figures in 2018
have not been immediately impacted and institutional
investors are still confident in Hong Kong’'s property
market. Many international companies and investment
funds continue to invest in the Hong Kong property
market and choose to establish a presence in Hong Kong
in order to gain access to the Asian market. The influx
of these international companies lead to an increased
demand for office spaces, which helped stabilize the
rentals and prices of the office property market.

Given the strong demands for residential housing
from Hong Kong people, residential property sector is
expected to remain stable after the price correction in
last August.

Industrial property sector has upside potential following
the Scheme of Revitalization of Industrial Buildings
which allows owners of industrial buildings that are aged
15 years or more to be deterred by the requirement
to pay full market premium for lease modification for
redevelopment into offices, hostels or art workshops.

Over the years, the Group has been adopting a
business model to renovate and improve the building
management of the acquired properties to increase
the rental income and enhance the property values
on disposals. The satisfactory return of the Property
Investment Division is a proof of the effectiveness of this
strategy. Meanwhile the Group will continue to look for
opportunities to enter into joint ventures with private
investment funds to invest in the property market. The
Group will ensure that its financial position is healthy and
its gearing ratio is within a reasonable level.
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During the current financial year, the Group has acquired ~ ABBEER  AEEHEWE—HSTENE
a company holding property (Hollywood Hill) on our  Hollywood HillY AT R BBELERERES
own and a company holding property (The Connaught) Y& &R (85 Z(h50%M#E) UEE —
through a 50:50 joint venture with a private investment  B3¥E ¥ ¥ The Connaughtf QAT BFFE » K
fund. In the same year, we have disposed of certain units MEEPHIEF LN ENREEN -
and car parking spaces at Shatin Industrial Centre.

The renovation works for The Edward, West Park and The Edward * West Park & West Castle /9 &) #T
West Castle will be completed soon. It will help increase  TRREEZR  BBRSANEBEBEKNE LI

the Group's rental income in the coming years. N
The Connaught at No. 138 Connaught Road West The Edward at 99-101 Lai Chi Kok Road
A F 5538 75 1385% 2 The Connaught (rendering of the development)
LR AEISR E1015% 2 The Edward
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LR A P AT A T 2018/2019 453t 37



Property Agency and

Management Division

E ALY E R

Property management services
for Hollywood Hill
AHollywood HillI2 ¥ % & 12 R %%




PROPERTY AGENCY AND MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

The revenue of the Property Agency and Management
Division for the year ended 31 March 2019 was HK$25.0
million (2018: HK$43.1 million).

In Hong Kong, our Property Agency and Management
Division acted as the marketing and project manager for
The Grampian at No. 11 Grampian Road, Mount Vienna
at Lok Lam Road, Success Centre at Ta Chuen Ping Street
(service ended in April 2018), Queen Central at Queen’s
Road Central (service ended in October 2018), PeakCastle
in Cheung Sha Wan, Central Industrial Building in Kwai
Chung, The Connaught at No.138 Connaught Road West
and one of the Group’s redevelopment project, The
Austine Place at No. 38 Kwun Chung Street. This Division
also provides property management services to The
Austine Place in Tsim Sha Tsui, The Bedford in Tai Kok
Tsui, Eight College and One LaSalle in Kowloon Tong,
One Eleven in Sai Ying Pun, PeakCastle in Cheung Sha
Wan, Mount Vienna at Lok Lam Road, Queen Central at
Queen’s Road Central (service ended in October 2018),
The Connaught at No.138 Connaught Road West and
Hollywood Hill at No. 222 Hollywood Road.
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Marketing and project manager and
property management services for
The Connaught
#The ConnaughtiEE M HHEERBEEKER
REMEEERE

Marketing and project manager and

property management services for Mount Vienna
AMount ViennalE T miGEEREE KB RIEHYEESERE

Other services of this Division include rental collection
and leasing agency services to 8 Hart Avenue and The
Cameron in Tsim Sha Tsui.

Outlook

The Property Agency and Management Division serves
to complement the Group’s property development and
property investment businesses. It provides high quality
and efficient property management, rental collection and
leasing agency services. Although it does not make much
profit from its operation, its quality service contributes to
the increase in rental incomes and enhancement in value
to the Group’s investment properties.
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HEALTH PRODUCTS DIVISION

Made up of two subsidiaries of the Group, namely Care
& Health Limited (“Care & Health”) and Retailcorp
Limited ("Retailcorp”), the Health Products Division
focuses on wholesale of Chinese and Western nutritional
supplements and management of relevant retail chain
stores.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Division recorded
revenue of HK$60.0 million, compared to HK$59.6 million
last year.

Retailcorp manages the Group’s chain stores business
under the trade name HealthPlus. Currently, there are 9
retail outlets (including a HealthPlus shop at St. Teresa’s
Hospital) and 1 service centre in operation. During the
current financial year, HealthPlus joined the Eugene Baby
Fair 2018 from 3 to 6 August 2018 and Care & Health
joined the Food Expo from 16 to 20 August 2018, both
held at Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre. To
enhance our advertising effort, the Group has appointed
an actress Ms. Chiu Ngar Chi as a celebrity endorser
for our product “Lingzhi Master” in order to increase
the product’s awareness and popularity. In respect of
the e-Commerce business, the Group has established
different e-commercial channels to draw customers from
different regions.

Outlook

In Hong Kong, as we live in a polluted city and under
stressful environment, many people here need different
kinds of health products to address their health
problems, prevent diseases and improve their quality of
lives.
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Since 2003, Healthplus and Care & Health have been
dedicated to promoting health products to bring better
health to the Hong Kong community. With one service
centre, 9 retail outlets, several sales counters at some big
name stores, and exhibitions at Food Expo, Baby Fair and
HK Brands and Products Expo, we have been continuously
providing our customers with a great selection of health
products.

Recently, tourism in Hong Kong has improved and retail
sales are set to increase. Following the completion of
both the Hong Kong Section of the Express Rail Link
and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, there are
more tourists from the Mainland China travelling to
Hong Kong for shopping. This has helped contribute to
a positive outlook for the local retail sector, and in turn,
our outlets have also been benefited.

Changing consumer behaviours and preferences have led
to the rise of new shopping experiences. Online shopping
in Hong Kong and the Mainland China are in the upward
trend and will continue to have a growing presence.
To stay competitive, we have established our own
official online website and registered to different online
shopping platforms in Hong Kong and the Mainland
China to keep pace with the customers’ changing needs
for shopping health products.

Given the keen competition, high rentals and expensive
marketing expenses, health products businesses have
always been difficult. However, with the ageing
population and growing health consciousness of the
people, health product business still has its potential.
The most important factor to remain competitive in the
market is to create and keep products loyalty and trust
from the users. Therefore, we will continue to source and
provide reliable health products to our customers.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Summary of Results

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recorded
revenue from continuing operations of HK$1,948.1
million, representing a year-on-year decline of 19.9%
from HK$2,432.4 million (restated) recorded in the
previous financial year which are mainly resulted from
the decline in revenue from Construction Division and
Property Development Division. Consolidated profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$578.0 million (2018: HK$616.3 million), a decrease
of 6.2% over the profit attained last year. The decline
was mainly attributable to the decrease in contributions
from Building Materials Division as a result of the drop
in revenue and lower gross profit ratio, coupled with the
legal and professional fees incurred in relation to the
spin-off and separate listing of the Company’s aluminium
windows, doors and curtain walls business, through
Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (“Million
Hope”).

The basic earnings per share and diluted earnings
per share for continuing and discontinued operations
for the year were HK55.7 cents and HK54.9 cents,
representing decreases of 10.7% and 9.6% respectively
when compared with HK62.4 cents and HK60.7 cents
respectively last year.

As at 31 March 2019, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$3,779.4 million (2018: HK$3,725.7
million), representing an increase of 1.4% over last
year. Net asset value per share as at 31 March 2019 was
HK$3.46 (2018: HK$3.56).
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Group Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are
regularly reviewed.

For day-to-day liquidity management and to maintain
flexibility in funding, the Group has access to facilities
from banks and an insurance company with an aggregate
amount of HK$2,151.0 million (HK$811.0 million was
secured by first charges over certain leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties of the Group), of
which HK$351.0 million bank loans have been drawn
down and approximately HK$245.7 million has been
utilised mainly for the issuance of letters of credit and
performance bonds as at 31 March 2019. The bank loans
under these banking facilities bear interests at prevailing
market interest rates.

The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash
balance, and endeavours to maintain its sound cash flow
generating capability, its ability to take on investments
and acquisition projects, in order to enhance shareholder
wealth. The total cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to HK$869.5 million as at 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$1,070.1 million), and accounted for 52.5% of
the current assets (2018: 43.7%).

During the year, the Group has a net cash outflow of
HK$892.4 million in its operating activities (mainly due to
the increase in properties under development for sale),
a net cash inflow of HK$1,077.3 million in its investing
activities (mainly due to net cash inflows on disposal
of subsidiaries, proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and assets
classified as held for sale, repayment of loan and
dividend received from joint ventures, netting off net
cash outflows on acquisitions of subsidiaries and loans
to joint ventures), and a net cash outflow of HK$384.3
million in its financing activities (mainly due to reduction
of bank balances and cash due to dividend by way of
distribution in specie of subsidiaries, dividends paid to
shareholders and repayment of bank loans, netting off
new bank loans raised). As at 31 March 2019, the Group
was in a net cash position, calculated on the basis of
total cash and bank balances less total bank loans. As at
year-end date, the Group was with a net current asset
of HK$378.0 million (2018: HK$840.9 million) and the
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities)
was 1.30 times (2018: 1.52 times).
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With its cash holdings and available facilities from banks
and an insurance company, the Group’s liquidity position
will remain healthy in the coming year, with sufficient
financial resources to meet its obligations, operation and
future development requirements.

Treasury Policy

The aim of the Group’s treasury policy is to minimise its
exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to
engage in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative
products. Treasury transactions unrelated to underlying
financial exposure are not undertaken. Foreign currency
exposures of the Group arise mainly from the purchase
of goods. The Group will determine if any hedging is
required, on an individual basis, depending upon the size
and nature of the exposure, and the prevailing market
circumstances.

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds
with maximum benefit, to achieve better risk control, and
to minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities
are centralised and scrutinised by the top management.

The surplus cash which is generally placed with reputable
financial institutions is mostly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar. Most of the income, expenses, assets
and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group therefore does not have any
significant exposure to gains or losses arising from the
movement of foreign currency exchange rate against the
Hong Kong dollar.
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Shareholders’ Funds

At the year-end date, shareholders’ funds of the Group
were HK$3,779.4 million including reserves of HK$3,670.4
million, an increase of HK$49.3 million from HK$$3,621.1
million at 31 March 2018. On that basis, the consolidated
net asset value of the Group as at 31 March 2019 was
HK$3.46 per share, compared to the consolidated net
asset value of HK$3.56 per share as at 31 March 2018. The
increase in shareholders’ funds was mainly attributable
to profits retained after completion of distribution of
special interim dividend by distribution in specie of all
Million Hope shares owned by the Company in March
2019, the payments of cash dividends, exercise of share
options and recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments.

Capital Structure

The Group intends to keep an appropriate mix of equity
and debt to ensure an efficient capital structure over
time. As at 31 March 2019, the Group borrowed Hong
Kong dollar loans amounting to HK$351.0 million from
the banks (at 31 March 2018: HK$395.5 million). The
borrowings have been used as general working capital
for financing the properties for development and
investment purposes over the years. The maturity profile
of the loans spread over a period of three years with
HK$179.1 million repayable within the first year, HK$9.0
million repayable within the second year and HK$162.9
million repayable within the third year. Bank loans that
are repayable more than one year after the end of the
reporting period but contain a repayment on demand
clause with carrying amount of HK$351.0 million have
been classified as current liabilities. Interest is based on
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus a competitive
margin.
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Major Acquisitions And Disposals

On 2 March 2018, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Shining Bliss Limited, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire the entire issued share capital and
shareholder’s loan to Richway Group Holdings Limited
together with its wholly owned subsidiary, Sunny Way
Properties Limited, (collectively referred to as “Richway
Group”) at a consideration of HK$505,144,000. The
acquisition was completed on 12 April 2018. The major
asset of Richway Group represented the whole block
of property located at No. 222 Hollywood Road, Hong
Kong, which was classified as investment properties.

On 24 August 2018, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Flair Forward Limited,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of its entire
interests in and shareholder’s loan to Pleasing ldeal
Limited (the “Pleasing Ideal”) together with its
wholly owned subsidiary, Superb Leading Limited (the
“Superb Leading”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$1,252,907,000. Superb Leading is engaged in
property development. The major asset of Superb
Leading represented industrial property “Mee Wah
Factory Building” situated at No.19 Sam Chuk Street and
No.1 Tsat Po Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The disposal
was completed on 15 November 2018.

Collateral

As at 31 March 2019, certain leasehold land and buildings
and investment properties of the Group, at the carrying
value of approximately HK$942.2 million (at 31 March
2018: HK$1,081.5 million), were pledged to the banks to
secure the Hong Kong dollar loans of HK$351.0 million
(at 31 March 2018: HK$395.5 million).
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Contingent Liabilities and Performance Bonds

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in
respect of allegations of copyright infringement and
defamation were taken against certain subsidiaries of
the Company carrying on its health products business.
No further steps had been taken against the Group
in respect of such actions after the court hearing for
directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements took place in 2004. In 2018, the counterparty
has been voluntary winding-up and the case was closed
accordingly.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had an outstanding
corporate guarantee issued to a bank in respect
of banking facilities granted to a joint venture of
approximately HK$67,125,000, which represented the
Group’s proportionate share of the banking facilities
utilised as at 31 March 2018. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair values of these
financial guarantee contracts were insignificant at initial
recognition and no provision for financial guarantee
contracts were made at 31 March 2018. During the year
ended 31 March 2019, the joint venture’s bank loan has
been fully repaid.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had an outstanding
counter indemnity in favour of the partners of a joint
venture amounting to HK$62,000,000 which represented
the Group’s maximum liability. This maximum liability
was determined among the parties to the counter
indemnity with reference to the Group’s proportionate
share of estimated amount of interest payment under the
banking facilities granted to the joint venture and the
cost overrun in respect of the renovation, management
and marketing and leasing of the property held by the
joint venture. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of the counter indemnity was
insignificant at initial recognition and no provision for
counter indemnity was made at 31 March 2018. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, the joint venture’s bank
loan has been fully repaid.
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group has outstanding
performance bonds in respect of construction contracts
amounting to HK$136,941,000 (2018: HK$222,991,000).

Commitments AIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments:

RZZ-NE=R=+—-H FEEREES
HWEBA 2 BHREIEE136,941,0007T (=
Z— )\ 1 78%222,991,0007T) °

RB|BEHR NEBEAUTHERE:

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\EF
ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Capital expenditure contracted BT HFESTHE M RIIR
for but not provided in the FREMBRRAZERLZ
consolidated financial statements
in relation to:
Acquisition of a property under WEBRERP 2 FEYE
development for sale - 409,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary e B& — R BT B A B - 454,505
Acquisition of investment properties  UXBIREY % 440,100 -
440,100 863,505

The Group’s share of the commitments made jointly with
other joint venturers relating to the joint ventures, but
not recognised at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

AEESERAMARCEBERAR DR
HEMEHER RSB RER S RENT

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

ZA=+—-H | ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Commitments to provide loans REEFEE 382,857 757,206
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group is implementing a manpower policy that
aims to maximise the output of existing staff resources
in order to achieve productivity gains. We believe that
through improving our staff’s job-related competencies,
our overall operational efficiency can be improved
without the need for substantial increase in headcount.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group (excluding its joint
ventures) had 611 full time employees. The Group
offers competitive remuneration packages, including
discretionary bonus and share option scheme, to its
employees, commensurable to market level and their
qualifications. The Group also provides retirement
schemes, medical benefits and both in-house and
external training courses for employees.

Employees and directors are remunerated according
to individual and the Group’s performance, industry
trends, prevailing market conditions, the nature of the
job and value creation. The Group recruits and promotes
individuals based on their development potential, merits
and competencies, and ensures that their remuneration
packages are at a reasonable market level. The directors,
full time employees and consultants of the Group are
entitled to participate in the share option scheme of the
Company. The principal terms of the share option scheme
are summarised in the Report of the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1B SR IR

Good corporate governance practices are crucial to
enhancing shareholder value. With this in mind, the
directors of the Company are keen on maintaining high
standards of corporate governance. This is reflected in
terms of a quality board of directors (the “Board”) and
the emphasis on transparency and accountability.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Company has complied with all the Code Provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for
the following:

—  Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates
that the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting. The Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, was unable
to attend the Company’s 2018 annual general
meeting due to other important engagement. The
Managing Director took the chair of that meeting
in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), and assumes
responsibility for strategy formulation, corporate
governance and performance monitoring. It develops and
reviews the Group's strategies and policies, formulates
business plans and evaluates performance of the
operating divisions against agreed budgets and targets
through regular discussion on key and appropriate issues
in a timely manner. It also exercises a number of reserved
powers, including (i) approval of annual and interim
results and significant changes in accounting policy or
capital structure, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (in particular those which
may involve conflict of interests), major capital projects;
(ii) setting the Group’s remuneration policy, dividend
policy; (iii) appointment of directors; and (iv) supervision
of management and other significant financial and
operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the
Managing Director and the senior management, who
fulfill their duties within their scope of authority and
responsibility. Divisional heads are responsible for
different aspects of the businesses. Major functions
delegated to management include preparation of annual
and interim results; execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board; implementation of
adequate risk management and internal control systems;
and compliance with the relevant statutory requirements.
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All directors are kept informed of major changes that
may affect the Group’s businesses on a timely basis, and
can avail themselves of the advice and services of the
company secretary so that the Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
director can have recourse to independent professional
advice in performing his duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision
making. The biographies of the directors (and their
relationships, if any) are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual
report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors, representing at least one-third of the
Board. One of the independent non-executive directors,
namely Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Non-executive Chairman
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Dr. Zhang Wei
(appointed on 25 June 2019)
(also alternate director to Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson)
(appointed on 15 May 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Coming from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors bring a wealth of
expertise and experience to the Board, which contributes
to the success of the Group. Through active participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all of them make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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All independent non-executive directors are free from
any business or other relationships with the Company.
The Company has received written annual confirmation
of independence from each independent non-executive
director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive directors
are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman of the Board)
indirectly owns as to 50% interest and Mr. Wong Sue Toa,
Stewart (Managing Director of the Company) together
with Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai (spouse of Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart) indirectly own as to an aggregate of the
remaining 50% interest in Queentex Industries Limited
and its subsidiaries. If in case a conflict of interest arises,
those directors or any of their close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) who have a material interest will
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution(s).

Save for the information (including the relationships,
if any, among the directors) as disclosed in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section under the “Report of the
Directors” of this annual report and the business
relationship between the Chairman and the Managing
Director as disclosed above, there is no other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among the directors and between the Chairman and the
Managing Director.

Board Diversity

A board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
was adopted on 26 March 2013 by the Board and the
Nomination Committee will review at least annually
whether board diversity can be achieved. A summary of
the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:
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When reviewing board diversity, the Nomination
Committee will consider board diversity from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, which form the measureable objectives of the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee wiill
also monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and review and recommend revisions of the Board
Diversity Policy (where appropriate) to the Board to
ensure its effectiveness.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
20 March 2012 to deal with matters in relation to the
appointment and re-election of directors.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will identify suitable individuals by making
reference to criteria including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length
of service and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. New directors
are sought mainly through referrals or internal
promotion.

The Company's circular sent together with this annual
report contains detailed information of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director
are held by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart respectively. The Board has adopted a set
of written terms setting out the roles and duties of the
Chairman and the Managing Director.
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The Chairman provides leadership for the effective
functioning of the Board in the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. With the support of
the Managing Director and senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. The Managing Director
is also responsible for formulating the organizational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board'’s approval.

Directors’ Induction and Development

Every newly appointed director is provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that
he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
The company secretary from time to time provides
the directors with updates on latest development and
changes to the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, all directors
(excluding director appointed after the year end) have
participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. A
summary of training received by the directors is as
follows:

REBEEZE-ZZ-NF=A=1t—-HLFERN 2
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Training Areas

53 B

Corporate
Governance/

Updates on Laws,

Accounting/
Financial/
Management
or Other

Rules & Regulations Professional Skills

¥ER EE- a5t B/
iﬁﬂﬂ&%ﬁﬁ]ﬁ’] EE
RETEMR HtEX£H
Non-executive Chairman ETERE
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson BERB L v/ v
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FHEEE v v
(Managing Director) (EFHEATE)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) it = %4 (#4EHE) v/ v
Mr. Lo Kai Cheong ERELRE v v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson EMELE v/ v
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe BRIAIE T4 v/ v/
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2 7Bt v v
Dr. Sun Tai Lun BARmEL v/ v/
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the guideline for securities transactions by directors and
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors
(excluding director appointed after the year end) and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2019. No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary, namely Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, is also
an executive director and the financial controller of the
Company. He has the day-to-day knowledge of the affairs
of the Company.

The company secretary plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that the Board policies
and procedures are duly followed. He also acts as the
secretary of the Board committees to ensure that all
records of meeting proceedings, discussion and decision
of such Board committees are properly kept. The
company secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the company
secretary has completed at least 15 hours’ professional
training by attending the continuing professional
development programmes as well as seminars covering
regulatory updates and professional knowledge about
company secretary duties organised by professional
bodies.
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All directors could have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations
are followed.

BOARD AND COMMITTEES
Board Proceedings

The Board held four regular meetings and five non-
regular meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019
and the principal businesses transacted include:

o Assessing business performance and planning future
business directions;

o Approving interim and final results and reports;

e Approving business activities and property
transactions;

o Determining payment of dividend;

o Approving the declaration of a conditional
distribution in specie of the entire issued share
capital of Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited
(“Million Hope") to our shareholders in respect of
the spin-off and separate listing of Million Hope on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;

o Reviewing the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group;

o Approving proposed amendment to the Company'’s
articles of association;

e Approving the Company’s corporate social
responsibility report;
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e Amending the Company’s performance bonus
scheme;

e Adopting the Company’s dividend policy;

o Adopting the Company’s policy for nomination of
directors; and

o Approving amendment to the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee.

Meeting schedules are normally made available to the
directors in advance. Notices of regular Board meetings
are given to all the directors at least 14 days before the
meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all the directors at
least 3 days (as far as practicable) before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Group and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each director also
have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary. The directors receive
regular supply of information about the business
activities, financial highlights and operations review
so that they are well informed prior to participation in
Board meetings.

The financial controller attended all regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Group.
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According to current Board practice, any transaction with
a material amount will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company'’s articles of association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have a material
interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has been
established since December 2001. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors
and Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a partner or former partner of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s existing external
auditor. Members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter (Chairman of the committee)*
Mr. Chan Pak Joe*
Dr. Sun Tai Lun*

* independent non-executive director

The major duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

o Reviewing the financial statements and reports and
considering any significant or unusual items raised
by the qualified accountant or external auditor
before submission to the Board;
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Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor, approving their remuneration
and terms of engagement and reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity;

Reviewing and reporting to the Board on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and associated procedures, with the
assistance of the Risk Management Committee and
the outsourced internal audit function;

Reviewing the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices; and

Reporting to the Board on the matters in the CG
Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
and the major works performed are as follows:

Reviewing and recommending for the Board’s
approval the financial results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2018;

Recommending to the Board the re-appointment of
external auditor for the year ended 31 March 2019;

Reviewing certain aspects of the internal control
systems of the Group; and

Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
evaluating, establishing and maintaining effective
risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended
31 March 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 20 March 2012. Members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

Mr. Chan Pak Joe (Chairman of the committee)*
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter*

Dr. Sun Tai Lun*

# independent non-executive director

The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

° Reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

o Identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship;

o Assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company;

o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the Chairman and the
Managing Director; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year and the major works performed are as follows:

o Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

e Assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

o Reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the re-appointment of directors who are
subject to retirement from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy.
Remuneration Committee

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in
December 2004 which replaced the Bonus Committee
established in December 2001. Members of the
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Chairman of the committee)*
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Chan Pak Joe*

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter*

* independent non-executive director
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The major duties of the Remuneration Committee
include the following:

o Formulating remuneration policy and practices and
determining the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management; and

o Ensuring that no director or any of his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as key
economic indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and
staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the year and the major works performed are as follows:

e Approving the maximum bonus pool and the actual
bonus amount to be distributed to the executive
directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019;

o Approving the conditional allocation of incentive
bonus under the Company’s incentive bonus scheme
to the Company’s executive directors and the
subsidiary directors;

o Reviewing and making recommendation to the
Board on the amendment of the Company’s
performance bonus scheme; and

o Reviewing and determining the salary increments
for the executive directors, senior management
and other employees of the Group for the year
commencing 1 April 2019.
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Other Board Committees

In addition to delegating specific

Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the

Remuneration Committee, the Boa
following Board committees:

Name of Committee

ZEEEH

I

[ A3 iR &

HitEEEES

responsibilities to the

© -

= -

rd also established the

Composition of Committee

ZEEZHAM

ESERTHRTELZES REZESNRH
MEESSREREN FTRLTUTESES

Role and Function of Committee

ZEEZAGBREBEE

General Business Committee
(established in April 2002)

—REBZEES
(R=—FEE=FIAKT)

Property Acquisition/Disposal
Committee (established in
April 2002)

Wi HENEEZES
(R=—BZEZFIAKT)

Board Committee for the Share
Award Scheme (established in
July 2016)

RORBGFECEETEES
(R=ZF—ANEFE+tARY)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the General
Business Committee held one meeting for approving
the removal of certain shares from the Cayman Islands
principal register of members to the Hong Kong branch

register of members of the Com

All the executive directors of the
Company

ARBERIATES

All the executive directors of the
Company

ARABERIATES

All the executive directors and
company secretary of the
Company

RARAAE2EHTEERAAWE

pany, and the Board

Committee for the Share Award Scheme held one
meeting for approving the early termination of the

Company'’s share award scheme.
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Attendance Record of Directors and Committee BEENZEEREHFERE
Members

The attendance record of each director at general &EEHEHEZE-_Z-HILhFE=ZA=+—HL
meetings, Board and committee meetings held during HFEETHRRAS BEETEREELZEMN

the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below: RERESIAT ¢
Extraordinary Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Annual General General Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting' Meeting" Meetings" Meetings" Meeting¥ Meetings"
BRE BE Exg ENZEE REZE®  FHZEE
Name of Directors Espg BEAE HERE gz = U =6 e
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson* BB R 0/1 01 9 N/A N/A® N/AE
(Chairman) (%) TER TER TER
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart ~ EHiE5%E4% 111 11 919 N/AS N 22
(Managing Director) (EFHAE) TER
Mr. Tai Sai Ho AtRLE 17 n 99 /A" n 0
(General Manager) (#B45%) FrEA
Mr. Lo Kai Cheong EMERE 111 11 919 N/AS N/AL N/A®
@R TER @R
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson* ~ &Rk E 54 * 01 01 69 N/ N/AL N/AL
AEA TEA rEA

Mr. Chan Pak Joe* BRAAE A 17 1”7 719 0 i 0

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter* 3 7REL 1n n 99 22 n 22

Dr. Sun Tai Lun* BAfmEL* 0/1 n 9 22 1" 22

Notes: MizE :

I.  The annual general meeting was held on 21 August 2018. . ZRREFAER-Z-NEFNA=+-—H
The auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu BT RN BB EE e BEMR S GEHERT
attended such meeting. HETZARE

Il. The extraordinary general meeting was held on 9 . BREFBIIRKER-Z—NFE+-—AIBET-
November 2018. Details of the transactions approved at REBHEZRGHBEREAQATABHAE=
the meeting were set out in the Company’s circular dated E-NE+AZ+THHEZEH-

24 October 2018.
IIl.  During the year, four regular Board meetings were held. . RER XAFBTTHAESEEREE -

IV. Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter is the Chairman of the Audit V. BYREBLAEREZESEE-
Committee.
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V. Mr. Chan Pak Joe is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

VI. Dr. Sun Tai Lun is the Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee.
* non-executive director
# independent non-executive director

The director was not a member of the relevant committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board oversees the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviews their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. During the year,
the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee and
the Risk Management Committee, has conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely
eliminate the risk of system failure; and to assist in the
achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and goals.
The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are considered effective and adequate.

V. RAEEERREERZEEERE-

V. BARELAFMEESEETE-

* EHMITES
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b3 BB R M AR EC 12
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ERREERABEZRAGNERMEETE
EER SRMEBEEXREZEEE BEMK-
EENEGREZR AEEZRREERAIE
BRASKEER T EEE RERRIM S IB KRR ME
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During the year and subsequent to the year end, the
Board engaged external consultants and professionals
to assist the Company in performing risk assessment
and to conduct an agreed review over the Group’s
internal control systems for evaluating the effectiveness
of the systems. No significant risk issues were identified
and appropriate measures have been taken to address
the identified areas for improvement. The Company
adopted a risk management policy and formed the
Risk Management Committee chaired by the Managing
Director and with members comprising the General
Manager and various divisions’ senior staff members.
Systems and procedures are put in place to identify,
evaluate, manage and monitor the risks of different
businesses and activities. Regular monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems is mainly
performed by each of the key divisions/business units
who are required to conduct risk self-assessment and to
submit risk assessment results and action plans to the
Risk Management Committee. The Audit Committee and
the Risk Management Committee monitor and assess
the risk management systems and the risk management
issues, support and advice from external consultants and
professionals (internal audit function as outsourced) to
perform independent reviews on the risk management
systems are sought as and when required. Review on the
risk management and internal control systems has to be
performed at least annually to assess the effectiveness of
the systems in monitoring and managing risks.

The Company has also maintained a tailored governance
structure with clear lines of responsibility and
appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management, who are accountable for
the conduct and performance of the respective business
divisions under their supervision.
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The directors review monthly management reports on
the financial results, statistics and project progress of
each business division. Monthly management meetings
are held to review business performance against budgets,
forecasts and risk management strategies. Any major
variances are highlighted for investigation and control
purposes.

A centralised cash management system is maintained to
oversee the Group's investment and borrowing activities.
There are established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. The aim is to keep
the expenditure level in line with the annual budget
and within the cost budget of an approved project.
Expenditures are subject to overall budget control with
various approval levels set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each manager and officer. Depending
on the nature and value, procurement of certain goods
and services are required to go through the tendering
process. No individual in the Group, irrespective of their
rank and position, are allowed to dominate the entire
expenditure process from commitment to payment.

The Group also regulates the handling and the
dissemination of inside information to the public in an
equal and timely manner in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Senior management executives
of the financial control functions of the Group are
delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor
the proper procedures to be observed on the disclosure
of inside information.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been applied, and reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.
The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section of
this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out
below:

Y )

HEaMEBEBRRZRE

EFERERNGAUBHRR -ERNESH
BHEREF EETCRATBUHRELEL
FR&E 2SR LEHSEMEEN
B ) (5 o SMNERBETN A D RGEEWH|RE
ZHRESERMI R AN FI]| B LR BENRE
—HiA e

# S5 B % BA

BE-_Z-—NE=ZA=1+—HALEE KQF
XA Bz H B E ST

HK$'000

BIEF T

Audit Services E R 3,750
Audit Services E RIS

- Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited —ESEXERBRAF 1,503

Non-audit Services: IFEEZRTE

Reviewing the financial results and report
for the six months ended 30 September 2018
Professional services rendered in relation to

ERBE-_ZE-N\FNLA=1H
IEARER 2B REARRE 870
MR GREZEXRE

transactions 2,210
Professional services rendered in relation to o IRRME 2 EERE

a spin-off 3,710

Taxation and other services HME R H MR 105

TOTAL g 12,148
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a written dividend policy on
14 March 2019 setting out the principles and guidelines
relating to the declaration, payment or distribution of its
net profits as dividends to the Company’s shareholders.
In recommending or declaring dividends, the Board shall
take into account the following factors of the Group:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

financial results;

cash flow situation;

availability of distributable profits;
business conditions and strategies;
future operations and earnings;
cash requirements;

expected capital requirements and expenditure
plans;

interests of shareholders as a whole;

any restrictions on declaration and/or payment of
dividends; and

any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to

time.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the Board or the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent Board committee, are
available to answer questions at the general meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice
of annual general meeting, the annual report and
the circular containing information on the proposed
resolutions will be sent to shareholders at least twenty
clear business days before the meeting. Voting at annual
general meeting or other general meeting will be
conducted by way of a poll. The results of the poll will be
published on the day of general meeting by posting on
the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

General meetings shall be convened:

(i) on the written requisition of any two members of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong (22/F, Kings Wing Plaza 1, 3
On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong), specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company; or

(b) on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee) deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong (22/F, Kings Wing
Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong), specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
the meeting may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for Nomination of Director

Any shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a director at general meeting, the
following documents must be validly served on the
company secretary at the Company’s principal office in
Hong Kong (22/F., Kings Wing Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong) within
the period commencing on the day after despatch of the
notice of a general meeting appointed for election of
director and ending no later than 7 days prior to the date
of such meeting:

(i) notice in writing signed by the shareholder of his/
her intention to propose such person for election
(the “Nominated Candidate”);

(ii) notice in writing signed by the Nominated
Candidate of his/her willingness to be elected; and

(iii) the biographical details of the Nominated
Candidate as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules for publication by the Company.

Constitutional Documents

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 21 August 2018, a special resolution was passed by
the shareholders of the Company approving certain
amendment to the Company’s articles of association,
with the aim to provide the Board with more flexibility
when considering dividend distributions and would
facilitate the distribution process in this regard. Details
of the amendment were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 9 July 2018 and circular dated 20
July 2018. The amended articles of association is available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Shareholders’ and Other Stakeholders’ Enquiries

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
Shareholders and other stakeholders may communicate
with the Board by addressing their enquiries and
concerns to the company secretary through the following
channels:
By mail: Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
Attention: Company Secretary

22/F., Kings Wing Plaza 1

3 On Kwan Street

Shek Mun,

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

By email: info@hanison.com

By telephone: (852) 2414 3889

By fax: (852) 2490 3341

In addition, if shareholders have any enquiries about
their shareholdings and entitlement to dividend, they can
contact the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company
using the details below:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8628

Fax: (852) 2865 0990

To promote effective communication, the Company
also maintains a website at www.hanison.com, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information and other information are posted.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents its report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures are set out in notes 54, 20 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities
of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
including the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development
in the Group’s business are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement (on pages 6 to 10), Operations Review (on
pages 11 to 43), Financial Review (on pages 44 to 51) and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Financial Highlights (on page 5) and Operations
Review (on page 11) of this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management and
particulars of the Group’s material events occurred
after the year end date are disclosed in notes 52 and 55
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 127.

An interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share in
cash amounting to HK$26,169,000 were paid to the
shareholders during the year.

On 22 February 2019, the Group declared a special
interim dividend by distribution in specie of all shares
in Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (“Million
Hope"”), representing the entire issued shares of Million
Hope. The distribution was made by way of allocating 2
Million Hope shares for every 5 shares of the Company
held by the shareholders whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 12 March 2019.
The relevant share certificates of Million Hope were
despatched to the Company’s shareholders on 18 March
2019. The aggregate amount of this special interim
dividend was approximately HK$500.0 million.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per share in cash for the year ended 31 March
2019 amounting to not less than HK$54,542,000 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the branch register
of members in Hong Kong and the principal register
of members in the Cayman Islands on 5 September
2019. The proposed final dividend will be paid on 17
September 2019 following approval at the annual
general meeting.

KRR 9B

rEEBEC
ZEEHNE

—hF=ZA=+—HLFE
1y52ﬁéﬁ F*o

FRBEE2.5l  £FEEBYE26,169,0007T 2 F
HREENRERNTRSTFRR -

REZZB-NWFZAZ+ZRH AEESKE5
PHIRE BN F XD IKETEXERER
RA(TEZZD2HKRG (HEREZT2IE
BITRAD) - ARBAEAR=ZZFB-AF=ZA+=
AESIARAARREMIRREBESHESR
ARAQRARODERBEMREZTRONS K
R K- XFTHHBERIZER=-ZE-—NF=
BTN\BFBETARARR -ZBRHHRE
#5848 %500,000,0007T °

%ggi_%alﬁai—v j'Lf'E )EJ +—
HIEFEZRBARESRKRIREEES.01L - #5
T B #E54,542,000T FR-ZE—HLEN
AREARBIEEERREMOMRBEERES
BRREMEMzBRR BRI ARAREBFRN
BRREFAGSLEMER BR-ZZ—-AEAN
B+t Bk

80 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 132.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 March 2019 comprised the
aggregate of share premium and retained profits of
HK$770,673,000 (2018: HK$681,717,000).

Under the articles of association of the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserves
set aside from profits which the directors of the Company
determine is no longer needed. With the sanction of an
ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account subject to a solvency
test as set out in section 34 of the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Group’s environmental and social policies
and strategies are formulated by Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee (the “CSR Committee”)
which is delegated by the Company, and executed
by Safety and Environmental Department, Corporate
Social Responsibility and Communications Department.
For more details of the Group’s performances in
environmental and social aspects, please refer to the
corporate social responsibility report of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2019 which will be published
on the websites of the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company on or
before 19 October 2019.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The environmental policies have been adopted in the
Group such as Environmental Management System
Policy (1SO140001) which is certified by Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and Energy Management
System Policy (ISO50001) which is certified by Hong Kong
Certification Services International Limited since 2002
and 2013 respectively. These policies set the direction and
guidelines for corresponding subsidiaries of the Company
to follow on gradual basis.
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We strive for better environmental performances every
year, and in 2018/2019 our performances are recognised.
Our Construction Division has obtained several green
awards such as merit in 2018 Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence organised by Environmental
Campaign Committee, Environmental Protection
Department Indoor Air Quality Certificate — Excellent
Class for head office 2018. While our Interior and
Renovation Division has obtained Top Winner of Bronze
Award of Contractor in RMAA Works in “CIC Sustainable
Construction Award 2018"” organised by Construction
Industry Council.

Social Policy and Performance

Corporate Social Responsibility Statement was renewed
and signed by Managing Director in 2018, outlining the
Group’s determination and direction on carrying out
our social performances. The CSR Committee regularly
reviews the statement to ensure it is aligned with our
Company vision, mission and values.

We have been investing in community via organising or
participating activities serving underprivileged, elderly,
children, youth and schools. Sponsorship and donation
in terms of financial or in-kind is made for charity
organisations or non-government organisations. Our
corporate volunteer team has also been formed and
grows gradually with the support from the Group's staff
and their family members.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group is committed in complying with the relevant
laws and regulations related to its business operations
as set by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). We dedicated greater effort towards
meeting new or revised regulatory requirements and
rising stakeholder expectations. On-going review of the
newly enacted or revised laws and regulations has been
conducted that relevant trainings and guidance to the
staff are provided.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
BUSINESS PARTNERS AND OTHERS

The Group treasures the relationship with all
stakeholders and attempts to engage them through
different initiatives. Human capital is our most valuable
asset. We review regularly and provide competitive
remuneration packages, training programmes, and staff
engagement activities to attract, nurture and retain
talents and employees.

A long-standing relationship with business partners
brings benefits for the Group as well as suppliers and
customers. Apart from the connection in business
relationship, we also engage our business partners
to collaborate for a better performance in business
operation, environment, and community investment.

The Group encourages staff volunteering and
sponsorship and engages staff in community. Positive
site-community relationship is definitely our priority.
Therefore, close communications with relevant parties
and programmes are initiated and conducted addressing
community concern.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s existing share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted and
became effective on 21 September 2011, all directors
(including independent non-executive directors), full-
time employees and consultants of the Company, its
subsidiaries and/or its associated companies/associates are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants
who have been granted options under the Scheme
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the
Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

(a) Maximum number of shares available for
issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the number
of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Scheme, subject to renewal as
approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Upon the refreshment of the Scheme mandate limit
at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 23 August 2016, the maximum number of
new share options that can be granted under the
Scheme was 103,654,057 (the “Refreshed Share
Option Limit”). As at the date of this annual report,
the total number of shares that may be issued
under the remaining Refreshed Share Option Limit
is 56,390,557, representing approximately 5.17% of
the number of the Company’s shares in issue at that
date.
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(b)

36

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the number of
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
Taking into account the remaining Refreshed Share
Option Limit to subscribe for 56,390,557 shares
and the 9,298,175 shares that may be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme, the
cumulative total number of shares that may be
issued under the Scheme is 65,688,732 shares,
representing approximately 6.02% of the number of
the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of this
annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

(1) The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the Scheme or
any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the number of the Company’s
shares in issue unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company.

(2) Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)), would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to
be granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of the
grant:

(b)

RIBEZTERADREMEMTEFRE
M RITEBREMTER TR
TRZADBBRHDEERETSEBARD
BTN ERITRMEE 230% &5
N A1 32 8856,390,557 10 < A T & &E
FERERERETEZITEETER
HEERITEZEREMT FRITZ
9,298,175 B 10 % » Z%ETEITE T 7 7 8
T2 BT R 1P #8145 565,688,732/% » 14
ARARRAERAPERITROBEDN
6.02% °

HE2HREZERERE LR

(1) BRFERRFRRBEAAE BRI
REM+ZEAHE BITERE
ZET B A D A RN 2 EMH A
BRESFARE 2BRE (BFEE
TEREARITEZBRE) MG E
BBHEERTRETRITZROE
BT EBBEARTCHITROE
BZ1% °

(2 fEARBZEERRIBELIEH
TESHREARESTEZHEA
(ERRBRXMER LWRA (£
mARRD ) RHEMERE $S
BYRBERBAMLZ2EM+=
BAME (BEKHZR) @ZAL
ERHEETREZAEBRERE
TEMERTRETRITZRG

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



(9]

(d)

(e)

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the number of the Company’s shares in
issue; and

(ii) bhaving an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant in excess of
HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company
who are not connected persons of the
Company as defined in the Listing Rules.

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option
is granted or such shorter period as the Board or the
relevant committee thereof may specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board or
the relevant committee thereof must specify the
minimum period(s) (if any) and achievement of
performance target(s) (if any), for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised in whole or
in part.

Period open for acceptance of an option

The offer of grant of an option (of which the
date of grant must be a business day of the Stock
Exchange) must be accepted within 14 days after
the date of grant.
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(f) Amount payable upon acceptance of the
option

(9)

(h)

388

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

Basis of determining exercise price of the
option

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than
the highest of:

)

(if)

(iii)

the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days of the Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on
20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

(f)

(9)

(h)
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Details of the movement of share options granted FANZTEBETREZBREZZE:F
under the Scheme during the year were as follows: BT :
Approximate
percentage
of issued
Exercised share
Balance as during the Balance as capital
at 1.4.2018 year Lapsed  at31.3.2019 (Note i)
Category or Name Exercise price RZB-N\E (Note i) during RZB-AE HEEBAIRE
of participants Date of grant pershare  Exercise period (Vote /) A-H RERTE theyear =A=+-H BHESN
SRERUANE BiLAH BRARE THREE M) &t (Hitii) REREXR &t (i)
Directors of the Company
ADRAZES
Cha Mou Sing, Payson 5.9.2017 HK$1.54 592017 t0 4.9.2022 10,385,000 (10,385,000 - - -
LRE “E2-tENREH A5 ZE-tENAEEE
“EZZFABMA
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart 5.9.2017 HK$1.54 592017 t0 4.9.2022 10,385,000 (10,385,000) - - -
® “Z-t§¥NPER BE154T  —B-tEhREAZE
“EZZENAMA
Tai Sai Ho 5.9.2017 HK$1.54 592017 t0 4.9.2022 5,192,000 (5,192,000) - - -
Atz “Z-tEnAEH B¥15T  ZEZ-tENREIAE
“EC-ENAMA
Lo Kai Cheong 5.9.2017 HK$1.54 592017 t0 49.2022 1,332,000 (1,332,000) - - -
E/E “E2-tENREH A5 ZE-tENAREE
“EZZFABMA
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson 26.11.2014 HK$0.96  26.11.2014 to 25.11.2019 3,785,500 (3,785,500) - - -
BHE ZE-mET-BItRE EH0%T  ZE-BET-A-TAAE
ZE-nft-B=tEH
5.9.2017 HK$1.54 592017 t0 4.9.2022 5,192,000 - - 5,192,000 0.47%
“Z-tEnAEH B¥15T  ZEZ-tENREIAE
“E--ENAMA
Chan Pak Joe 5.9.2017 HK$1.54 592017 t0 4.9.2022 1,038,000 (1,038,000) - - -
Rtk “Z-tERAEA B¥15T ZE-tENREAZE
“EZZEABMA
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 5.9.2017 HK$1.54  5.9.2017 t0 4.9.2022 830,000 (830,000) - - -
EIEy “Z-t§¥NPER BE15aT  ZE-tEhREAZE
“Z-ZERAMA
Sun Tai Lun 5.9.2017 HK$1.54 592017 t0 4.9.2022 1,038,000 (1,038,000) - - -
YN “Z-tEnAEH E¥15T  ZEZ-tENREIAE
“ECCENAMA
39,177,500 (33,985,500) - 5,192,000
Employees of the Group 26.11.2014 HK$0.96  26.11.2014 t0 25.11.2019 2,918,225 (2,002,925) - 915,300 0.08%
KEEZER ZE-mET-BItRE EH0%T  ZE-MET-A-TREE
ZE-NFt-A=THA
5.9.2017 HK$1.54  5.9.2017 t0 4.9.2022 12,320,000 (8,666,500) (103,000) 3,550,500 0.32%
“EZ-t§¥NPER B#15ar  “E-tENAERE
“Z-CENAMA
15,238,225 (10,669,425) (103,000) 4,465,800
Total 54,415,725 (44,654,925) (103,000) 9,657,800
@i
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Notes:

(i) The share options vested immediately on the
respective dates of grant.

(i) The weighted average closing price of the
Company'’s shares immediately before the exercise
dates of the share options was HK$1.26 per share.

(iii) The percentage is calculated based on the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31
March 2019 (i.e. 1,090,831,576 shares).

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no
outstanding convertible securities, warrants or similar
rights as at 31 March 2019 and there has been no issue or
exercise of any convertible securities, warrants or similar
rights during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

B EE

(i) BRERSEARLEHNKES-

(i) AATBRONRBEBREETELDSN
ZIEFHRHmERESRE1.26T
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1,090,831,576/% ) 5t & o
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B+ N0 B) I A 14 AR AT LAY AT R AR 55
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Non-executive Chairman
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Dr. Zhang Wei
(appointed on 25 June 2019)
(also alternate director to Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson)
(appointed on 15 May 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, Mr. Chan
Pak Joe and Dr. Sun Tai Lun shall retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles
of association, Dr. Zhang Wei, who was appointed by
the Board on 25 June 2019, shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All the above
retiring directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All
remaining directors of the Company continue in office.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in note 13(i) to the consolidated
financial statements. For the year ended 31 March 2019,
the emoluments of the senior management, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
below and include one of the five highest paid
individuals analysis presented in note 13(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, fell within the
following bands:

EFRRIMS

BE-Z-NE=ZA=+—HALFE EBZ
M€ 2 FBEEIINGEE M BERRMTT13G)
BE-ZZ-NF=ZA=+t—BLEE SHE
BE-F M (HERFRENTXEERS
hEEERE| & BEPEERGREMER
KT ERNEEREEFALTINAN
—BAL)FALLTAR

Number of Individuals

N |
Emoluments of 2019 2018
Senior Management by Bands EREEE ZF A5 —E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 751,000,001 T8 %51,500,0007T 3 1
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 78 #51,500,001 T8 #2,000,0007C 1 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 T8 %£2,500,0007T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 752,500,001 T8 #£3,000,0007T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 78 #53,000,001 T8 #3,500,0007C - 2
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 78 #53,500,001 7078 %£4,000,000T 2 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 754,000,001 T8 #£4,500,0007T 1 -
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 78 #£5,500,001 %8 #6,000,0007C - 4
HK$7,500,001 — HK$8,000,000 757,500,001 T-7& %£8,000,0007T 1 -
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000 78 #£8,000,001 T8 #£8,500,0007T - 1
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in the information of the directors of the
Company are set out below:

(1

)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson has been appointed as
the chairman and non-executive director of Million
Hope.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart has been appointed as
the deputy chairman and non-executive director of
Million Hope.

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, has been appointed as a non-
executive director of Million Hope.

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson has been appointed as
a member of the President’s Global Advisory Council
at Carnegie Mellon University.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter will cease to be an Associate
Professor of the Department of Accountancy and
Law of Hong Kong Baptist University with effect
from 1 July 2019.

The monthly salaries of the executive directors,
namely Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, Mr. Tai Sai Ho
and Mr. Lo Kai Cheong were increased by 3.5%,
3.5% and 4.0% respectively, all with effect from 1
April 2019 as compared with those of the last year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 76, is the Chairman and
non-executive director of the Company. He joined the
Group in 1989 and has extensive experience in property
development. Mr. Cha is the chairman and executive
director of HKR International Limited (“HKRI"”) and the
chairman and non-executive director of Million Hope. He
is an independent non-executive director of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWDCL"), Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited (the Manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”)) and Hongkong
International Theme Parks Limited (owner and operator
of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort), and a director of a
number of public and private companies in Hong Kong
and overseas. During the period from 3 October 2016 to
22 December 2016, Mr. Cha was an independent non-
executive director of Munsun Capital Group Limited
("MCGL"). The securities of HKRI, Million Hope, NWDCL,
CREIT and MCGL are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Cha holds an honorary doctorate degree of Social Science
from City University of Hong Kong. He is a Justice of
the Peace. He is a member of One Country Two Systems
Research Institute Limited, a governing board member
of China-United States Exchange Foundation, a board
member of the Real Estate Developers Association
of Hong Kong, the chairman of Qiu Shi Science &
Technologies Foundation, a trustee of Sang Ma Trust
Fund and an honorary trustee of Oregon State University
Foundation. He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Daid,
Johnson who is a non-executive director of the Company.
Mr. Cha is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
("CCM Trust”), CCM Capital Corporation (“CCM Capital”)
and LBJ Regents Limited (“LBJ”), and the executive
chairman of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”). Each of
CCM Trust, CCM Capital, LBJ and Mingly is a substantial
shareholder of the Company discloseable under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO").

EFREREEREBE

EE

ERBEE ToB AAREFERIHITE
B R —NAN\NEMALRER EVEZRRE
FHEBREERB ELEAEBEEEE
SEERAB ([EBEE]) 2EERHTE
B REFEERIATES - RAHERR
RERAR ([HER]) BEEEEE (I
B)VERAA(BEEXGE (I BEEXEE
AN Z2EBA)REBEBREIELERRAA
(BERBIRULEERECHEERKEE)
ZEBIUFHTES URTZEEBREID
BRIARBZEE - R=-ZE—RF+A=H
EIZ-ARFE+ZAZHZHEB BEXLER
BEREAEEERLAA (HERER]) 2B
FHTES -BEBHEE - X HUHR -TEE
XEARERERCEBSFIRBE MM ET-
BEEEREEBETAB 2R EBLENER
TEN-BARKFEHL KA —BEMHHRF
DERATBIZHE FERXRESCSESEER
E EBMERRAESE RERFEESS
FTE-EERMESEITEA URBEE M
UREBESEREBEITA - BREMEREZ
R BEREEERRQAIHTES TR
4 JRACCM Trust (Cayman) Limited ([CCM
Trust |) ~ CCM Capital Corporation ([ CCM
Capital J) %2 LBJ Regents Limited ([LBJ |) =
ES UREBHEBEREBRAB ([HH])
21T ERE o CCM Trust » CCM Capital ~ LBJ
BHNYRARABRBERZRBER ([F5
REAEWREI]) EXVEAFHRENEERR
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Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 73, joined the Group
in 1989 and is the Managing Director of the Company.
Mr. Wong also serves as the chairman of the General
Business Committee and the Property Acquisition/
Disposal Committee; and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong is the deputy chairman and non-
executive director of Million Hope, whose securities
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Before he joined the
Group, he was a director for several listed companies
and a director of HKRI (whose securities are listed on the
Stock Exchange) until his resignation in December 2001.
Mr. Wong is also a director of all the subsidiaries of the
Group. He has extensive experience in the construction
and real estate fields. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor degree
in science from San Diego State University and a master
degree of science in civil engineering from Carnegie-
Mellon University in the United States of America. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Tai Sai Ho (Alias: David), aged 67, is an executive
director and the General Manager of the Group. Mr.
Tai also serves as a member/the acting chairman of
the General Business Committee and the Property
Acquisition/Disposal Committee; and a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tai joined the Group in
1989 and has extensive experience in public and private
sectors of the building and civil engineering industries
in Hong Kong. Mr. Tai is a non-executive director of
Million Hope, whose securities are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also a director of all the subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Tai holds a master degree in business
administration from Asia International Open University
in Macau, a master degree in construction management
from University of New South Wales in Australia and a
bachelor degree in civil engineering from National Cheng
Kung University in Taiwan. Mr. Tai is a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors (FHKIoD) and the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (FHKICM).
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Mr. Lo Kai Cheong (Alias: Casey), aged 68, has been an
executive director of the Company since December 2017.
Mr. Lo joined the Group in 1996 and is the financial
controller and the company secretary of the Group.
He also serves as a member of the General Business
Committee and the Property Acquisition/Disposal
Committee of the Company. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He has extensive
finance and accounting experience in various industries.
He holds a bachelor of business degree in accounting and
a master degree in business administration from Edith
Cowan University in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of
CPA Australia (CPA (Aust.)) and a fellow of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and The
Association of International Accountants (FAIA).

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 67, has been a non-
executive director of the Company since November
2001. Mr. Cha has over 40 years of experience in venture
capital and investment management and is currently a
director of C.M. Capital Advisors (HK) Limited. He is a
non-executive director of HKRI and China International
Capital Corporation Limited (the securities of these
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange) and a
director of CCM Capital and LBJ, and a non-executive
director of Mingly. Each of CCM Capital, LBJ and Mingly
is a substantial shareholder of the Company discloseable
under Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Cha is also an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Commercial Bank
Limited and a director of a number of other companies
in Hong Kong and overseas. He is active in many non-
profit making organizations including Qiu Shi Science
& Technologies Foundation, Moral Education Concern
Group, a member of the Finance Committee and of the
Council of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and a member of the President’s Global
Advisory Council at Carnegie Mellon University. He is a
brother of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson who is the non-
executive Chairman of the Company.

EMERE (BB Casey) 685 BH=-Z
—tF T ARERERQBHITES - ERLE
R—ANAAREMAREER  REREE 2B
BEFRDNANE BIAEEERAA—REHRZE
EERMERE HEZEEEE -BTALE
RAETHEBARZEE - FRZETEZH
KRS HHRBRE EL5H - FIFERMEdith
Cowan UniversityE st 2R ¥ 2+ 2N R TR
EEEEIB N EAEABRMNIESTEL
S8 BARASHMASRERSTHMBE 2

ERBRE 675 B-EZE—F+—AiE
FERRABAHFHTES - EXERAKRERR
REEEHHZBAWOFLR REFACM.
Capital Advisors (HK) Limited 2% - A&
BEERTEEERSMBROERAR (ZE
NAIZHBHFEIRBRLET) 2HHITES
I B CCM Capital " LBIZEER BN 2 FEHIT
¥ E o CCM Capital - LBIR & N9 BRA TR
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FHTESRZREBREIAFZES-
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Dr. Zhang Wei, aged 64, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since June 2019 and an
alternate director to Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson since
May 2019. He is currently an executive director and the
chief executive officer of Mingly. Mingly is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO. Dr. Zhang is an independent non-
executive director of Dadi International Group Limited,
the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Before he joined Mingly in 2011, he had taught
Development Economics and Chinese Economy at the
University of Cambridge in the United Kingdom since
2000. He was also the founding director of Economic
Research Centre for Greater China in Cambridge. In
1980s, Dr. Zhang worked as a government official in
the PRC, among the posts he held, there were Director
of Mayor’s Office in Tianjin, Secretary of the Municipal
Committee of the Communist Youth League, Chairman
of Tianjin Economic and Technological Development
Zone (TEDA), and Chairman of Committee of Foreign
Trade and Economic Relations of Tianjin Municipal
Government. He was also a member of the 13th National
Congress of the Chinese Communist Party. He obtained
a bachelor degree in economics from Peking University,
a master degree in public administration from Harvard
University and a doctor of philosophy in economics from
the University of Oxford.
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Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 66, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since November
2001. Mr. Chan also serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has been an executive director of The
Luk Hoi Tong Company, Limited since 1973. Mr. Chan is
the founder of the “Li Zhi Bursary” of Tsinghua University
in the PRC. He is also the Vice-Chairman of “Love Relay
Grant-in-Aid” of Fudan University in the PRC since
September 2005. His community services include having
served as a director of YMCA and as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of
the Hong Kong Housing Society.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, aged 60, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since September
2004. Dr. Lau also serves as the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Dr. Lau is an Associate Dean and BBA (Hons)
Program Director of the School of Business of the Hong
Kong Baptist University. He holds a bachelor degree
in commerce from Saint Mary’s University in Canada,
a master degree in business administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a doctorate degree
of philosophy in accounting from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario (CPA, CA) in Canada,
a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants
of British Columbia (CPA, CMA) in Canada, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA), and an associate member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (ATIHK). He was also
a president (1992-1993) of the City Lions Club of Hong
Kong.
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Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Alias: Dennis), aged 68, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company
since November 2001. Dr. Sun also serves as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Sun is the chairman of China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Sun has extensive experience
in the photographic products industry. He holds a
bachelor degree in pharmacy from the University of
Oklahoma, the United States of America, and a doctorate
degree of philosophy in business administration from
Southern California University for Professional Studies,
the United States of America. He is the Vice Patron of the
Community Chest of Hong Kong since 1999, the Honorary
Fellow of City University of Hong Kong and Chapter
Honoree of City University of Hong Kong Chapter of
Beta Gamma Sigma. Dr. Sun had served as the chairman
(November 2009 - October 2015) of the Advisory
Committee on Travel Agents and the Court member
(2010 — December 2015) of City University of Hong Kong.
Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 1999
and appointed as The Justice of the Peace in 2002.
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Senior Management

Mr. Au Yiu Man, aged 58, joined the Group in 1990. He
is a director of the Interior and Renovation Division of
the Group and has extensive experience in the building
industry in Hong Kong. He holds a higher diploma in civil
engineering (municipal) and endorsement certificate in
design of reinforced concrete & steel structures from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Chan Yiu Kei, Charles, aged 53, joined the Group
in 2010. He is a director of the Construction Division
of the Group. He has over 25 years of experience in
human resources management, employee training
and development, organization development and
consultation in Hong Kong. He holds a Master of Social
Science from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a
Master of Science in Human Resource Management and
Training from University of Leicester in United Kingdom
and a Postgraduate Diploma in Management Consulting
and Change from The University of Hong Kong. He is
a graduate of Corporate Coaching Program (CCP) of
Corporate Coach U Canada, a Certified Administrator
of The Myers-Briggs Type Indicator (MBTI), a Certified
Behavioral Consultant (DISC) of the Institute for
Motivational Living, a Certified Management Consultant
(CMCQ) of Institute of Management Consultants, and a
professional member (MIHRM) of Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resource Management.

Mr. Cheung Hok Chuen, aged 49, joined the Group in
1999. He was appointed as a director of the Building
Materials Division of the Group on 1 October 2010 and
is currently a director of the Construction Division of
the Group. Mr. Cheung has comprehensive experience
in the building industry in Hong Kong. He holds a BSc in
surveying from The University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Cheung Yiu Pan, aged 54, joined the Group in 2006.
He is a director of the Interior and Renovation Division
of the Group. Mr. Cheung has extensive experience in
the building industry in Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor
degree in quantity surveying from Edinburgh Napier
University and a master degree in construction and real
estate from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Chow Ka Fung, aged 50, joined the Group in 1998.
He is a director of certain divisions of the Group and
oversees the Property Development Division, Property
Investment Division as well as Property Agency and
Management Division. Mr. Chow specialises in property
development, investment, marketing, management
and project management in Hong Kong and the PRC.
He holds a bachelor degree in land management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chow is
a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice)
(Property and Facility Management) under the Surveyor
Registration Board (RPS). He is also a member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a
member of China Institute of Real Estate Appraisers and
Agents (MCIREA), a member of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Chow Kit, aged 43, joined the Group in 1999. He
is a director of the Building Materials Division of the
Group. He has over 19 years of experience in the design,
supply and installation of building materials. He holds a
Bachelor of Art in Economics and Mathematics from York
University, Canada.
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Mr. Ho Chi Tong, aged 54, joined the Group in 1998.
He is a director of the Construction Division, Building
Materials Division and Interior and Renovation Division
of the Group. He has extensive experience in quantity
surveying consultancy and construction contracting. He
holds a professional diploma in quantity surveying from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a Registered
Professional Surveyor (QS) under Surveyor Registration
Board (RPS) and a member of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Kong Wing Kin, aged 45, joined the Group in 1996.
He is a director of the Interior and Renovation Division of
the Group and has extensive experience in the building
industry in Hong Kong. He holds an associate degree in
facilities management from the City University of Hong
Kong, a professional diploma in occupational safety and
health from the Hong Kong Baptist University and a
bachelor degree in building surveying from the University
of Reading/The College of Estate Management in United
Kingdom.

Mr. Lin Tai Ling, Raymond, aged 54, joined the Group
in 2008. He is a director of the Property Agency and
Management Division of the Group. Mr. Lin has extensive
experience in project management. He holds a bachelor
degree in arts (architectural studies) and a bachelor
degree in architecture from The University of Hong Kong.
He is a Registered Architect of The Hong Kong Institute
of Architects.
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Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 60, joined the Group in 1990 and
is a director of the Construction Division and Interior and
Renovation Division of the Group. Mr. Lun has extensive
experience in the construction field in Hong Kong and
the PRC. He holds an associateship and a higher diploma
in the building technology and management from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of
The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB), Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM), Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS), and The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers — Building (MHKIE).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 59, joined the Group in
1989. He is a director of the Construction Division,
Building Materials Division and Interior and Renovation
Division of the Group. He has 37 years of experience in
the public and private sectors of the building and civil
engineering industries in Hong Kong. He holds a diploma
in management studies, a post-experience certificate
in building studies and a higher certificate in structural
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a bachelor degree in construction management
and economics. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of the directors and
chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

(i) Long position in the shares of the Company

EERRO HREMRREEREZ

HaRRE

REZZB-NWFZA=1+—-—HB EERESTH
ABRADB 2RO KABBERD - R
RARBRIEE K BERGIFEXVERE35215%
AFBEZETMA  RRE LT R R ER10PT
BETROTAEBETRESRG 2BETH
(MREEF R BASA QR KRB 2 s

LI

(i) REDARGDZHER

Approximate
percentage of

Total issued share
Number of number of capital
ordinary ordinary (Note vi)
shares held shares held HE#T
Name Capacity FsEER FREER REABHEIL
i 5% L {E By (Biztvi)
Cha Mou Sing, Payson Beneficial owner 26,537,925
ERE EREEA
Interest of controlled corporations 19,071,502
SEEEER (Note i)
(Bi)
Beneficiary of discretionary trusts 531,981,820 577,591,247 52.94%
MEEEZZRA (Note ii)
(Kiztin)
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Beneficial owner 37,795,157
TiE EREEBA
Interest of controlled corporation 4,270,975
ZEREEER (Note iii)
(B iii)
Interest of spouse 5,485,487 47,551,619 4.35%
BB R (Note iv)
(KFritiv)
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Approximate
percentage of

Total issued share
Number of number of capital
ordinary ordinary (Note vi)
shares held shares held HERT
Name Capacity g BR FREER REBHEIL
s EL) £ (| ag (Biztvi)
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 17,385,721 17,385,721 1.59%
itz EXZHEBA
Lo Kai Cheong Beneficial owner 7,374,137
EHME ERFEEA
Interest of spouse 2,348,422 9,722,559 0.89%
Bl (Note v)
(Bitv)
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson Beneficial owner 8,963,500
BiE ERBEA
Beneficiary of discretionary trusts 539,500,961 548,464,461 50.27%
BEETEzERA (Note i)
(BiEtii)
Chan Pak Joe Beneficial owner 2,830,100 2,830,100 0.25%
(=l ERFEEA
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter Beneficial owner 3,759,950 3,759,950 0.34%
21’ EREEA
Sun Tai Lun Beneficial owner 3,078,000 3,078,000 0.28%
BAfR EXZHEBA
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106

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

These shares are held by Accomplished Investments
Limited and Kola Heights Limited, companies that
are wholly owned by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson.

These shares are held under certain but not
identical discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson are
among the members of the class of discretionary
beneficiaries.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in
the Company arise from the fact that he owns 50%
of the share capital of Executive Plaza Limited, which
holds 4,270,975 shares of the Company.

These shares are held by Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai,
the wife of Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart.

These shares are held by Ms. Lee Kwai Lin, the wife
of Mr. Lo Kai Cheong.

The percentage is calculated based on the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31
March 2019 (i.e. 1,090,831,576 shares).
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(ii) Share options

Directors’ interests in share options are set out in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019,
none of the directors and chief executive of the
Company or their associates held any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above and the award shares granted under
the Company’s share award scheme which vested on 30
June 2018, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the directors or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe
for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
rights during the year.
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INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 March
2019, in addition to those interests of the directors and
chief executive of the Company as disclosed above, the
interests of the shareholders in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

REESRUMRGHAATRENK
Riga

BAQRRA R-ZZFE-NF=R=1t—8H"
BREXFIRBESRARNARSTRABZZ
ZEm RRRARQFRG RERERKRD S -
BEARTBRADARERESFRBERMEXV
3R ATFE B M ERMT

RARBARDZHER

Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital

Number of (Note iv)
ordinary HE BT
Name Capacity shares held BRABNE DT
“5% 3] mEERREA (Wiztiv)
CCM Trust Trustee 487,702,041 44.70%
(EHPN (Note i)
Interest of controlled corporations (Hreti)
ZEEEER
Mingly Beneficial owner 104,243,301 9.55%
BEREEA (Note ii)
Interest of controlled corporations (Hratii)
ZEEEER
CCM Capital Beneficial owner 78,866,272 7.22%
BEREEA (Note ii)
(Hratii)
LBJ Trustee 67,829,571 6.21%
(EHPN (Note iii)
Interest of controlled corporation (Wt &tiii)
RELEzER
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Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

These share interests comprise 383,458,740 shares directly
held by CCM Trust and 104,243,301 shares held indirectly
through Mingly and its wholly owned subsidiaries. CCM
Trust is interested in 87.5% equity interest in Mingly. CCM
Trust is holding the 383,458,740 shares as the trustee of
certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which
members of the Cha Family (comprising, inter alios, Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson,
being the directors of the Company) are among the
discretionary objects.

These share interests comprise 3,732,928 shares directly
held by Mingly and 78,866,272 shares and 21,644,101
shares held indirectly through CCM Capital and Mingly
Asia Capital Limited, respectively. CCM Capital and Mingly
Asia Capital Limited are direct wholly owned subsidiaries
of Mingly.

These share interests comprise 61,022,931 shares directly
held by LBJ and 6,806,640 shares held indirectly through
Bie Ju Enterprises Limited, its wholly owned subsidiary. LBJ
is holding the 61,022,931 shares as the trustee of certain
but not identical discretionary trusts of which members
of the Cha Family (comprising, inter alios, Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, being the
directors of the Company) are among the discretionary
objects.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019 (i.e.
1,090,831,576 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the
Company has not been notified by any persons (other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company)
who had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the directors (not being
the independent non-executive directors) (excluding
director appointed after the year end) of the Company
in businesses which compete or were likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the principal businesses
of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules were as follows:

ESRNUBRRGhcHG

REER ARAES (BALFHITESKRIN
ETERERFAAREZRENES) RELXE
BErEXBEESEEARFIUERTEAR
FH-MRELEHRUETFREZEMEREH
BRESNT

Name of
Name of director (Note i) company Nature of interest Competing business (Note /i)
EspE (W) ARAEB BEME BEUEY (i)
Cha Mou Sing, Payson HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the class of (@) Property development and
ERE EREZE discretionary beneficiaries of certain but not investment
identical discretionary trusts of which the MERRRRE
trustees are deemed substantial shareholders
of HKRI under Part XV of the SFO (b) Property management, leasing
EBEXEERETIRNEEEZBEIEAL and marketing services
BlzME MRERESRBERAEXVE 2% NWEER HERTHERERY
BRAZEAARRATREEIERR
NWDCL Independent non-executive director of NWDCL ~ (a) Property development and
R HttRZBYFHITES investment
NEERKRE
(b) Property management, leasing
and marketing services
NEER HERTSEERY
CREIT Independent non-executive director of Eagle (@) Property investment
BEEEET Asset Management (CP) Limited, the manager MERE
of CREIT
EEEEERE (BE)BRAR (BEEXEEZE (b) Property management, leasing
BA)ZBUFHTES and marketing services
WEER HERTSERERY
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the class of (@) Property development and
ERE EBHEE discretionary beneficiaries of certain but not investment
identical discretionary trusts of which the MERRRRE
trustees are deemed substantial shareholders
of HKRI under Part XV of the SFO (b) Property management, leasing

EREXEERETTRANBEEACHNESEAL and marketing services
BIZHE  MREESRBEGAEXVE %% NEEE HERTSHEERY
ERAZEAIARBABBREIZRR
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Notes:

0]

(if)

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
are non-executive directors of the Company, who are
not involved in the daily management of the Group.
Accordingly, the Company is capable of carrying its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from the
abovementioned competing businesses.

In addition, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson held share interests,
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart held share interests and
directorships and Mr. Lo Kai Cheong held directorships
in certain private companies (the “Private Companies”)
which engage in property investment and serviced
apartment or hotel operation. As the Board of the
Company is independent of the boards of the Private
Companies and has a different board composition to the
respective boards of the Private Companies (the Board
of the Company comprises of three executive directors,
three non-executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors), the Company operates its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from the businesses
of the Private Companies.

Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries,
affiliated companies or by way of other forms of
investments.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that are
significant in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent
company or any subsidiary of its parent company was

a party and in which a director of the Company or his
connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION AND
INSURANCE

The Company’s articles of association provides that
every director, auditor or other officer of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a director, auditor or other officer
of the Company in defending any proceedings, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted. Such permitted indemnity provision is in force
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and at the date of
this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance coverage for directors and
officers of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme described above, the
Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for undertaking the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 78% of the revenue of the Group
and the largest customer is an independent third party,
accounted for about 49% of the revenue of the Group.
Aggregate purchases for the year ended 31 March 2019
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less
than 30%.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates, or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) has any interest in the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges
relating to the retirement benefits schemes are set out in
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.22 OF
LISTING RULES

The financial assistance to affiliated companies of the
Company, and guarantees given for banking facilities
granted to affiliated companies of the Company named
in the first column in the table below, in aggregate
amounted to approximately HK$1,079,069,000 which
represented approximately 20.5% of the total assets of
the Company at 31 March 2019. Details of which are as
follows:

*EEJ:T'E*EEJJ%B 22{F e th iz 1

]

>

REB-—NEFE=ZRA=+—H AAQa 2B

RARU U BEBRAETFEITRER

ZARB BB AR ZRITRHEFH ZER

HREEHN £ 78%51,079,069,000T ' HEERALQ
A2 BEEN205% BREAFENT:

Total amount of financial
assistance given to,
committed capital injection

Company'’s to and guarantees given

equity interest for facilities granted to,

in affiliated affiliated company

company [BEARRAMZHBEER -

¥ NN AEOBEARMELZ

REBARZ EERRBETHELARZ

Name of affiliated company BEARER i 7 MEFEHZERER
HK$'000

BEFT

Haining Jiafeng Real Estate BEZERHERRLA 49% 108,714
Development Limited (eE]) (Note 1)
(“Haining") (HrzE1)
AG Acquisition M (BVI) Limited AG Acquisition M (BVI) Limited 25% 24,209
(“AG Acquisition”) and its (TAG Acquisition 1) & (Note 2)
subsidiaries HItB AR (Ktat2)
Victorious Troops Limited Victorious Troops Limited 50% 550,000
(“Victorious Troops”) and its (I Victorious Troops 1) & (Note 3)
subsidiaries HITB DA (Hfat3)
Gallant Elite Enterprises Limited ~BGCEERAT ([HEE]) K 50% 146,146
("Gallant Elite") and its HKt BN 7 (Note 4)
subsidiaries (Hrzt4)
Great Splendor Enterprises Limited Great Splendor Enterprises 50% 250,000
(“Great Splendor”) and Limited ([ Great Splendor | & (Note 5)
its subsidiaries HITB AT (HtaE5)
1,079,069
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Notes:

The Group has guaranteed to a bank in Hong Kong for
securing the standby letter of credit of HK$108,714,000 for
the period from 12 December 2018 to 11 December 2019
issued by a bank in Hong Kong to a bank in PRC which
granted a bank loan to Haining.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group advanced and made
available to AG Acquisition shareholder loans amounting
to approximately HK$24,209,000 which are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The total capital commitment shall be contributed by
the Group in proportion to its equity interest in the joint
venture in the event that the Victorious Troops requires
funding (i) in performing discharging and fulfilling
any and all of its obligations under the Share Purchase
Agreement to acquire an industrial building eventually
and/or (ii) in settling construction and redevelopment cost
of the industrial building.

The total capital commitment shall be contributed by
the Group in proportion to its equity interest in the joint
venture in respect of any funding need arising from any
payment obligation of the Gallant Elite concerned.

The Group shall provide shareholder’s loan for a sum
up to HK$185,000,000 which shall be unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed term of repayment.
In addition, an indemnity (subject to a maximum liability
of HK$65,000,000) was provided by the Group to five
limited partnerships which are affiliates of the majority
shareholder of Great Splendor, who had provided a
corporate guarantee as required under the term loan
facilities granted to the wholly owned subsidiary of Great
Splendor for (i) securing the interest payment obligations;
(ii)) completion and cost overrun undertaking of the
property development; and (iii) the full and punctual
payment of the secured liabilities as referred to in the
term loan as and when the same shall be due and payable.
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The proforma combined statement of financial position

LB AR -_ZE-AF=ZRA=+—HB2

of the above affiliated companies at 31 March 2019 is as  BZSHFBMRARNOT :
follows:
HK$000
BEFTT
Current assets REBEE 1,534,431
Current liabilities RBEE (3.076,067)
Non-current assets FREEE 2,371,739
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (8,606)
Net assets EERE 821,497
DONATIONS R

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$310,749 (2018: HK$405,834).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the number
of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

RER AEEEHEEREMBRIEBYE
310,749t (=& — )\ : /8%5405,8347) ©
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Managing Director
25 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7 A% U i i

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 127 to 349, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

118

=2

FHANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS
LIMITED (B RIZEZERER A E) ZHERE
(REEBHEAME L ZHR L)

BR

e (UTEBIERM ESEFFIH
M 51272 553498 Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (E S AIZZERBR AR
(UTHEBIEARREMB AR (LT4
BAIEEE]) NEREMERE LB BEHRE
BER-_ZE-IAEFE=ZA=+—HBWHGEEUHK
MRREBEZALFENGFREEBRR KRS
BakEMEERER SRR BRILS
EREREBRURSEMBHRERM T BFE
ZEHBEME-

EMRE 2EGEUBRRCRETBE
A AEEME (FBIMBRELR) EEMH
BitRRT BEER-ZE-AF=A=+-
BNGESMBRARBEZRLFENGS
BHERARGERERE WECBREB (D
AMRA) MWBERZ DR -

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT %8 7. A% 3k Fli 3

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

H

e

HEBEXER 2

Key audit matter

ARELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNENARERREXEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEZIGE

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter due to the
significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements associated with determining the fair
value.

ENBEAFESRERTTEEZBABBERERH
i AP RENR 2 HERNSERERSE

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s investment
property portfolio comprised agricultural,
commercial, industrial and residential properties
and was stated at fair value of HK$2,225,570,000,
accounting for approximately 42% of the Group’s
total assets as at 31 March 2019 with a gain on
change in fair value of HK$117,939,000 recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year then ended.

RUNGEMEBRERMFI17TAIEE: SBSEEREWNE
HEBEEEX B IXEREENEBEATES
7 #52,225,570,000T  1f EEER-ZF—HIF=A
=+—HBEENRY% RNEBEZALFEZEEE
mRAER AT EEE 2 5E%117,939,0007T

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment properties included:

B REVEZGHERITHEFEE:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;

A ER 2 RED - FRERFEML |

Obtaining an understanding from the
Valuer about the valuation techniques,
the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used
in the valuations;

T BR A AT R th 5 S B R 2 (T % - 1)
$ BRI A2 TR BA N B
RESHASHRHUSE;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT i 7. 1% 8 ifi 3t 5

HREBEXER &)

Key audit matter

HREELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNEANARERREXEE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REYXEZI1GE (&

All of the Group’s investment properties are
measured using the fair value model based on
valuation conducted by an independent firm of
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
in determining the fair values of the Group's
investment properties, the Valuer applied a
market value basis which involves, inter-alia,
significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements, representing appropriate market
rent, capitalisation rate and adjusted market price
that has taken into account of property-specific
adjustments including location, land quality and
timing of referenced transactions.

BEREEHRENELBRBEBYUEXRMGELQT ([f4
BT ) RO FEENFTEMAEL 2 (A1 - AR S B
BWHRRMFAMWE RNEE BSEEREWE QT
B HEMEATERE EFPR (AFEEB)E
ARTUBRGABBNEARAE DEEHSHEE
BERERRERABTSER (CEREBREWELE-
THERRAUSERZLEZER)

o Evaluating the reasonableness of significant
unobservable inputs by comparing the
market rent estimated by the Valuer against
market data or rental of existing lease,
benchmarking capitalisation rate against
market data and comparing adjusted market
price with comparable market transactions
for comparable property in similar location
and condition on a sample basis; and

BRME LB AEMA 2T S HEERTAD
SHESREHEZHS EARRETAT
S8E  REART SEREELH R RAMR
ZAULBMENATLEBETERS  UFEEX
TUBEERABBENSEME R

e Assessing the integrity of information
provided by the management to the Valuer
by comparing details of rentals on a sample
basis to the respective underlying existing
lease agreements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cContinued)

BRBMEFTGEESMERRRIED
B =)

ERE (BFBEER) ETETHBRES
HMERTEXRAE RETEXEREE -
IR

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

124

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cContinued)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Lam Ching.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
A HR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—HALEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\E
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
Mt T BT T BT T
(restated)
(&==&5)
Continuing operations BERSEEK
Revenue PN 5 1,948,123 2,432,443
Cost of sales HERA (1,727,267) (2,176,208)
Gross profit EF 220,856 256,235
Other income Hbgr A 7 7,720 6,179
Other gains and losses HiwHE R ER 8 (430) 30,705
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERSEZHEZ
plant and equipment g 166,054 100
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEMB ARz W&
subsidiaries (E5#8) 41 318,106 (324)
Reversal of impairment losses BEREEE 9 113 -
Marketing and distribution costs ™iGHEER 2 HE R (12,174) (17,779)
Administrative expenses 1TTHRX (248,897) (230,254)
Change in fair value of REMEZATFEEH
investment properties
- Realised gains on disposals - HERZEBR KR 44,325 344,230
- Unrealised gains —REBHWR 73,614 87,718
Share of profit of an associate DAL N B s Al 89 80
Share of profit of joint ventures o {h & &R %EER 74,423 125,677
Finance costs & 10 (15,151) (16,909)
Profit before taxation BR#E A& 7 11 628,648 585,658
Taxation BiIE s 14 (62,425) (17,165)
Profit for the year from HEREERARFERF
continuing operations 566,223 568,493
Discontinued operations BARIEKEEK
Profit for the year from ERLEREEBAFE
discontinued operations & A 12 11,799 47,805
Profit for the year REERF 578,022 616,298
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS % & H %
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=HA=t+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\E
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt T BETT BT T
(restated)
(&&=E=5)
Profit for the year REERF
For continuing operations REFERLEER 566,223 568,493
For discontinued operations FEHOKRIEEEE 11,799 47,805
578,022 616,298
Earnings per share BREF
For continuing and MIFERLER
discontinued operations ERIEREERMS
Basic (HK cents) B (GB4L) 16 55.7 62.4
Diluted (HK cents) g OBL) 16 54.9 60.7
For continuing operations RFEREEBMS
Basic (HK cents) EZR (FB4L) 16 54.5 57.5
Diluted (HK cents) g OB{L) 16 53.8 56.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

22 N\
e

18 7 S At 4 i) W4 3R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—HALEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year AEERR 578,022 616,298
Other comprehensive Hih2mE (X H) s
(expense) income:
Items that may be subsequently HREZEHN 7 EEZEmZHE -
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising REBINEBEECERER
on translation of foreign
operations (4,266) 6,677
Release of exchange reserve R & M T B R BREE S (1A
upon disposal of a foreign
operation 1,285 -
Share of exchange differences HEELECERER
of a joint venture (7,533) 10,039
(10,514) 16,716
Item that will not reclassified to T EEHF P EEEm2HEE -
profit or loss:
Revaluation gain on property, REBRZREVERIE - BRER
plant and equipment upon REZ2EHRE
transfer to investment
properties - 25,572
(10,514) 42,288
Total comprehensive income for AREEZ2HNZEEE
the year 567,508 658,586
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A B B IR DL AR
AT 31 MARCH 2019
R-ZB-NAE=A=1+—-H

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-hEF —E-N\E
=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt T BT T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REY% 17 2,225,570 1,712,360
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1¥ =R RE 18 393,119 588,758
Prepaid lease payments BAHEERE 19 - 5,851
Interest in an associate N T 2 R 20 7,110 7,021
Interests in joint ventures EELEER 21 396,984 464,325
Loans to joint ventures BEEDEER 22 498,289 63,646
Deposit paid for acquisition of ~ BATWEKHBATRE
a subsidiary - 50,638
Deposit paid and prepayment ENKRBREMERSE
for acquisition of investment REMARE
properties 90,465 -
Deferred tax assets EEHIBERE 37 2,538 358
3,614,075 2,892,957
Current assets RBEE
Properties under BRPZGEME
development for sale 23 322,596 319,607
Properties held for sale HESEME 7,441 7,441
Inventories FE 24 15,357 15,293
Amounts receivable on &N ITREMRIE
contract work 25 - 96,992
Retention money receivable FEWIRE S 26 - 246,029
Contract assets BRNEE 27 267,080 -
Debtors, deposits and BRHE -ZER
prepayments AT RIR 28 114,148 266,695
Prepaid lease payments T HEENIE 19 - 207
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUE & SHFIE 29 17 17
Amount due from FE R BA R A £ FRIE
a related party 30 24,364 -
Loans to joint ventures EETEER 22 24,209 137,482
Financial assets at fair value ERBHRATETE
through profit or loss ZHBERE 31 519 -
Investments held for trading BHIEEEZRE 31 - 580
Taxation recoverable ] 3R [E] 18 10,394 5,096
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 32 869,514 1,070,124
1,655,639 2,165,563
Assets classified as held for sale 2D EHABIELHESE 33 - 282,067
1,655,639 2,447,630
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %5 & B4 % ik Ut &
AT 31 MARCH 2019
R=ZE—-hE=A=+—-8

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
=BA=+—H =H=+H=—8
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FT & BT T BT T
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts payable on ENEHNIRMRE
contract work 25 - 470,129
Trade and other payables B RRIE R B AR FRIE 34 772,165 720,313
Provisions e 35 87,637 =
Taxation payable FEf+ 818 66,813 20,782
Bank loans — amounts due BRTEF-NR—FR
within one year FEAS R IE 36 351,000 395,507
1,277,615 1,606,731
Net current assets REEEFEE 378,024 840,899
Total assets less current liabilities #EEERTHERS 3,992,099 3,733,856
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Provisions BiE 35 200,299 =
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIEAE 37 12,356 8,110
212,655 8,110
3,779,444 3,725,746
Capital and reserves BERK#E
Share capital N 38 109,083 104,618
Reserves & 3,670,361 3,621,128
3,779,444 3,725,746

The consolidated financial statements on pages 127 to  #127EE$349E 5| 2 RE U HKRK - K&
349 were approved and authorised for issue by the board FERZ-ZZE-NFARAA-tHHRERRE
of directors on 25 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf i WHTHESKREE

by:

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Tai Sai Ho
FitE it =
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EF

SR AN P A AT 2018/2019 4E 131



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

22 /N S s
5 M 25

LIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-NF=A=+-HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRERAER
Shares
Share- held for
based share Property
Share  Contributed Special compensation award  revaluation  Translation Goodwill - Accumulated
capital surplus reserve reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AR
NROZAE  RBH ES
BE BARE  KEEE  MERR ThEZRG 0 ERBR  RERE  BERE  EHEd EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AIn  E8Tn  E8Tn EBTn E%Tn #%Tn #ETn B%Tn BETn BETn
(Note 39) (Note 39)
(Wa39)  (W&E39)
At 1 April 2017 R=E-t5MmA-A 103,800 324,684 21,94 5196 (71,995) 982 (8,654) (78) 2,690,739 3,066,615
Profit for the year REEREF - - - - - - - - 616,298 616,298
Exchange differences arising on RERMEHELCETER
translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 6,677 - - 6,677
Share of exchange differences of MeRebEZERER
ajoint venture - - - - - - 10,039 - - 10,039
Revaluation gain on property, REZERENERNE BE
plant and equipment upon transfer to R EfEUE
investment properties - - - - - 25572 - - - 25572
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2EREAE - - - - - 25,572 16,716 - 616,298 658,586
Dividends paid (Note 15) Bt ZRE (H315) - - - - - - - - (71,06) (71,06)
Issue of shares upon exercise of TEBREMRTZRHA
share options 818 8,185 - (1,156) - - - - - 7847
Share options lapsed BREAN - - = (42) - - - - Q -
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREERURATA
share-based payments ZHE - - - 63,754 - - - - - 63,754
At 31 March 2018 R=E-NE=B=t1-H 104,618 332,869 21,94 67,752 (71,995) 26,554 8,062 (78) 3236023 3,725,746
Adjustment due to application of RRREEUBESRAENE
HKFRS 9 (Note 22) ifE A% (R22) - - - - - - - - (13871)  (13871)
At 1 April 2018 (restated) RZE-\§WA-A (£EH) 104,618 332,869 21,94 67,752 (71,995) 26,554 8,062 (18 32221%2 3711875
Profit for the year REREH - - - - - - - - 578,022 578,022
Exchange differences arising on RERMERELCETER
translation of foreign operations - - - - - - (4,266) - - (4,266)
Release of exchange reserve upon REEENXHRRRER G
disposal of a foreign operation - - - - - - 1,285 - - 1,285
Share of exchange differences of MiRELEZELER
ajoint venture - - - - - - (7,533) - - (7,533)
Total comprehensive (expense) AEERE (i) GELE
income for the year - - - - - - (10,514) - 578,022 567,508
Dividends paid (Note 15) Bt ZRE (Hi315) - - - - - - - - (78,463) (78463)
Dividend by way of distribution in specie of AEHIDRKEADZFAATRRE
subsidiaries (Note 15) (Ht15) - - - - - - - - (500048)  (500,048)
Issue of shares upon exercise of TREREMETZRH
share options 4465 71,979 - (11,033) - - - - - 65,411
Share options lapsed BRELY - - - @) - - - = b =
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREERIURAR A
share-based payments B = = = 12,760 = = = = = 12,760
Award shares vested SREBRHG - - - (67,024) 71,59 - - - (4,575) -
Sale of shares under share award scheme (£ ERAREH AT HRH - - - - 3% - - - 5 401
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-AFZB=1-A 109,083 404,848 21,94 2428 - 26,554 (2.452) (78) 3217020 3,779,444
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mAaBemER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—HALEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEF T
Operating activities EEXEK
Profit for the year REERF 578,022 616,298
Adjustments for: A
Taxation BIAX 67,712 32,003
Share of profit of an associate DG E D AR A (89) (80)
Share of profit of joint ventures DEEE L ERR (74,423) (125,677)
Dividend income BREWA (10) (8)
Interest income FEUA (2,969) (1,654)
Interest expense FMEZH 17,198 19,555
Depreciation of property, ME BRERZEZIE
plant and equipment 29,506 19,088
Net provisions made SHERETE 125,542 -
Equity-settled share-based D mEE R ARG X
payments Z I 12,760 63,754
Revaluation gain on properties RERZREVXERISE
held for sale upon transfer to FEMEZEGMREG
investment properties - (30,264)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BERREZ
plant and equipment & (166,039) (202)
Gain on change in fair value of RENEZ AT EESZ
investment properties & (117,939) (431,948)
(Gain) loss on disposal of HEWB AR Z
subsidiaries (&) EiE (318,106) 324
Loss on change in fair value of ZBRBEREATEFEZ
financial assets at fair value BREEATEEZHZ
through profit or loss BB 61 -
Gain on change in fair value of BEEEzREZ
investments held for trading AREZEZWE - (197)
Reversal of impairment losses BERESE (3.257) -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS %5 B &g

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-1F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEF T
Operating cash flows before EEESRHICEEREN
movements in working capital 147,969 160,992
Increase in inventories FEEM (440) (490)
Increase in properties under BRP2EEWEEM
development for sale (934,987) (319,607)
Decrease in properties held for sale  H{EFEYER D - 27,097
Decrease in amounts receivable on ~ EWEX TRFERD
contract work - 13,202
Decrease in retention money FE AR E & i
receivable - 35,657
Decrease in debtors, deposits and FEWRFIE - RE REMRERD
prepayments 75,500 113,013
Decrease in contract assets/liabilities, SHEE BEZHERD
net 88,694 -
Increase in amounts due from joint ~ fEUA & EFIERL N
ventures (847) -
Utilisation of provisions BARE (104,640) =
Increase in amounts payable on FBRENIREREREM
contract work - 125,331
(Decrease) increase in trade and ERRERE R E
other payables Rl 2) #& 0 (117,813) 2,382
Cash (used in) from (AR)REEEXK RS
operating activities (846,564) 157,577
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBRER (30,734) (36,138)
Interest paid 2RFE (15,151) (19,440)
Net cash (used in) from (AR)RBEEEXKZ
operating activities ReFHE (892,449) 101,999
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4/ B EmE#R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

2019 2018
— —E-NF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B BET T BEF T
Investing activities REXHK
Interest received EWFE 2,969 1,654
Dividend received from financial EWEBBRERAFENE
assets at fair value through ZHBEEZRE
profit or loss 10 -
Dividend received from ERFEEEZRERE
investments held for trading - 8
Purchase of investment properties  FEBEREYE (86,384) (241,103)
Purchase of property, NENE BERZE
plant and equipment (8,507) (24,552)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEMERE
investment properties 197,136 -
Proceeds from disposal of HENE -BER
property, plant and equipment RIEREBRE 172,290 398
Proceeds from disposal of assets &%ﬁ@%%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ
classified as held for sale PR 278,712 24,784
Net cash outflows on IW%W%
acquisitions of subsidiaries BeRHEEE 40 (454,506) (443,427)
Net cash inflows on disposal of HHENRB LR Z
subsidiaries BERAFE 41 1,252,682 306,780
Direct attributable costs paid for BREBLEMBARENZ
disposal of subsidiaries HERGRA (2,896) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of ERBEHRBARRE
a subsidiary - (50,638)
Deposit paid and prepayment ERRERENERER
for acquisition of investment ENMIE
properties (90,465) -
Loans to joint ventures BENEER (431,462) (58,907)
Repayments of loans from EELEEEREER
joint ventures 113,273 -
Dividend received from BEREEREZRE
a joint venture 134,952 -
Capital injection to a joint venture ~ EIAEHEITE (547) -
Withdrawal of pledged RREEFRITER
bank deposits - 139,263
Net cash from (used in) RE (BR)REXKEZ
investing activities BEEEE 1,077,257 (345,740)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS %5 B &g

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B BETT BEF T
Financing activities MEEK
Dividends paid EfRZRE (78,463) (71,056)
Dividend by way of distribution in ~ UE¥2RKKBATZ
specie of subsidiaries ER2IkRE 12 (327,167) -
New bank loans raised HERITER 1,271,000 2,283,526
Repayment of bank loans BERITEN (1,315,507) (1,743,146)
New other loans raised HEHMER - 29,783
Repayment of other loans BEEMER - (36,986)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon  THEBREMBITRI 2
exercise of share options Fri8RIE 65,411 7,847
Sale of shares under HERMRBFEITH
share award scheme 12 401 -
Net cash (used in) from (AR)REMEXKEZ
financing activities HE& B8 (384,325) 469,968
Net (decrease) increase in HeRBREEE
cash and cash equivalents R B nF 5 (199,517) 226,227
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNRERREEE
the beginning of the year 1,070,124 840,074
Effect of foreign exchange EXGEsoxE
rate changes (1,093) 3,823
Cash and cash equivalents FRAERBLZE
at the end of the year, REBITEBERS
representing bank balances
and cash 869,514 1,070,124
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Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2001 Second Revision), Chapter
22 of the Laws of Cayman Islands. Its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
construction, interior and renovation works, supply
and installation of building materials, property
investment, property development, provision of
property agency and management services and sale
of health products.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—HALEE

Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited (RERIZIZRERAF) ([4H
RADRBEHEHEEHE-+2ELQ
AR (ZZT-FE BN - ERE
HEEAMAYA—BERRERAAE)
HBRONEBHERXZMERAT ([H
R D EH - AT zEMPEERE
DEFRBE AR FRODFTER
—EI R EE -

REMBRRIEE 25 BEIIAQT
ZHEEER-

ARAN—RREZERAB -HWE R
Al EBXRBREE KHREETE
HBEZRBEME  WERE  WER
B EREREERB 2 RZHREREE
2 SHE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % R & B 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BE=

138

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

GENERAL (continued)

As disclosed in notes 12 and 15, pursuant to a
resolution of the board of directors of the Company
on 22 February 2019, the Company declared a
special interim dividend, satisfied by distribution in
specie of the issued capital of its subsidiary, Million
Hope Industries Holdings Limited (“Million Hope™)
to the Company’s shareholders. The distribution was
made by way of allocating 2 Million Hope shares
for every 5 shares of the Company held by the
Company'’s shareholders. The distribution in specie
by the Company was recognised at the carrying
amount of the net assets of Million Hope and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Million Hope
Group”) attributable to the owners of the Company
as the directors of the Company considered that
Million Hope was ultimately under the control of
the same parties before and after the distribution.
Upon the distribution, the Group held no interest in
Million Hope Group and Million Hope Group ceased
to be subsidiaries of the Company. Million Hope
Group is engaged in design, supply and installation
of aluminium windows and curtain walls included
in the ‘building materials’ segment. Million Hope
Group's profit for the period from 1 April 2018 to 18
March 2019 (immediately before completion of the
distribution in specie) was presented as discontinued
operations in the consolidated financial statements
and the comparative figures were restated
accordingly. Details of the discontinued operations
are set out in note 12.

—REBEIA (&)

MK 12K 15 RIBAQARAR=-F
—hNWEZAZ+-HHNESEREER
ARATERESEPHRE  BRUEY S
KB AR ETEXERERAE ([E
TNERTRAZERXAAQTARRS
RIRE - DIRURAATIRRIFEZER
BARQNBRODEREMBRESRGOZS
RET - ARARNEBRAZTRDIRATR
HBRAZHBALES MAQEELEZ
WRENDRUARDTEEABLES
REMBLAR (GRBZF&E]) EEF
BEzRAERR D REAEETHBEF
ETEEFEEEETEETEA
ARBHMBAR X EEMREBIEE
RERBWSR HERZE STATESE
MRl B - ETEE_Z—\FHEA—
HE-Z—hF=A+ N\ BHENFE
(BEEYDIRTHKA RiRe M EREK
2 AR LEREXTR  WEEMETILE
BT CDRIEEEERNFBEHAME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first time in the

current year:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Definition of a Business

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with
HKFRS 4 “Insurance
Contracts”

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Transfers of
Investment Property

% R

RAMETREBITEEMBG R

A B R bl 4 Rz #R] RIS RT
BRMB®REER

RAFE XEFBERXRANTHE RS
FHET D SR 2 # 8] KRBT BB MK

HEAIRRE:

BRMBHREER
FNHK

BERMBRE
AR

N\

8

B (BRI BRE
REZEY)
-RBE-T=%

BERRKREER
ERZBIAR

ERNBRERER
F=R2BIAAR
BBRBHREER
FOEZETAR

BRETHER
EZtNH2
CHE

EBEER
FN TR 2ZETA
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REEFANZBAR
EEIPHEN

MERZRAMR

PUUSTEE CEY
25 BRI E

FBNER

EREBHBHREER
FUSIRBEN] -
HERERBMERE
ERFENRABT
&

ERABBMBHREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BHE=
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
the interpretation in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and financial positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 "“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying this Standard recognised at
the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening accumulated
profits (or other components of equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has
not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance
with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15,
the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and the
related interpretations.

BREAMMIIREETEEBMER
EE8 (&)

A B Rl 4 Rz #T R R A4S RT
ERMBHREED &)

BRT XPrish - A E R AR R A&1E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the
following major sources:

Construction contracts

Interior and renovation contracts -
building maintenance and renovation
contracting works

Installation of building materials contracts
— design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls;
and supply and installation of interior
products such as different types of
suspended ceiling system, metal cladding
system, demountable partition system,
fire related protection system, decorative
moulding, raised flooring and wood
flooring (“supply and installation of
ceiling system™)

Sales of properties

Sales of health products — wholesale
of Chinese and Western nutritional
supplements and management of
“HealthPlus” retail chain stores

Provision of property agency and
management services

Rental income from property investment
(not within the scope of HKFRS 15)

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies
resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are
disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

BREAMMIIREETEEBMER
EE0 &)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

21 BERAMBHRELENETIR
[REEFEHNZWAL (#)
BEXREAEEBMBREEUS
TERELEZRERE

ARREHR-ZFE-NFHA—H
ZEEUBRRKRER 2 EBMIET

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated

142

statement of financial position at 1 April UTHABE - AZSBEEREL
2018. Line items that were not affected by the REFATER -
changes have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at Impact of  HKFRS 15 of
31 March adopting 1 April
2018 HKFRS 15 2018*
B
BERMBRE
BER BA EAETIR
“E-N\E BEUERE W-B-N\%
ZA=1+-A EHE+EY MWA-BZ
EHZREE a2 BREE*
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt BT BETT BETT
Inventories FE (@) 15,293 28,055 43,348
Amounts receivable on e IRHNE
contract work (a) 96,992 (96,992) -
Retention money receivable EWRE S (b) 246,029 (246,029) =
Contract assets BHNEE (), (b) = 419,624 419,624
Debtors, deposits and EWHE e REMTE
prepayments (a) 266,695 14,229 280,924
Amounts payable on ERENIRNE
contract work (a) (470,129) 470,129 -
Trade and other payables FE R R HL At B FR0E @), (0 (720,313) (225,461) (945,774)
Provisions B (@) - (360,242) (360,242)
Contract liabilities EHNEE (© = (3.313) (3.313)
*  The amounts in this column are before the *  ARSEARARKABBUE

adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9.

BEENFENR 2SR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

In relation to construction contract, interior
and renovation contract and design, supply
and installation of aluminium windows and
curtain walls, previously accounted under
HKAS 11, the Group continues to apply
output method in estimating the performance
obligations satisfied up to date of initial
application of HKFRS 15. The Group applies
input method in estimating the performance
obligations satisfied for supply and
installation of ceiling system. HK$28,055,000,
HK$173,595,000, HK$14,229,000,
HK$228,774,000 and HK$360,242,000 of
amounts receivable/payable for contract work
were reclassified to inventories, contract assets,
debtors, deposits and prepayments, trade and
other payables and provisions, respectively.
Provisions for warranty costs and rectification
work recognised in relation to construction
contract, interior and renovation contract and
installation of building materials contract were
previously presented as amounts payable on
contract work.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

2. RAMITREBITEEMER

HER #7)

21 BERMBREERE+ AR
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JC ~ 8 16228,774,0007T & 78
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

BREAMMIIREETEEBMER
EER (&)

21 ERUMBRELERET RS
[REFEFEHNZWAL (#)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

BEXREAEEMBREREUSE
TERELEZRERE (@)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

144

Notes: (Continued) MisE: (48)

(b) Contract assets recognised in relation to (b) ERIZIBEVRENIRIER
construction contract, interior and renovation FERRE S 2ERESHN KR
contract and installation of building materials HEEIRSIRTEZEMBT
contract were previously presented as amounts BEBRAAEGHNEE-RER
receivable on contract work and retention HABE BEEIREH M
money receivable. At the date of initial REBIREARZEZEMR
application, retention money receivable of IREGHNELENERRE S B
HK$246,029,000 arising from construction 246,029,000 T EFAEBERE
contract, interior and renovation contract and BENFTHZBERERER 7
installation of building materials contract are AEE MZEREEN I EZE
conditional on the Group's achieving specified EREE-
milestones as stipulated in the contracts, and
hence such balance was reclassified to contract
assets.

() Contract liabilities recognised in relation to (0 Z%AIZIBENENIRIER

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

construction contract, interior and renovation
contract and installation of building materials
contract were previously presented as amounts
payable on contract work and deposits
received and advances from customers. As
at 1 April 2018, advances from customers of
HK$3,313,000 in respect of installation of
building materials contract previously included
in trade and other payables were reclassified
to contract liabilities.

EWZREUREFEMREBEZE
FIRGHN EMREBIRSE
HARZEEZEMBIRSOER
AENEBE-R=-_ZT—N\FMNA
— B ERIFTAENREBREM
EAREzZEEEMBIRS
HNE FFESFRIEB 3,313,000
T EHABEEGNARG-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. GAMIIREENEEME®R

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HER @)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 EBMBREEAETHR
Customers” (Continued) [REEFEHNZWA] (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial BRARAEBMBRERENSE
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) TERELEZEEME (&)

The following tables summarise the impacts of TREGAAE B IERELERZE
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated +HREHARERNR -_ZSE—NE=A
statement of financial position as at 31 March =S+ —H2HREUERRRREEG
2019 and the consolidated statement of CHEERERPEZIEZEKRBEZE
cash flows for the current year for each of B A TEHTE LGB LR A
the line items affected. Line items that were Ao
not affected by the changes have not been
included.
Impact on the consolidated statement of USRI RR e
financial position
Amounts
without
As application of
reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
AR
ERMBRE
BRE+ER
fr2® HE ZEH
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bat BT BT BET T
Amounts receivable on contract FEWAK TR2FE
work (a) - 86,495 86,495
Retention money receivable ERRES (b) - 175,652 175,652
Contract assets RHNEE ), (b) 267,080 (267,080) -
Debtors, deposits and BYRIE RERBARE
prepayments (a) 114,148 (9,467) 104,681
Amounts payable on contract AKX TRRFE
work (a) - (420,333) (420,333)
Trade and other payables EARER EMEMFE (@) (772,165) 146,797 (625,368)
Provisions BB (@) (287,936) 287,936 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

146

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

In relation to construction contract, interior
and renovation contract and design, supply
and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls, previously accounted
under HKAS 11, the Group continues to
apply output method in estimating the
performance obligations satisfied. The
Group applies input method in estimating
the performance obligations satisfied for
supply and installation of ceiling system.
HK$91,428,000, HK$9,467,000, HK$146,797,000
and HK$287,936,000 of amounts receivable/
payable for contract work were reclassified
to contract assets, debtors, deposits and
prepayments, trade and other payables and
provisions, respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, retention money
receivable of HK$175,652,000 arising from
construction contract, interior and renovation
contract and installation of building materials
contract are conditional on the Group’s
achieving specified milestones as stipulated
in the contracts, and hence such balance was
reclassified to contract assets.

BREAMMIIREETEEBMER
EER (&)

21 ERUMBRELERET RS
[REFEFEHNZWAL (#)

BEXREAEEMBREREUSE
TERELEZRERE (@)

Bifa -

(@) BMERRBEBETENE+—
WARCEEIRAN KGR
BEIRGHORSEN HERE
HEEERER AEEEEEH
EELGACBITZENES-
BEERZERERAZAMS
AEEBRBBAAGHERET
WEHNEH -EWREAEHT
2 7} I8 78 #591,428,0007T ~ 78 ¥
9,467,0007T * & #¥£146,797,000
7t & 78 #5287,936,0007T 2 B E H
PEAGHNEE EBWRFE %S
REMRE -ENSHRERIME
ARIEBAREE-

by R=EBE—-—AE=A=+-—-0'H
BEIREGHN EHRHEBIRE
EHRREREMRIRENE
4 HY FEUWIR [E & 785 175,652,000
TEGEREEERBEREGHNTH
ZHEEREREE FAMEE B
BHESHIBEZANEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BAMITREEIITEMER

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash

HER #7)

21 ERMBRELERET RS
[REFEFEHNZWAL (#)

BEXREAEEMBREREUSE
TERELEZRERE (@)

HEARERBERNWTE

flows
Amounts
without
As application of
reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
AEA
ERUBHRE
BRE+THR
EH HE ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Operating activities HEER
Operating cash flows EEELLHA 2
before movements in EERET
working capital 147,969 (125,542) 22,427
Decrease in contract ANEE /BEFERY
assets/liabilities, net 88,694 (88,694) -
Decrease in amounts BREHNIRRERD
receivable on contract work - 10,497 10,497
Decrease in retention money FWIRE €D
receivable - 70,377 70,377
Decrease in debtors, deposits BYFE  REeRESRERD
and prepayments 75,500 9,467 84,967
Decrease in amounts payable EREHIRRERD
on contract work - (49,796) (49,796)
Decrease in trade and EATEREBESTERD
other payables (117,813) 69,051 (48,762)
Utilisation of provisions ARG (104,640) 104,640 -

Note: Consolidated statement of cash flows were
adjusted taken into the account the impacts
on the consolidated statement of financial
position upon the application of HKFRS 15.

MaE: RERERERDETREA
BB BREENE+ARY
REMBRRROLEBRT AU

m.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FHARTREETEEMERE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HH0 (&)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

148

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements
for (1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, (2)
expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial
assets, contract assets, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts and (3) general
hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in
HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at
31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as
at 1 April 2018, if any, are recognised in the
opening accumulated profits, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. RAFIIREECITIEEUTR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HER #7)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 22 BRMBREENFENE B

(Continued)

Accounting policies resulting from application
of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

Below illustrates the classification and
measurement (including impairment) of
financial assets and other items subject to
ECL under HKFRS 9 at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2018.

Investments held for trading to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

The Group has reassessed its investments
in equity securities classified as investments
held for trading under HKAS 39 as if the
Group had purchased these investments at
the date of initial application. Based on the
facts and circumstances as at the date of
initial application, HK$580,000 of the Group's
investments were held for trading and
continued to be measured at FVTPL.

BIR] (#)

AEAEEMBHRELENENRE
NS BERBMBERMES -

BEXRERAERAMBREENTN
REEZHERE

AT B AR 15 & 78 B 7 i 5 22 B 36
NEZABEEFHIERRO T
EERHEMBEREXNXRABEH
(Z2-N\FWmA—R)zo 8K
B (BERE) -

B EEBZREZEBERBEL
FlEGAEZHBEE

AEBERBEEFBESHENE
S+ hEEHFEHIEAREZ
EEREZRABRRE HOR
EEREXRKRAAHEBAZER
E-RBBARMBPNEERSE
S ANEE @B %5580,000 T 2 RE T
BEBETHEREBEREAYF
BEstE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FHARTREETEEMERE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG SH0 (@)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

150

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL using lifetime ECL for all trade
debtors and contract assets. To measure the
ECL, trade debtors and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, except for those which had
been determined as credit impaired under
HKAS 39 and those from departments of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR"”) which are
assessed individually taking into consideration
of their credit standings, good repayment
record in the past and long term relationships
with the Group.

The contract assets relate to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade debtors for
the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore estimated the expected loss rates for
the trade debtors and contract assets on the
same basis.

Loss allowance for loan commitments, financial
guarantee contracts and other financial assets
at amortised cost mainly comprise of loans
to joint ventures, other receivables, amounts
due from joint ventures, amount due from a
related party and bank balances are assessed
on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis and there
had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. RAMITRECITTEEVEE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HHER /)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)
2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 22 EBMBEREERENSR B
(Continued) BIAR] (#)
Summary of effects arising from initial RERABEBUBREEUEN
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) FEECHERE (&)
Impairment under ECL model (Continued) TERIEEEEE TR E (&)
As at 1 April 2018, additional credit loss RZZE-N\FHNA—H FEIME
allowance of HK$15,936,000 has been B 18 % 78 %515,936,000 T B A &
recognised against accumulated profits. The RAER - BEIEEBELINE
additional loss allowance is charged against ErEER BRREREGHNEE
loans to joint ventures, trade debtors and Bk o
contract assets.
The table below illustrates the classification TREAREAKABH(=ZZ
and measurement of financial assets and other —N\EMOA—HB)REEBUHKER
item subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS HEEABENRREBETERSE
39 at the date of initial application 1 April ST AREZRAGCESERMAR
2018. W BEERAEMIEE 2D ERET
Bo
Loans Retention Investments Financial
to joint Trade money Contract held for assets at Deferred Accumulated
ventures debtors receivable assets trading FVTPL  tax assets profits
FRAR
RELE BFEEZ BRATEHE  EERE
EX  EhFE EUREE  GHEE RE HBEE g RiEA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn  A¥Tn  B¥Tn  B%Tn  B%Tn B¥Tn B¥Tn BETn
At 31 March 2018 RZB-NF
- HKAS 39 =h=t-H
-EAgHER
F=TNE 201,128 211,989 246,029 N/A 580 N/A 358 3,236,023
Effect arising from initial B XRABBHEHS
application of HKFRS 15 EBIE+RKE4E
ge - - (26029 419624 - - - -
Effect arising from initial ~~ EXRABEHBRE
application of HKFRS 9 ERIENSFEE2FE
Reclassification BHiAE - - - - (580) 580 = =
Amounts remeasured FRBYNZHRT
through opening ENifEEE
accumulated profits (105) (14,208) - (1,623) - - 2,065 (13,871)
At 1 April 2018 R=E-NEmA-A 201,03 197,781 - 418,001 - 580 243 32192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 454 B %5 3k 3 B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BAMITREEIITEMER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG EHER (#)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 22 BEEANBEREEAE NS B
(Continued) BITAR]| (#)
Summary of effects arising from initial BXARAERBUVBHRELENEN
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) REEZHENRE (#)
Impairment under ECL model (Continued) TERIEEEEEN T HBE (&)
The impact of credit loss allowance for loans RZZE-NF=ZR=+—-H&E¥D
to joint ventures, trade debtors and contract ¥ER BUREREVNEEZRE
assets as at 31 March 2018 reconciled to the EEBRENSZEEN_Z—N\F
beginning loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 is MA-—BZEYEEREHERN
as follows: ™
Loans to Trade Contract
joint ventures debtors assets
RELEER EWFE BNEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BB BETT

At 31 March 2018 - HKAS 39 RZE-NE=ZB=+-H

-EBEHENE=T NS = 2,649 =
Impairment under ECL model BHCEEFREATHRE 105 14,208 1,623
At 1 April 2018 - HKFRS 9 R=ZE-NEMA—-H

-EBNBREENE NS 105 16,857 1,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

2.3

24

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of
Investment Property”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to,
or from, investment property necessitates
an assessment of whether a property meets,
or has ceased to meet, the definition of
investment property, supported by observable
evidence that a change in use has occurred.
The amendments further clarify that situations
other than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may
evidence a change in use, and that a change
in use is possible for properties under
development and properties held for sale.
For example, change in use for transfer from
properties held for sale in the ordinary course
of business to investment properties could
be evidenced by inception of an operating
lease to another party. Currently, the
Group accounts for such transfer only upon
commencement of an operating lease. At the
date of initial application, the Group assessed
the classification of certain properties based
on conditions existing at that date. There is no
impact to the classification at 1 April 2018.

Impacts on opening consolidated
statement of financial position arising
from the application of all new
standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s
accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position
had to be restated. The following table shows
the adjustments recognised for each individual
line items affected. Line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been
included.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)
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2.4 Impacts on opening consolidated

2.5

2. &

H
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24 XRAMBMAIENBFEANGES

statement of financial position arising MBEMRRRZEE (&)
from the application of all new
standards (Continued)
31 March 1 April
2018 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
B\ ZERBEE FEUEEE —B-N\F
ZA=+—-8 ERJE+HEYE EHEAE MA—H
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Loans to joint ventures GELEER 201,128 = (105) 201,023
Deferred tax assets ERRBEE 358 = 2,065 2,423
Inventories FE 15,293 28,055 = 43,348
Amounts receivable on BREHIRK
contract work 96,992 (96,992) - -
Retention money receivable FEWRE S 246,029 (246,029) = =
Contract assets ENEE = 419,624 (1,623) 418,001
Debtors, deposits and EYFHE  RERAEGK
prepayments 266,695 14,229 (14,208) 266,716
Financial assets at FVTPL BRERBRLATETEZ
HBEE - - 580 580
Investments held for trading ?%1’!55;%2&@ 580 = (580) =
Amounts payable on ERENIEME
contract work (470,129) 470,129 - -
Trade and other payables R RER M EAR (720,313) (225,461) - (945,774)
Provisions BfE - (360,242) - (360,242)
Contract liabilities SHER = (3,313) = (3,313)
Accumulated profits 2R 3,236,023 - (13,871) 3,222,152
Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of 25 BRVBREENE=FH 218

a Business”

The amendments clarify the definition of a
business and provide additional guidance
with the objective of assisting entities to
determine whether a transaction should be
accounted for as a business combination or
an asset acquisition. Furthermore, an optional
concentration test is introduced to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
Group has early adopted the amendments for
its acquisition transactions completed on or
after 1 April 2018. The Group has performed
the concentration test for certain acquisition
transactions during the current year and
considered they are acquisition of assets and
accounted for such.

ARRBHES ]

ZEABEXRBNES MR

#EIMESI

EEHHERBEERS

ERRESEBSHRNEERBA
AR BESN BIA T AEM SRR

L,{F’Eﬂl:ﬂﬁﬂg Y —

ZIEENE

BEREXENTE -AEELD
Eiﬁéwmzﬁ—ﬂiﬁ — B
ZEBETRZWEBRZWIEE] c ARE
BERAEEHETWERSET
EdAE WIRABKBEESHA

BE o
B

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Leases’

Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material*

Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle'
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation
will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16
requires sales and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of HKFRS
15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant
asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS16 also
includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group
currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for own use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and
operating cash flows by the Group, respectively,
upfront prepaid lease payments will continue to be
presented as investing or operating cash flows in
accordance to the nature, as appropriate.
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$13,135,000 as
disclosed in note 47. These arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits paid of HK$1,874,000
and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$8,870,000 as rights and obligations under leases
to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost
and such adjustments are considered as additional
lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group will
elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing a lease
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4. Therefore,
the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior
to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
the Group will elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee
and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening accumulated profits without
restating comparative information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
“Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the
definition of material by including additional
guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgments. The amendments also align the
definition cross all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 April 2020. The application of the amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group
but may affect the presentation and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments will have
a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
the investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

3.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

e  has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to the transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, or
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Distribution of non-cash assets to owners

Upon loss of control of a subsidiary through
distribution of shares in the subsidiary to the
shareholders of the Company where the subsidiary
is ultimately controlled by the same parties both
before and after the distribution, the Group
(a) derecognises the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost; and (b) measures the
distribution and the liability to distribute non-cash
assets as a dividend to its owners at the carrying
amount of the net assets to be distributed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment
properties which are subsequently measured under
fair value model and financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to
the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Interests in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % R & B 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate or joint ventures are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the
investment is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5. The financial statements of an associate and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

BENRANELELX I REBRRES
BABERNAHEEREZ RBUES
EAR-WBHELNAREELERE
B REMANBHASERIGRRES T
WA EERAEQFEFRNEMNEER
BRA/HE STAREZRAE A&E
BETRNEEREBEAFEFEER
RERAWEMEREEHAERRU
BREPBARIBRER

FEEFEEEAUTHREBEERIREE
DNAREELE I EBHERE  HIFE
FARHES  ZARE2E2HREES
REFRBSHEAE =T RERE—-
HEEETRENR FERLBRAT
e (EREERAFEREE
BAMEP RS E) BREAE - EFE
BRZBEBEBRZERERAEZ
— D - BERERE 2 EMEE TR
BEBISTERNE =T 5 FUER
HUAZEREZANESEARBME
AR -

G A P A A B 2018/2019 4F 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

168

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥E®HEEK &)
(Continued)
Interests in an associate and joint ventures REBERAREELE R

(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the
relevant associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.
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Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment, or a portion
of an investment in a joint venture, the investment
or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in
relation to the portion that is classified as held for
sale from the time when the investment is classified
as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for financial assets within the scope of
HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 and investment properties, which
continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE =&

170

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.,e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE =&
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(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services as there is no directly observable
information on measurement of the value of the
goods or services without undue cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by
the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does
not have a significant financing component in
circumstances where payment in advance or in
arrear are in accordance with the typical payment
terms of the relevant industry, which has a primary
purpose other than financing.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Warranties

If a customer has the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty as
a separate performance obligation and allocates a
portion of the transaction price to that performance
obligation.

If a customer does not have the option to purchase
a warranty separately, the Group accounts for the
warranty in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications (i.e. service-type
warranties).

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
warranty provision and provision for rectification
work is described in the accounting policy for
provisions below.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract
with a customer that it would not have incurred
if the contract had not been obtained. The Group
recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
(Continued)

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the assets relate. The asset is
subject to impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
construction contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an
asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing
which it recognises an asset for these costs only if
they meet all of the following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract (Continued)

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the assets relate. The asset is
subject to impairment review.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from construction contracts, interior
and renovation contracts and building materials
installation contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method by reference to
the value of work carried out during the year as
determined by independent surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to
the buyers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have been passed.

Property agency and management service income is
recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts
(prior to 1 April 2018)

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and
costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by surveys of work
performed. Variations in contract work are included
to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts
(prior to 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts
receivable on contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract cost incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as amounts payable on
contract work. Amounts received before the related
work performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a liability, as other
payables. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under
progress payments receivable.
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Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of
the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property

An investment property is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when it is evidenced by
the commencement of owner-occupation. The
property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. The
property interest held under an operating lease
which is previously classified as investment property
under the fair value model is continued to account
for as a finance lease after the transfer.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE &)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment ME- HEREE

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for own use are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item (including the relevant
prepaid lease payments) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to accumulated profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost
of acquiring land held under operating leases,
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
buildings elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front
payments to lease medium-term leasehold land
interests in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Inventories

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
include land cost, development costs and directly
attributable costs including, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties
and are classified under current assets. They are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs relating to the development of properties,
comprising land costs and development costs, are
included in properties held for development for
sale until such time when they are completed. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all anticipated cost to be incurred in
marketing and selling.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

Properties held for sale (Continued)

The Group transfers a property from inventories
to investment property when there is a change
in use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, which is evidenced
by the inception of an operating lease to another
party. Transfer from inventories to investment
property is evidenced by commencement of an
operating lease to another party prior to 1 April
2018. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE =&

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) TR (#)

Financial assets MBEE

Classification and measurement of financial assets HBEEEZ 7 ERE (REMT209
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with BERXEAE B BEIHREELENTE
transitions in note 2) #)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions RETIHRENTBEER R IRBHEK
are subsequently measured at amortised cost: REE:

e the financial asset is held within a business s HBEENRENAREUREE

model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

DWEBENRERENEBERXT
FE IR

e the contractual terms give rise on specified s HBEEZENRIRBEBEE
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of LHRBINEERREEFEZ
principal and interest on the principal amount MEHNRERE -
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions RETIHRENMBEERRBBHEM

are subsequently measured at fair value through EHWHERAFENE:

other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business *
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified C
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

J it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that is required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE &)

188

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excluded
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets and other items which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade debtors,
contract assets, loans to joint ventures, amounts
due from joint ventures, amount due from a
related party, other receivables, bank balances, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade debtors and contract assets. To measure the
ECL, trade debtors and contract assets have been
grouped based on share credit risk characteristics,
except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39 and those from
departments of The Government of HKSAR which
are assessed individually taking into consideration
of their credit standings, good repayment record in
the past and long term relationship with the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

For loan commitments, financial guarantee contracts
and other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

0]

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if (1) it has a low risk of default, (2) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and (3) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition
for the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition of
a loan commitment, the Group considers
changes in the risk of a default occurring on
the loan to which a loan commitment relates;
for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE =&

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) TR (#)

Financial assets (Continued) MBEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of BB EEZBE (ERENT2EFE

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) BB IR ERE R AEFENRAF)

(Continued) (%)

(i) Definition of default (i) BHER
For internal credit risk management, the Group RABEERBEEMS  A&EEH
considers an event of default occurs when RR - HABERS B I RRE
information developed internally or obtained BHNERBEREBATAKATERH
from external sources indicates that the debtor BEREA (BEAEE) BHNAK (£
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the ZRAKEFENEMERR) - Bl
Group, in full (without taking into account any BAEENSEMH-

collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers BEL L EFKEERDRE
that default has occurred when a financial BB AEERRBEELN
asset is more than 90 days past due unless BRILEBESEREXFNER
the Group has reasonable and supportable HRERENENEABESE-

information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(¢ the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

196

(iv) Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
three years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the event
of a default by the debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is
the present value of the difference between
the contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group if the holder of the loan commitments
draws down the loan, and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive if the loan is
drawn down.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE =&

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) TR (#)

Financial assets (Continued) MBEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of BB EEZBE (ERENT2EFE

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) BB IR ERE R AEFENRAF)

(Continued) (%)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) FEREIRBEESE (&)
(Continued)
For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or RERMNRELIBEMBEREY
on loan commitments for which the effective FEREAE2RAEEFENS
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group AEERERARRESKEEER
will apply a discount rate that reflects the BERnSARE B A ST AR
current market assessment of the time value TRR HEEEBABTEARM
of money and the risks that are specific to the FARFTRASEZFNLTXTREA
cash flows but only if, and to the extent that, BHIBERT  FEEAERETRE

the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to AR RREREETENU
cater for cases where evidence at the individual DEEBTEKFEBRALEFHR
instrument level may not yet be available, 2R BT RRUTERR
the financial instruments are grouped on the L

following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments; e HBEIAZME:

e  Past-due status; o EHARR

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and s BEHRAZHE BRERTE:
)54

o External credit ratings where available. ° SMERIEERTAR (A) o

1 98 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over
the guarantee period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE =&

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

200

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) TR (#)
Financial assets (Continued) MEEE (&)

(Continued) (%)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v)
(Continued)

For undrawn loan commitments, the loss
allowances are the present value of the
difference between:

(@) the contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group if the holder of the loan
commitment draws down the loan: and

(b) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

Except for loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade debtors and contract assets where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of the two categories: financial assets at FVTPL and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are financial
assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BE=

202

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excluded any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and
is included in the other income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 52.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
loans to joint ventures, trade debtors, other
receivables, amounts due from joint ventures,
retention money receivables and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the
loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE =&
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade debtors,
where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

MBIA#E)
MBEE (&)

HMBEEEZBERTE (R=F—-/NFH
B — A& BRI F & ER|E A S FT)
(#)

BN WA (&)

PUABER TR M BEEMS » R
BRI R 2 IR H & E R E R R
BEERERMNRTRFEEMLER
RRERBEENWERETE-

HEPBEERENRESRESERZERM
& ERRE E P F H HIR - R 2
SREE 228 BB IR R - BRI
TH R A T A UL [E] B - 1 A 88 48 BR P
5o BT WIS FRME R E - 85

ABERA - BERZREEEZSNES

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables and bank loans are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

J the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 April
2018)/HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018); and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty
obligations and rectification work under the
relevant design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls contracts, and
provision for the expected cost of rectification work
under relevant construction contracts, interior and
renovation contracts and supply and installing of
ceiling system contacts are recognised at the date
of rendering the respective contract work, at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the Group’s obligation.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated to the assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, and interests in an associate and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE =&
(Continued)
Borrowing costs (Continued) BB (&)

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deductible from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes, state-managed
retirement share-based payments and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permit the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date. Any changes
in the liabilities" carrying amounts resulting from
service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in
the cost of an asset.
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Equity-settled share-based payment
arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. The fair value determined at the grant
date without taking into consideration all non-
market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, is based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based compensation reserve). For
share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When
share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve
will be transferred to share premium or contributed
surplus. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share-
based compensation reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Shares purchased for share award scheme

When the Company’s shares are purchased
from the open market for share award scheme,
the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as shares
held for share award scheme and deducted from
total equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
(Continued)

Shares purchased for share award scheme
(Continued)

The fair value of services received from directors
and employees determined by reference to
the fair value of award shares granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the Group’s
estimate of award shares that will ultimately vest,
with a corresponding increase in share-based
compensation reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revised its estimates of the number of shares
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based
compensation reserve.

At the time when the award shares are vested, the
difference on the amounts previously recognised in
shares held for share award scheme and the amount
recognised in share-based compensation reserve is
transferred to accumulated profits.
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In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
the exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
difference accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation, attributable to owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the investment
property portfolio of the Group’s subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and concluded that
the investment properties of the Group, associates
and joint ventures are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's
deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has not recognised
any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group, associates
and joint ventures are not subject to any income
taxes on the fair value changes of the investment
properties on disposal.
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
and a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
March 2019 at their fair value of HK$2,225,570,000
(2018: HK$1,712,360,000) (note 17) based on
valuation of these properties conducted by Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited (“JLL") (2018: JLL and Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited (“Colliers”)), an
independent property valuer. In determining the
fair values of the Group’s investment properties, the
valuers applied a market value basis which involves,
inter-alia, significant unobservable inputs and
significant judgements, representing appropriate
market rent, capitalisation rate and adjusted market
price that has taken into account of property-
specific adjustments including location, land quality
and timing of reference transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provisions

Significant management estimates are involved
in the determination of the cost of work to be
incurred during the defect liability period and
warranty period. Accordingly, management
exercises considerable judgment in determining
whether there is a present obligation as a result
of a past event at the reporting date, whether it is
more likely than not that such warranty services and
rectification work will result an outflow of resources
and whether the amount of the obligation can be
reliably estimated with reference to the relevant
correspondences and contracts with customers.
The management estimates the cost for warranty
services and rectification work with regard to the
Group’s experience in addressing such matters. As
at 31 March 2019, the Group recognised provision
related to warranty costs and rectification work
amounting to HK$287,936,000 (1 April 2018:
HK$360,242,000) (note 35).

Provision of ECL for trade debtors and contract
assets

Before the application of HKFRS 9, the Group
makes allowances for trade debtors and retention
money receivable based on the assessment of
the recoverability, creditworthiness of customers
and ages of trade debtors and retention money
receivable.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade debtors and contract
assets (Continued)

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. Impairment on
trade debtors and retention money receivable are
made based on estimation of the future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rates.
If the financial condition of the customers of the
Group deteriorates, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment may be required. As at 31 March 2018,
the carrying amounts of trade debtors and retention
money receivable were HK$211,989,000 and
HK$246,029,000 (net of accumulated impairment
allowance of trade debtors of HK$2,649,000),
respectively.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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Provision of ECL for trade debtors and contract
assets (Continued)

Since the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April
2018, management estimates the amount of loss
allowance for ECL on trade debtors and contract
assets that are measured at amortised cost based on
the credit risk of trade debtors and contract assets.
When measuring ECL, the Group uses reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. Loss
given default is an estimate of the loss arising
on default. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, taking into account
cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements. Probability of default constitutes a
key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is
an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given
time horizon, the calculation of which includes
historical data, assumptions and expectations of
future conditions. The assessment of the credit risk
of trade debtors and contract assets involve high
degree of estimation and uncertainty. When the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or
more than expected, a material impairment loss or
a material reversal of impairment loss may arise,
accordingly.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of trade
debtors and contract assets were HK$76,534,000 and
HK$267,080,000 (1 April 2018: HK$197,781,000 and
HK$418,001,000) (net of accumulated impairment
allowance of trade debtors and contract assets
of HK$12,465,000 and HK$770,000 (1 April 2018:
HK$14,208,000 and HK$1,623,000)), respectively.
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note
52.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts
received or receivable from construction contracts,
interior and renovation contracts, installation of
building materials, sales of health products, sale

LN
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of properties and provision of property agency

and management services and rental income from
property investment during the year, and is analysed

as follows:
Continuing operations BEREEK
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue from construction BEIBREGHZBA
contract work 1,620,484 2,037,100
Revenue from interior and HEREBIREHIZIRA
renovation contracts 130,115 125,792
Revenue from installation of BERBEMBZHRA
building materials 90,982 71,630
Sales of health products REERZHESRE 59,870 59,513
Sale of properties MEZIHESE - 73,055
Property agency income PERERA 6,879 4,830
Property management service VI EE R WA
income 6,460 6,521
Rental income from property MEREZHERA
investment 33,333 54,002
1,948,123 2,432,443
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

REVENUE (continued) 5. KA (&)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts REEFEHNZWAZSI
with customers

The following table provides an analysis of the TREMAEERBZE_Z—HIEF=A
Group's revenue from external customers for the ESt+—HLEFEERUTHERZINE
year ended 31 March 2019 based on: FPWADH:
Timing of revenue recognition WA T 8 B ]
2019
ZE-NF
HK$'000
BET T
Continuing operations BESEER

Revenue from contracts with customers: REEFEHZWA:

- At a point in time — R R 1B B ] 2 66,749

- Over time —BERFRY 1,848,041
1,914,790

Rental income from property investment  #J¥#&x&2HE WA 33,333
1,948,123
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

REVENUE (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Revenue from construction contracts, interior
and renovation contracts, and installation of
building materials

The Group provides construction contract work,
interior and renovation contract work and
installation of building materials contract work
under long-term contracts with customers. Such
contracts are entered into before the services
begin. The Group's contract work enhances an asset
that the external customers control as the Group
performs. Revenue from provision of such contract
work is therefore recognised over time. The revenue
from the contract work, except for the revenue
from provision of supply and installation of ceiling
system (without a direct measurement of value
of performance completed to date), is recognised
using output method, i.e. based on surveys of the
relevant services completed by the Group to date as
certified by independent surveyors appointed by the
customers in relation to the work completed by the
Group. The directors of the Company consider that
output method would faithfully depict the Group’s
performance towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations in these contracts under
HKFRS 15. The revenue from provision of supply
and installation of ceiling system is recognised
using input method. The measures of the progress
is determined based on the proportion of specific
costs incurred to-date to the estimated total costs
for each contract.
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Sales of health products

Revenue from health products is recognised at a
point in time when control of health products is
transferred to the customers, being at the point
that the customers obtain the control of the health
products and the Group has present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is
probable.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
at a point in time when control of properties is
transferred to the customers, being at the point that
the customers obtain the control of the properties
and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

Property agency income

For revenue from provision of property agency
service, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when customers execute a legally binding
agreement from its counterparty and performance
obligations are satisfied. Payment of the transaction
is due immediately when performance obligations
are satisfied.

Property management service income

The provision of property management services
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligations, as the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
from the Group’s performance.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

REVENUE (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2019 and the expected
timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

WA (&)

TEERTEFENNBRNEEZ

R5E

R-BE-AE=A=1+—80 7W=&
TAREREBORATRKEFEHNNELN
B2 FZERERU A KYTEHR R
T

Revenue from  Revenue from

Revenue from interior and installation

construction renovation of building

contracts contracts materials

BE EHRESE ZEBREMR

Y SLON BHWA WA

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETT BETT

Within one year —ER 1,008,636 71,286 52,095

More than one year but not more  —& L\ EBREUR

than two years 486,429 8,179 5,635

More than two years MELU L 411,793 = =
SEGMENT INFORMATION SHEHE

The Group is organised into seven operating
divisions: construction, interior and renovation
works, design, supply and installation of building
materials, sales of health products, property
investment, property development and provision of
property agency and management services. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its financial information internally and are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B %5 ) 3 M 55

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHEEH &)
The design, supply and installation of aluminium AATEEMB s BE2RT HERE
windows and curtain walls business included in REERFREBRAAFECRLEE -
‘building materials’ segment was discontinued in TXREBEN D BERTBEZEER
the current year. The segment information reported IHEE RN SRE  BRASRENMET
below does not include any amounts for these 12Fp it o
discontinued operations, which are described in
more details in note 12.
(a) Segment revenues and results () PEWARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's UTAREEERRERTE2HRS E
revenue and results by operating and ZWBAREEZ 2D
reportable segment:
Continuing operations HEREER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE—_ZE—hE=-ZA=+—BItE
E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction  renovation materials products investment development management total  Eliminations  Consolidated
NERE
BE  S£HREHS BEME  REER NERE NERE REE SRS H# g8
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSQ00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKS'000
BETT  BETR RETR AETR BRTR BRI BRI BRI BRTR BRTR
REVENUE BA
External sales oM 160488 130,115 90982 59,870 333 - 13339 194812 Y V' X0%
Inter-segment sales ARERBZHE 703 59,84 2,198 145 6,869 - 11,664 80,863 (80,863) -
Total it 161187 189,399 93,180 60015 4020 - B0 20896 (30863 194813
RESULTS E
Segment result FREE 61,147 4,474 261 (2.881) 285,512 302,126 831 651,470 - 651,470
Unallocated expenses FABZH (2822)
Profit before taxation BaaEwA 628,648
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HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

230

T B 5 ik Mtk

6. N¥EEH &)

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the results
from each segment without allocation of
administration costs incurred by head office
and the inactive subsidiaries. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating
decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to
market prices.

(@) Segment revenues and results (Continued) () P EWAREE (#)
Continuing operations (Continued) BEREEK (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (restated) 2 E—N\E=A=1+—HItE
E(KE5)
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction  renovation materials products investment development management total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
NERE
BE  EBREE BEMH BEER NERE NERRE REE AR B g8
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AETR BB BRI AEIR AETR AETR BRI BRI BRI
REVENUE 9N
External sales HiEE 2,037,100 125,792 71630 59,513 54,002 73,055 1351 2432483 - 243483
Inter-segment sales AREBEZRE 805 43,061 5,022 % 3,864 - 31,701 84,548 (84,548) -
Total @ 2,037,905 168,853 76,652 59,608 57,866 73,055 43,052 2,516,991 (84,548) 2,432,443
RESULTS 5
Segment result FERE 68,704 8421 892 3,690 540,232 24,384 453 646,776 - 646,776
Unallocated expenses FABZH (61,118)
Profit before taxation BatanER 585,658

BEREDEB 2 ST BUEREAM E3
FrfiAEE e ETtBR-—H -8
REARRBEAIEEEZXE X
ROBABREZEE TR ZM
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's UTAREERKERAZHE
assets and liabilities by operating and ZEEREBEDIN
reportable segment:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Segment assets THEEE
Continuing operations FEREEK
Construction EEE 1,246,014 1,455,105
Interior and renovation REh RAEE 107,514 179,762
Building materials BEMR 64,784 43,322
Health products REEM 45,351 45,160
Property investment YERE 2,870,116 2,645,037
Property development Y E 801,917 526,383
Property agency and MERERER
management 67,996 76,076
Total segment assets DHEEEAR 5,203,692 4,970,845
Assets relating to discontinued BHEET£E
operations of Million Hope ERLEREXEBNEE
Group - 351,720
Unallocated assets ROBEE 66,022 18,022
5,269,714 5,340,587
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. N¥EEH #)

PTHEEERESE (&)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) &
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Segment liabilities DHEEE
Continuing operations HEREXEK
Construction = 786,463 776,716
Interior and renovation SR S 51,305 55,067
Building materials EEME 8,665 9,896
Health products RBEEMm 3,007 5,620
Property investment MERE 382,777 438,752
Property development YR 8,776 5,047
Property agency and MERBRER
management 1,297 1,323
Total segment liabilities DHEBEAR 1,242,290 1,292,421
Liabilities relating to FHRXT5E
discontinued operations of ERIEREXEKRNEE
Million Hope Group - 168,699
Unallocated liabilities AoBEBE 247,980 153,721
1,490,270 1,614,841

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between

segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than central bank
balances and cash of head office and
other inactive subsidiaries, taxation
recoverable and deferred tax assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other payables of
head office and the inactive subsidiaries,
taxation payable and deferred tax

liabilities.

232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

6. N¥EEH #)

(c) Other information () HfEHR
Continuing operations HEKEER
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-—ZT-hF=A=+—-HLHF
E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management Consolidated
NERE
BE  EBREE  BEMH BEER NERE  NEER REE &8
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  BMTRn  BETn EMTRn BETn A%TRn BETn BMTR
Amounts included in the measure  sTB 5 BEER S BEERTA
of segment results or segment ~ Z&8:
assets:
Depreciation of property, NE BERRHEZNE

plant and equipment 12,064 941 1,061 678 5,196 19 2,839 22,7198
Gain on change in fair value of ~ RENEZAFE

investment properties L6 - - - - (117,939) - - (117,939)
Loss on change in fair value o~ BBEHRZATEHEZ

financial assets at FVTPL HHEELTEZBZEE 61 - - - - - - 61
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HE4% BERREZ

plant and equipment (Wa) B8 (337) - - 1 (165,718) - - (166,054)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M ARz - - - - - (318,106) - (318,106)
(Reversal) provision of (BE)BERERE

impairment losses (763) (48) (U] (24) 864 (105) (30) (113)
Interest income FISHA (2824 - - (6) (113) - ) (2,944)
Share of profit of an associate 2B = A FRH - - - - (89) - - (89)
Share of profit of joint ventures AR EEEREF - - - - (47,136) (27.287) - (74423)
Finance costs HBER 102 - - - 15,049 - - 15,151
Additions to non-current assets ~ AEFRBEE (M)

(Note) 961 - 21 28 181,632 - 9 182,651
Interest in an associate BENAzER - - - - 7110 - - 7,110
Interests in joint ventures RELEVER - - - - 272,648 124,336 - 396,984
Loans to joint ventures RELEEXN - - - - 179,587 342,911 - 522,498
Amounts regularly providedto ~ REREEHES BEREEHER

the chief operating decision RIBRERREC SR

makers but not included in

the measure of segment results:

Income tax expenses (credit) FiEBix (Gt A) 3,851 (800) (233) (38) 11,591 47,369 685 62,425
Note: Non-current assets exclude those related to M FRBEETEBEEZECK

discontinued operations, deferred tax assets,
interest in an associate, interests in joint
ventures and loans to joint ventures.

RS K 2 HRE  EERIE
EE BEQNRERS BEDL
EoRaRGELEEN-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

For v S 2 A B

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. N¥EEH &)

234

(c) Other information (Continued) (0 HMEHR (#)
Continuing operations HEKEER
Year ended 31 March 2018 (restated) E_E-N\F=A=+—HLEF
E(RE5)
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management  Consolidated
NERE
BE  EHREE  BEME  #RER NERE L REER &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8TT  B%Tn  E%Tn BETn B8TT  BETn E%Tn BETn
Amounts included in the measure it &4 BEER A BEERT A
of segment results or segment 2 &%
assets:
Depreciation of property, n% BERREZNE

plant and equipment 9,669 384 2,19 527 435 19 1,677 18,824
Revaluation gain on properties ~ REBZRENERFEGENE

held forsale upon transferto 2 Efilii

investment properties - - - - (30,264) - - (30,264)
Gain on change in fair value of ~ REMFZATERZBzUE

investment properties - - - - (431,948) - - (431,948)
Gain on change in fair value of ~ BFEERE ATEEB 2 Wi

investments held for trading (197) - - - - - - (197)
(Gain) loss on disposal of LENE BERRES (WR) 6B

property, plant and equipment (161) - - 56 - - 5 (100)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries  HEHERA A ZEE - - - = 34 - - 34
Interest income FBWA (368) - - 1) - (1,268) [0} (1,638)
Share of profit of an associate 2 EEE A FEA - - - - (80) - = (80)
Share of (profit) loss of joint MuRELE (BR) BB

ventures - - - - (129,529) 3,852 - (125,677)
Finance costs BBER - - 628 - 16,161 120 - 16,909
Additions to non-current assets  FEFRHEE (i)

(Note) 3,668 - - 1,076 304,929 - 5 309,678
Interest in an associate BENAzER - - - - 7,01 - = 7,001
Interests in joint ventures RELEER - - - - 359,743 104,582 - 464,325
Loans to joint ventures AEREER - = = = 139,963 61,165 = 201,128
Amounts regularly providedto  FEEEH A BXEEEIERS

the chief operating decision TERERRECEE:

makers but not included in

the measure of segment results:

Income tax expenses MERTE 9,110 1,141 682 m 1,699 1,196 3,115 17,165
Note: Non-current assets exclude those related to Me: ERBEETEEZZEHDIK

discontinued operations, deferred tax assets,

interest in

an associate,

ventures and loans to joint ventures.

interests in joint
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & BA % 3t 3% M} 55k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(c) Other information (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s revenue which is generated
from customers located in Hong Kong, the
Company'’s place of domicile, amounted to
HK$1,948,123,000 (2018: HK$2,432,443,000).
Accordingly, no further analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical market based on
geographical location of customers has been
presented.

The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets

6. DEEH &)
() EER (&)

i EER

AAEENBAETEREES (X

RAFEBR)NEF
WARRERF 2 I
& 5 o A IR AME

WA EE

E%ﬁuu
i#—

*ﬁoiﬁéé%%ﬁﬂ’guﬁzk%,ﬁﬁ%
1,948,123,000Tt (Z&E— NF : /&

#52,432,443,0007T) °

REBEFADEERBEE 2 HIE

by geographical location of assets is presented UESME|AT (&) :
as follows (Note):

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &8 (FriEthE) 3,009,296 2,540,226
The PRC Tl 103,952 112,559
3,113,248 2,652,785

Note: Interest in an associate and interests in
joint ventures are analysed by geographical
location of their respective operations.

Non-current assets excluded those related
to discontinued operations, loans to joint
ventures and deferred tax assets.

Mz BMELARZREREGEREZ
BBl ES REERhE

U EED AT

FRBEETEREE

B 2 A
iIZEC0 K

IEREXB o EEE SEhRE
ERRIEERIREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 454 B %5 3k 3 B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. N¥EEH &)

(c) Other information (Continued) () HiER (#)
Information about major customers BRETEEFZER

REBEERN ERfBBEAEER
WKA10% 2 ERIEF ZWAMT:

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years individually contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Customer A (Note) EFR (M) 1,137,421 1,344,218
Customer B (Note) Z2FEZ (MtzE) 371,131 —%

Customer C (Note) ZEER (M) —* 386,266

Note: Revenue from construction contracts income Mizr: REEZEIBE2EEZSHNE
within the construction segment. ZUA o
* The corresponding revenue does not * ZFEEHRBRARBRTZAE
contribute over 10% of the total revenue of BEEKAZ10% °
the Group in the respective year.
7. OTHER INCOME 7. Eftlk A
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Continuing operations BEKEXEK
Dividend income =N N 10 8
Interest income FIE U A 2,944 1,638
Sub-leasing income pali=L N 1,849 53
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HfulrR KN

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Continuing operations BREEXER
Net exchange (losses) gains FER (FE) W (369) 244
Loss on change in fair value of ~ BBEZRATETEZ
financial assets at FVTPL MBEE 2N TTEEBZEIE (61) -
Revaluation gain on properties ~ REZZREV ¥
held for sale upon transfer to HIEREMEZEMMNRE
investment properties : . . - 30,264
Gain on change in fair value of FEEBZREZ A FEEZEH
investments held for trading pAl & - 197
(430) 30,705
REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 9. BEIRERIA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 H K$'000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BEKEER
Net (reversal of impairment losses) &t b T~ %% 15 & 52 Jfl {E1 5 18 /5 88
impairment loss recognised on: (B ENHEERE) :
Trade debtors PR SRIE (655) -
Contract assets BHNEE (200) -
Loans to joint ventures SELEEN (105) -
Amounts due from joint ventures FEIRE & dHEFNIE 847 -
(113) -
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended BE—Z-NF=A=+—-HLEFEN
31 March 2019 are set out in notes 22, 27, 28, 29 BB 5T A 5 1B B Bt eE22 ~ 27 - 28~ 29
and 52. K52
FINANCE COSTS 10. B RA
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Continuing operations BERKEER
Interest on bank loans RITERZHE 15,151 16,909

L) At B AT PR A ] 2018/2019 4E- 3
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11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 B4 % ) 2 ¥t 33
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

11. BR#R8EF

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations HEREXEL
Profit before taxation has been  BRFELATEFI T R (5T A) -
arrived at after charging
(crediting):
Directors’ emoluments EEWe
Fees wne 4,764 4,434
Other emoluments Hibf < 47,730 35,715
Equity-settled share-based DRaEER ARG M
payments 2 I8 7,177 34,913
59,671 75,062
Other staff costs Hh 8§ T A
Salaries and other benefits HehEMER 305,391 311,761
Retirement benefits scheme RIKTE FIot S ALK
contributions 14,819 15,824
Equity-settled share-based DS EER ARG 2
payments Z I8 3,123 16,328
Total staff costs incurred CELEZETIRAEEE 383,004 418,975
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ ¥ -BERREZITE
and equipment 22,798 18,824
Less: Depreciation expenses W BEEREERTAZITE
included in the cost of
sales (2,988) (3,026)
19,810 15,798

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019




11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

1. 58\ % =)

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN & 3,750 2,969
Operating lease rentals in respect HEYE 2 KEHERS
of rented premises 4,611 4,349
Contract costs recognised as BT AHERAK
expenses in cost of sales 1,693,073 2,109,116
Costs of inventories recognised as 7 & A5t A 85 & K A4S
expenses in cost of sales 34,194 67,092
Reversal of over accrued contract RERRE FELRE >
costs upon finalisation of MRS AR
accounts during the year (BERHEEMRA)
(included in cost of sales) - (13,310)
Gross rental income under KEHERSWALE
operating leases (33,333) (54,002)
Less: Direct operating expenses & REFEAEELEHES WA
that generated rental Mol ENEZELE XN
income during the year 2,115 9,117
(31,218) (44,885)
Sub-leasing income pali=L N (1,849) (53)
Less: Direct operating expenses & : REFEREEE D HWA
that generated sub-leasing Mol ENEELE XN
income during the year 49 -
(1,800) (53)

L) At B AT PR A ] 2018/2019 4E- 3

239



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 1. BRIRAEHR 2
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEEF T BT T
Expenses included in cost of sales: BEREEREAANZZH
Depreciation e 2,988 3,026
Rentals under operating leases  EZHEHS :
in respect of:
- plant and machinery — = K e Es 17,219 24,266
— others —Hh 938 200
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 122.ERILELEEXH

Disposal of Million Hope Group by way of
distribution in specie

Million Hope and its subsidiaries ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company upon the distribution
of Million Hope shares to the Company’s
shareholders on 18 March 2019 as special interim
dividend by way of distribution in specie.

The profit for the year from the discontinued
operations carried out by Million Hope Group
is set out below. The comparative figures in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss has been
restated to re-present the operations of Million
Hope Group as discontinued operations.

DB RAAHEXRTEE

ESRHENBAIR-B—NE=A
+NABUBENHREEDDRESRE
SROGERBHTHREATEARA
SR o

FEEAXTRERSEZCRILEEHX
BIBREINMNT - FEBEBERAZLELER
BFETUES BUBH2IEXFTEE
ERERIEEEXET 2EE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Continued)

Disposal of Million Hope Group by way of
distribution in specie (Continued)

122.BRIEEEEE &)

DB REXNEEXTEE (&)

For the
period from For the
1 April 2018 year ended
to 18 March 31 March
2019 2018
—E-N\F
A—B=Z% BE
—E-NF —E-N\F
=A+N\B | =ZB=+-—H
HA R ILFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue PN 366,884 417,061
Cost of sales HHE R (293,856) (299,881)
Gross profit EF 73,028 117,180
Other income =i PN 2,462 1,390
Other gains and losses Hw =K EE 348 (5,185)
(Loss) gain on disposal of HEME BERREZ
property, plant and equipment  (E5#8) Wz (15) 102
Reversal of impairment losses BERERE
(impairment losses recognised) (BRI EEIE) 3,144 (3,548)
Administrative and other expenses 1TH & H {1 5f & (59,834) (44,650)
Finance costs BB R (2,047) (2,646)
Profit before taxation FRFR A A 17,086 62,643
Taxation FHIEX H (5,287) (14,838)
Profit for the period/year NEAR S FEEF 11,799 47,805
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 12.ERILEEERE &)

(Continued)

Disposal of Million Hope Group by way of
distribution in specie (Continued)

Profit for the period/year from discontinued

LB RAANEEXTEE (&)

RECKRILEKEXR 2APE,FE&

operations includes the following: FEIEUAT :
For the
period from For the
1 April 2018 year ended
to 18 March 31 March
2019 2018
—E-N\F
A—HB=Z® BZE
—E-NEF —E-N\F
=A+NHB | =A=+—H
HE LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Auditor’s remuneration RN € 1,530 461
Directors’ emoluments EEMe 1,970 8,224
Staff costs BT RA 74,945 72,961
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ ¥ -BERREZITE
and equipment 9,262 6,136
Operating lease rentals in respect HHEY %o KLLHERS
of rented premises 920 50
Release of prepaid lease payments B & REFE R AR Z
included in cost of inventories FENHEERIE 2R 197 207
(Reversal of) impairment loss (0 BRTFEZHERE
recognised on inventories (1,366) 1,462
(Reversal of) impairment loss (B mE) EREWFE R ERE
recognised on trade debtors (2,986) 3,548
Reversal of impairment loss BESHNEEZREESE
recognised on contract assets (158) -
Interest income FE WA (25) (16)
Loss (gain) on disposal of HEVME BERSZEZER
property, plant and equipment  (UKz) 15 (102)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Continued)

12.

Disposal of Million Hope Group by way of

distribution in specie (Continued)

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 18
March 2019, Million Hope Group contributed
to the Group’s net operating cash outflows of
HK$7,344,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2018:
inflows of HK$5,295,000), paid HK$4,122,000 (for
the year ended 31 March 2018: paid HK$7,742,000)
in respect of investing activities and received
nil (for the year ended 31 March 2018: paid
HK$127,203,000) in respect of financing activities.

Net assets of Million Hope Group on the date of

distribution in specie:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

ERILEEER &)

DNEMZREXNEEXTEE (&)

RZE-N\FOA-—RAEZZE—NHF
ZAt/N\BHB EZTEELEERS
R R SR B 157,344,000 B AN EE
LERSAEFE2 D (BHEZ
E-N\F=ZA=+—HLEEFE:RAE
#55,295,000T) ' E B EEK B
¥£4,122,000c (BEZE=ZF—N\FE=HA
=+—HIEE:: E118%7,742,0007T)
RitBpmEXEREREAM2E (BZE
—E-NE=A=1+—HLEFE BEfE
#£127,203,0007T) ©

EXFEEREYDIRAZFEE:

HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BEREE 164,701
Prepaid lease payments FE{SHEERIE 5,465
Inventories FE 31,182
Contract assets BHEE 60,198
Debtors, deposits and prepayments BWRIE 1R E RFENKIE 80,276
Taxation recoverable ] 3B [E] % 18 8,146
Bank balances and cash RITEBREES 327,167
Trade and other payables FEASFRIE R B A FE S FRIE (56,443)
Amount due to a related party FE {3 BAES A L FRIB (24,364)
Provisions BiE (95,255)
Contract liabilities EHERE (926)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMRIEEE (99)
Net assets distributed under BYDIRIET 2IKKFEE
distribution in specie 500,048
Net cash outflows on disposal: HERRESMEFE:
Bank balances and cash disposed of CHENBETEHRKRES 327,167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 454 B %5 3k 3 B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHESTPAID 13. EERAGREEFALTEHS

EMOLUMENTS
For continuing and discontinued operations FERERCRIEREXER
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed RWEAEE BEBHAY FHEIR

pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
emoluments paid or payable to each of the

BEERERARIIKE2ESHE R
ENHENFTFNAREE (ZE-N

eight (2018: eight) directors were as follows: FINR)FEZHMEMT:

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_Z—NF=A=+—HLHTF
E
Executive directors (note a) Non-executive directors (note b) Independent non-executive directors (note ¢)
4§73 (Hita) FHTES (Hb) BUFHTES (Wikc)
Wong ChaMou  Cha Mou Lau

Sue Toa, Tai Lo Kai Sing, Daid, Chan  TzeYiu, Sun Total
Stewart SaiHo  Cheong  Subtotal Payson  Johnson  Subtotal Pak Joe Peter Tailun  Subtotal emoluments

Ith  RtR 2B Mt BEE ERE NEORRE 7R EAR Mt A
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
E¥TR  RRTn  ERTn  EMTR  ENTR  EMTR  EMTR BRTR BMTR BETR ERTn EETR

Fees Be 7 7 - 14 4,068 100 4,168 300 300 300 900 5,082
Other emoluments Hitie
Salaries and other benefits FEREMER 3,645 2,292 1,500 1831 - - - - - - - 7431
Performance related incentive ~ IZBEES
payments (Note d) (Histd) 23,000 11,500 5,100 39,600 - - - - - - - 39,600
Retirement benefits scheme BHERI B
contributions 547 344 25 1116 - - - - - - - 1,116
Equity-settled share-based NEREERARR XA
payments Z3E 3,046 1,523 548 5117 1,285 1,285 2,570 257 205 257 79 8,406
30,245 15,666 1313 53,284 5353 1,385 6,738 557 505 557 1,619 61,641
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B % ) 2 ¥t 53
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHESTPAID 13. EERAGBEEFALTEHS

EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
For continuing and discontinued operations HEKERCRIEREER (&)
(Continued)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (i) EE=M< (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE_ZEZ—N\FE=A=+—HILHF
E
Executive directors (note a) Non-executive directors (note b) Independent non-executive directors (note ¢)
HiTES (Wita) FHTES (Mb) BUANTES ()
Wong ChaMou  Cha Mou Lau
Sue Toa, Tai Lo Kai Sing, Daid, Chan Tze Yiu, Sun Total
Stewart SaiHo  Cheong*  Subtotal Payson  Johnson  Subtotal Pak Joe Peter Tailun  Subtotal emoluments

ItE  RtR  ZEEr Nt BER BRE Mt OREE H3R BAR N B
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ENTR  BETR  BETR BRTR BRTR  BRTR  BRTn  BRTx  ERTn  RWTR  EMTR BETR

Fees fok - - - - 4,000 100 4,100 300 300 300 900 5,000
Other emoluments Hit#e
Salaries and other benefits FERAMER 3521 2214 385 6,120 - - - - - - - 6,120
Performance related incentive ~ TAEZBEES (HiEd)
payments (Note d) 19,000 9,500 1,112 29612 - - - - - - - 29612
Retirement benefits scheme BN BMHR
contributions 528 332 56 916 - - - - - - - 916
Equity-settled share-based NEREERARR A
payments Z3E 15,090 7,544 699 2333 8,026 6,590 14,616 1317 1,055 1317 3,689 41,638

38139 19,590 2,25 59,981 12,026 6,690 18,716 1617 1,355 1617 4,589 83,286

* Mr. Lo Kai Cheong was appointed as an * EHMELEEECHN=E—tE+=
executive director of the Company on 6 BEAAEZEAKRATDHTE
December 2017. Ho
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(#&)

For continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

() (i)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

The executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group, and Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart and Mr. Tai Sai Ho's services as
directors of Million Hope for the period from
1 April 2018 to 18 March 2019. Mr. Wong
Sue Toa, Stewart and Mr. Tai Sai Ho were
redesignated as non-executive directors of
Million Hope on 9 August 2018.

(a)

(b) The non-executive directors’” emoluments
shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company, and Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson’s service as a non-executive
director of Million Hope for the period from 9
August 2018 to 18 March 2019.

() The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

(d) The performance related incentive payments
are determined based on the performance of
the individual and the Group’s performance
and profitability for the year.

There was no arrangement under which the
directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for both years.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

()

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018,
34,060,000 (2019: nil) share options were
granted to certain directors in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme and the share options granted
to the directors are set out in note 42.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group recognised equity-settled share-based
payments amounting to HK$9,421,000 (2019:
nil) in relation to share options granted to
directors of the Company pursuant to the share
option scheme by the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Group recognised equity-settled share-based
payments amounting to HK$8,406,000 (2018:
HK$32,217,000) in relation to Award Shares
granted to directors of the Company pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme by the Company.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

B.EFRIBESHFALTHE

(#&)

BECERCRIERERE (@)

()
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E=ME (4

RBE-ZE-N\F=A=+—HBL
FE  REALTERESE EH
HETESUARE 2BRBAORER
ii34,060,00013 (= F — R F : &)
BRE-FEBREFIRRTE
E2BRE ZFBENKEL2 -

BERBEAQAABRETER TR
RAEBZERE FEEREZE
—E-N\FZA=+—HLEFE®
RZUREEERUABRD A2
FIE A8 %9,421,000T (ZE— N
FIE) o

EERBEAQ RO EZBTERT
ARAREEZRBRG AEER
BE—_Z—-hE=A=+—HBLHF
ERAZUEZEERURA X
1 2 I8 558 %58,406,000T (=&
— \fF : 78%532,217,0007T) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID B.EERLGAEEFHFATHE

EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)

For continuing and discontinued operations HEKERCRIEREER (&)
(Continued)

(i) Five highest paid individuals (i) TEBESHAL

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
five highest paid individuals included three
(2018: four) directors and two (2018: one)
employee(s). The emoluments of the remaining
two employees for the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out below. For the year ended
31 March 2018, other than the emoluments
of the newly appointed director (the “New
Director”) during the year then ended, details
of the other three directors’ emoluments are
set out above. Before appointment of the New
Director on 6 December 2017, he was also an

BE-E-AF=A=+—HLHE
B -ABRBESHFATEE=R (=
EZ-\F mNB)EEEME (=T
—NF:—R)EE-BE-Z—Hh
F=ZA=+—HALFEE -B8TMA
BEENMERNRT X -BRREBZE=
E-NE=ZRA=+—-HLEEE #
ZRESE ((HES]) e H
t=FEBsMeHFBEARLEX-
R-ZE—tFE+-ABEEHE
EH BT AREEN—BES - #
EERHEB—BEEZHMENT:

employee of the Group. The emolument of the
New Director and the remaining one employee
were as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits FekHEMEF 2,624 2,433
Performance related incentive T/ERREFS
payments 8,700 8,000
Retirement benefits scheme RINEFIGT IR
contributions 394 358
Equity-settled share-based DRSEER
payments LR 19 2 2 FR I8 909 4,837
12,627 15,628
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

B.EFRIBESHFALTHE

(#&)

For continuing and discontinued operations SERERCRIERERXK (&)
(Continued)

(i) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (i) EEESHAL (&)

MERE (ZE-N\F HFEEKZ

The emoluments of the two employees (2018:

New Director and the employee) were within BE)zMEBR T 5B :
the following bands:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
HK$5,000,001 — 78 #55,000,001 78 —
HK$5,500,000 78 155,500,000 1 -
HK$7,000,001 - 7B #%7,000,0017T —
HK$7,500,000 7 %57,500,0007T - 1
HK$7,500,001 — 7B %87 500,000 —
HK$8,000,000 78 #58,000,0007T 1 -
HK$8,000,001 — 78 #58,000,0017C —
HK$8,500,000 78 158,500,000 - 1

During the year ended 31 March 2018, an
aggregate of 2,817,000 (2019: nil) share
options were granted to the New Director
and the remaining one highest paid employee
(2019: two highest paid employees) in respect
of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group recognised equity-settled share-based
payments amounting to HK$645,000 (2019:
nil) in relation to the share options granted
to the New Director and the remaining one
highest paid employee (2019: two highest
paid employees) pursuant to the share option
scheme by the Company.

L) At B AT PR A ] 2018/2019 4E- 3

BE—_Z—-N\E=ZA=+—HBL*HF
E REBRESS CRHES
kAT —EEREFHEE(ZZ—H
F MERSHES) OAREERM
2 AR M @18 % #£ % 1 2,817,00017
(Z2-hF | BRE-

ERERBEALABRETERT
FEERBRT —EReHES (=
E-NF MEESFHEE)ZE
BE AEBREBE-ZT—N\F=
A=t HLEFERRZUER
HERURD G 2RIERBY
645,000 (= F— L5 &) o
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BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

14.

250

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For continuing and discontinued operations

(Continued)

(ii) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

(#&)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Group recognised equity-settled share-
based payments amounting to HK$909,000
(2018: HK$4,192,000) in relation to Award
Shares granted to the remaining two highest
paid employees (2018: New Director and
the remaining one highest paid employee)
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme by the

B.EERLGAEEFHFATHE

BEKERCRIEEEEE (&)

TEREHAL (H)

ERRBALTRDERTERT
BTMEREsFMESE (ZZ2—N
F HEERBT —ERSHESR)
ZREBERG AEEREE_-F
—hWE=ZA=+—HILFEERRAZ
URREER AR A 2RIER
7 #909,000T (= Z—\F B
4,192,0007T ) °

Company.
TAXATION 14. REXH
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations HEREXEL
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH
Current year REE 52,974 16,288
Under(over)provision in BEFERETE (BERE)
prior years 5,479 (491)
58,453 15,797
Deferred taxation IEFER IR 3,972 1,368
62,425 17,165
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Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at a flat rate
of 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both
years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed the Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%.
Accordingly, starting from the current year, Hong
Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity is calculated
in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The profits of other group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

W 1E F E 2 BB RGBT ERBUE
ME16.5% K% —Bi R &

REZZB-NF=A=-+—-H -FRBIUE
SEB-E—LEHRK (BF) (F75R)
ROIER (MMRFIER]) - SIABMRRE
BMBRFE -ROIERN=-F-N\F=A
“tHNABREERAEFRIRBAAER
]

REMBANEHBEHE cEKE
B8 A E B %2,000,0007T FE SR B R
R 7% $28.25% K B R B - M BB
2,000,000 #9 & ZR B4 % F B #216.5% Y
BEGH At BAFER EEKE
BONEBRNESEDEMAF SRR
B - RHEMBFEHBERFHEERNE
tmEEEEERKEREL B16.5%M4
— B REH -

REFBEEERERE ([REMREHR
ENDREXRAEHEEREM - o EM
B R AW E Y B R 19 H25% o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

S 2 it o B i

14. TAXATION (continued) 14. RIEZH (&)

FEREXHRGRESE
MEERANT

3R 2 BRBL AT &

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit

5

before taxation per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BE T T
Continuing operations HERSEEL
Profit before taxation BRB A 3 A 628,648 585,658
Tax at the domestic income tax 7N FTSHi L % 16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZZ—NF:165%)2HE 103,727 96,634
Tax effect of share of profit of EihEE NG o HigTE
an associate (15) (13)
Tax effect of share of profit of EBEaEtE R oKy E
joint ventures (12,280) (20,737)
Tax effect of expenses not REBFEATHRZ
deductible for tax purpose TR BEEE 16,758 20,011
Tax effect of income not taxable REHIEHEBERHZ
for tax purpose WA ZR L (50,384) (72,044)
Utilisation of tax losses EHAZAIRER 2HIEEE
previously not recognised (124) (60)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERZHEBEEEZREEE
recognised 3,035 1,447
Tax effect of different tax rates ﬁTE’RﬁEAEf@ﬁ%EE
of subsidiaries operating in EENTREREZHESZE
other jurisdictions (59) 293
Under(over)provision in BEIFERERE (BEERE)
prior years 5,479 (491)
Others Hitb (3.712) (7,875)
Taxation for the year FEMBEXH 62,425 17,165
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. R 2
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\E
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Dividends recognised as FREBIREDIRZBRELT
distribution during the year:
Ordinary shares: TiER
2019 interim dividend — —E-NEFRHRE
HK2.5 cents per share —ERBE2.5(L
(2018: 2018 interim (ZBE—NF . ZE-N\F
dividend - HK2.2 cents REIR S — S IRE2.24l)
per share) 26,169 21,712
2018 final dividend - “E-NERERE
HK5.0 cents per share — B R E%5.01L
(2018: 2017 final dividend (Z2-N\F :Z2—+F
- HK5.0 cents per share) RERR S — 8RB UES5.00L) 52,294 49,344
Sub-total NET 78,463 71,056
Special interim dividend by way LI EY KB AT 2
of distribution in specie of ER DIk ZH 5 FER S
subsidiaries (Note) (Ff=E) 500,048 =
578,511 71,056
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Proposed final dividend for the EBBZE-ZT—HhFE=A
financial year ended 31 March =S+—BLBMBFEZ
2019 of HK5.0 cents per share REIR B8R BHES.0M
(2018: for the financial year (ZBE—NF BE2ZZE-N\HF
ended 31 March 2018 of HK5.0 =A=+—HLEKREE
cents per share) SRR E¥S5.01L) 54,542 52,309
BB AR A R AT 2018/20194% 253



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

15. DIVIDENDS (Continued) 15. R R (&)

Note: On 22 February 2019, the Company declared a Miz: RARR-ZZE-—hE-A=-+=HE
special interim dividend, satisfied by distribution in IREBFERE  UBYDREZZ
specie of all shares in Million Hope, representing BB (BERBMBFETHEHBE
the Company’s entire interest in Million Hope. ) IR ZAT o R D IRAAR D T IR
The distribution was made by way of allocating REBZALNRASARKROHEREM
2 Million Hope shares for every 5 shares of the RETROZENET - AARES
Company held by the Company’s shareholders. RAEETRDRAIEEEAZHRA
The distribution in specie by the Company was TS MAQTMEE 2R EBY S
recognised at the carrying amount of the net assets AR AR BEBEANEBEETEBEE
of Million Hope Group attributable to the owners FEZIREMBERR-
of the Company as the directors of the Company
considered that Million Hope was ultimately under
the control of the same parties before and after
the distribution.

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BlREF

For continuing and discontinued operations FEKERCRIEREER

ARBEEARGFESRESNRESE
BRTIRBUT BB E

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\E
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of basic AU ESRERK
and diluted earnings per share  #ERFIMEF| 578,022 616,298

254
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 16. BB T (=)
For continuing and discontinued operations KEKERCRIEEERK (#)
(Continued)
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares RO A
Weighted average number of AU ESRERBFN
ordinary shares for the ZBERMETIIE (M)
purpose of basic earnings
per share (Note) 1,038,165 988,325
Effect of dilutive potential BEBTEBRRNTE:
ordinary shares:
Adjustment in relation to MAQ B BITHEREES
share options issued by Y A B
the Company 789 2,251
Adjustment in relation to RAQ TR ENEBR G
Award Shares (as defined (E& B E43) (EH VAR
in Note 43) granted by
the Company 13,007 25,030
Weighted average number of RUGESREHERFN
ordinary shares for the purpose B MN#EF I E (KizE)
of diluted earnings per share
(Note) 1,051,961 1,015,606
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares Mz AMEEE AUGHESRERKE
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per SEE RIS R R N I B IR
share for both years have been arrived at after UEAEAREQIAFE 2RO EE
deducting the shares held in trust for the Company E (MizE43) °
(note 43).
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BHE=

16.

256

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
For continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share for continuing operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on earnings figures
calculated as follows:

16. SRREF (&)

AATRFEEARLGBECEEBNER
EXARBERANDRBUTHENRR
BiBsTE:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Earnings for the purpose of RUGESRERRK
calculating basic and BMERINEF
diluted earnings per share 578,022 616,298
Less: Profit for the year from WRRERIEREER
discontinued operations REERF (11,799) (47,805)
Earnings for the purpose of AU EFELE
calculating basic and BREXAREERINEF
diluted earnings per share
for continuing operations 566,223 568,493

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for basic and diluted earnings per
share for continuing and discontinued operations.

For discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share for discontinued operations
for the year is HK1.2 cents per share (2018: HK4.9
cents per share) and diluted earnings per share
for the discontinued operations is HK1.1 cents per
share (2018: HK4.7 cents per share), based on the
profit for the year from discontinued operations
of HK$11,799,000 (2018: HK$47,805,000) and the
denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for basic and diluted earnings per share for
continuing and discontinued operations.

FrATBREENFEEERCRIEEE
EBNEREAREER R Pt
e

ERIERER

ERIIREERNTFESRERRF
ABERBE12 (ZF—N\F  SREY
4.90L)  MEREELEBNERBER
MNESRBEILML(ZE—N\F ERE
4.74L)  DERRARE KL ILEEELH
AE A E#11,799,000T (ZZE—N
F . B %47,805,0007T) 5t E - M A D
BAE FYFERERCRIEREER
WEREARBERF FIFMREER -
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FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41)

HEMB AR (MiEEa1)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWME
HK$'000
BT T
FAIR VALUE NS
At 1 April 2017 R-ZB—tFMA—H 2,399,700
Additions NE 241,103
Change in fair value NEEEE 431,948
Transfer from properties held for sale EEEIEESEEYE 106,200
Transfer from property, BREWE BERRE (M)
plant and equipment (Note) 62,200
Transfer to property, EREEYE -MERZRE
plant and equipment (78,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 40) W B K B 2 7 (FftEE40) 149,209

(1,600,000)

At 31 March 2018 RZE—-N\E=F=+—H 1,712,360
Additions nE 86,384
Change in fair value NEEEH 117,939
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 40) W BE B A B (FEET40) 506,023
Disposals HEeE (197,136)
At 31 March 2019 R=-ZF—-NF=A=+—H 2,225,570

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2018, the use of

certain properties of the Group had been changed
from owner-occupation to capital appreciation
and leasing out for rental income. The leasehold
land and building with net carrying value of
HK$36,628,000 at date of transfer were transferred
from property, plant and equipment to investment
properties at the date of the end of owner-
occupation. The difference of HK$25,572,000
between the net carrying value and the fair value
of the properties of HK$62,200,000 was recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
“property revaluation reserve” upon the transfer.

B AN A A R 2018/2019 47

MeE: RBE-ZE—-N\F=A=+—HLF
E AEEETYECREHEETH
AEAEREEREHEUKRRE
WA -REZEARETFELEEYE
36,628,000t 2 HHE + i RIEF R &
REITBRERBVE BERSE
EBREREVE -REBE ZSWE
BRTEF B B A T & 78 %562,200,0007T
RS 2 = &85 125,572,000 T A E b 2
AREPERARN [MESEFEE] B
R5te
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BE=

17.

258

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group engages third party qualified valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuer to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The management reports the findings to
the board of directors of the Company every half-
year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value of the property.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the
highest and best use of the property is the current
use.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2019 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on the respective date
by JLL (2018: JLL and Colliers), an independent
property valuer not connected with the Group.
JLL and Colliers have appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current
use. The valuation of properties amounting to
HK$44,400,000 (2018: HK$44,400,000) was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices of similar properties. The valuations of other
properties amounting to HK$2,181,170,000 (2018:
HK$1,667,960,000) were arrived at by reference to
the income capitalisation method which is based
on the capitalisation of the net income potential by
adopting an appropriate capitalisation rate, which
is derived from analysis of sale transactions and
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations.

/T =] Hd 4% 3,")( t I’“ Bt

17. 8 EME &)

AEE A RBEEEES B ERNA
THENBERABR 2MERSIERD
FEEXGFEETBRARBRENE

AEEERBE=F AR MMEMETHE
BE-EEEESERIIBEEMNEIS
15 MR B E N ER TR @A
HE EEESF¥FAALRESERE
AEER  BEVMELFERBNERE -

MESTEN AT ER  MEC2BERE
FHREABAIRAE-

TEBZRENER-_Z—NEF=A
=S+ -—BZAFEDHEREELE
BEBIYEGEMTEHT
—-N\F HEBRTRSN)ZEBEALH
ZEEBEE-HMEBTRSHNAEEE
ERBERTHECEHEBAMERREY
EETHE - REAWEZLTFER
MECZEBRRERAERAEBAIAR
SERBEYNEZTERZERMEZY
¥ B 58 %44,400,000Tc (ZZE— N
F B %44,400,0007T) o B AU A B
ZEXFAEGEZHEMYEEERE
#£2,181,170,000T (=& — \F . B
1,667,960,0007T ) - bt 5 7E 2 RIERAE
ENEREEREBERANFEEER
bt ERHHEEXRZIMNERREEZ
TR FEEAHE R T S| B AR o

(=%
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Summary of fair value hierarchy and Level 3
fair value measurements

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. All investment properties of
the Group are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair
value measurement.

There are no transfers between different levels
within the fair value hierarchy during both years.

Level 3 valuation methodologies

Below is a table which presents the significant
unobservable inputs:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

17. 8 EME #)

AFEERREF=ZRLVETEZ
BE
ALE A MEERE T N 5A > I LR

HHESHERBERSBEN 2YEERER
BRAREYF Y RAFERKXIIER-
FEBREREMEERBE=ZRAF
EFtEME.

RMEFEALEQFES
B BER o

B=MMEEFE
TREJEAFNAEEGAZH:

S RNEE

Investment properties Valuation method Fair value Significant unobservable inputs (Note (a))
RENE j AVE EXTUERGAZE (W)
Adjusted market price per s uare foot (Note (b))
BRENSTARTE (KE()
Agricultural Direct companson method HK$44,400,000 HK$267.0 - HK$400.0
R BRI (2018: HK$44,400,000) (2018: HK$287.0 - HK$390.0)
840000000 EH267.070 - BHA000T
(22— \E: 8%44,400,0007) (- N\ 287,07~ 5%390.07)
Capitalisation rate Monthly market rent
. (perss uare foot)
X (s 2 gANEHE (B¥AR)
Commercial Income capitalisation HK$450,200,000 2.50% - 4.75% HK$15.5 to HK$72.0
approach (2018: HK$414,360,900) (2018: 2.80% - 5.00%) (2018: HK$1_5.0 to HK$7§.0)
[GES LON U |- #%450,200000 250%-4.75% BRST-BE0T
(ZB-N\E:E8414360,000) | (ZB-NE:280%-500%) |(ZE—NE: B850~ E%7207)
Industrial Income capltahsation HK$434,970,000 3.00% - 4.50% HK$7.0 to HK$58.2
. approac (2018; HK$513,600,000) (2018:3.50% - 5.00%) (2018: HK$6.9 to HK$76.0)
I% WAERLE 7#434,970,0007 3.00%~4.50% BE7.0 - BE58.2
(ZB-N\E:BB513,600,000) | (ZF-NE:350%-500%) | (ZF-NE:E%697-i8%76.07T)
Residential Income capltahsation HK$1,296,000,000 3.00% - 4.30% HK$30.7 to HK$120.0
approac (2018: HK$740,000,000) (2018: 3.45% - 4.40%) (2018: HK$27.0 to HK$71.3)
iz WAER{LE 75#£1,296,000,0007 B 3.00% -4.30% %#‘30.7%-5&’%120.0% _
(22— \E:8%740,000,0007) | (ZB-N\F:345%-440%) |(ZF—N\E:BM27.0m-5B%7137)
Notes: B &E
(@) The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair (a) T‘FIEETQK@% NEEBEZBEES
value are (i) the higher the capitalisation rate, the (NEAREEEEHEE D\_:EELTEE (i)™
lower the fair value; (ii) the higher the market rent, BEESHS AFEES . R>G)EHE
the higher the fair value; and (iii) the higher the mEMS  AFEES-

adjusted market price, the higher the fair value.

(b) Adjusted market price has taken into account of
property-specific adjustments including location,
land quality and timing of referenced transactions.

SEL I ) st 42 I

(b) i“‘?ﬁi% mFD%FEJ%%E’J?‘éE§

Zﬂ-rfﬁ ?
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ME BEREH

Leasehold Furniture
land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor
buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
HELHEK
BF HERZE HGRREE # AE ECH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETR BETR BETR
cost R
At 1 April 2017 RZE-t&EMA-H 257,961 53,701 22,528 17,960 18,685 370,835
Exchange adjustments EZHE 2,974 1,507 372 25 167 5,045
Additions RE 3,337 2,653 1,983 15,009 1,570 24,552
Disposals e _ (572) (527) (574) (709) (2,382)
Transfer from investment BYHARENE

properties 78,000 - - - - 78,000
Transfer to investment properties EBZREYE (39,315) = = - - (39,315)
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB A 7 (HEE40)

(Note 40) 295,070 - - - - 295,070
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41) H&EHMB 2 3 (HizFa1) = = (901) = = (901)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-N\E=A=+-H 598,027 57,289 23,455 32,420 19,713 730,904
Exchange adjustments ExRE (1,916) (980) (218) (16) (111) (3.241)
Additions RE 1,634 142 6,528 4 199 8,507
Disposals HE (11,195) (2,475) (1,580) (485) (3,296) (19,031)
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB KB A B (MiEka0)

(Note 40) - - 358 - - 358
Dividend by way of distribution ~ AZE¥W 2 RHELR T 2

in specie of subsidiaries FRokZRE

(Note 12) (H&E12) (169,738) (18,026) (8,604) (6,986) (6,049) (209,403)

At 31 March 2019 RZZ-hE=A=+-A 416,812 35,950 19,939 24,937 10,456 508,094
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZ-t§MA—-H 33,622 45,150 16,823 14,770 9,339 119,704
Exchange adjustments ExRE 1,167 978 349 9 105 2,608
Provided for the year FERE 15,554 2672 2163 1,740 2,831 24,960
Eliminated on disposals o R A 8 - (572) (435) (555) (624) (2,186)
Transfer to investment properties EBZREYE (2,687) = = - - (2,687)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41) &K B2 R (KiEF41) - - (253) - - (253)
At 31 March 2018 R-E-N\E=ZA=1+-H 47,656 48,228 18,647 15,964 11,651 142,146
Exchange adjustments ExHE (791) (675) (206) (6) (71) (1,749)
Provided for the year FERE 20,342 2,690 2,664 3,869 2,495 32,060
Eliminated on disposals o A 8 (6,599) (2,439) (809) (485) (2,448) (12,780)
Dividend by way of distribution ~ AB#2RKBAR 2

in specie of subsidiaries FARRZRE

(Note 12) (BEE12) (16,902) (14,881) (6,533) (2,482) (3,904) (44,702)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NFE=A=1-H 43,706 32,923 13,763 16,860 1,723 114,975
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-hE=ZA=1+-H 373,106 3,027 6,176 8,077 2,733 393,119
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\E=A=+-H 550,371 9,061 4,808 16,456 8,062 588,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of the
and buildings relevant lease period from 20
to 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of
improvements the lease period or 5 years
Other assets 2 to 5 years

The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings
comprises properties in Hong Kong except for
certain buildings amounting to HK$2,693,000 (2018:
HK$18,239,000) which are located in the PRC.

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

18. ME -BERRE &)

LLEYZE - BERRERE DREKBER
EREBEEUGTENE FHOT

HETHRET RBRBRARERFH

H-t+ZER+4§
%1 RRBENERTHER

AF (UBEERE)
HEEE MEERF

[ Al BR T (B 78 %52,693,000T (= ZE— N\
1 7 518,239,0007T) U AR E AV E T
BFEN HETHREFHEBNYEA
Ejzo

19. BfIHE®RIE

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
=ZA=+—-H | ZA=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
The Group's prepaid lease rEEZEMEERERRE:
payments represent:
Leasehold land in the PRC RAEZHEE L - 6,058
Analysed for reporting LBERBNZDM:
purposes as:
Current asset RBEE - 207
Non-current asset FRBEE - 5,851
- 6,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

20. HELNFzHES

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
=ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT JT

Cost of unlisted investment in REBEARFELTRE ZRA
an associate 6,618 6,618

Share of post-acquisition profit, 2 {EUEEER Z&EF

net of dividends received ({IBREKZBE) 492 403
7,110 7,021

Details of the Group's associate as at 31 March 2019

and 2018 are as follows:

R-B-hER-Z-N\E=A=+—
BB HENT

Attributable
Place of interest and
incorporation proportion
and principal of voting
place of Class of power held Principal
Name of associate operation shares held by the Group activity
AMELBER  FAERE FEf IR AR R
BERNE LW EBREBER TEEXHE Yl SR TEXK
2019 2018
—E-hE|=B-N\F
Hoi Bun Godown Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property
Company Limited investment
(“Hoi Bun Godown")
BEERBRAR (M8 BB EBR MERE
BER])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements,

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity

4R

=R Pt

KB o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

20. MBAFIZCHEE &)
AREFBEAT 2 EERBEHRT

X THIMBERBENZREBMHR
R BERNRAYBRERATRE

BENRERARERERZEFRSMHR

method in these consolidated financial statements. EPNE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Total assets EEH#E 14,233 14,054
Total liabilities a8EHEE (13) (12)
Net assets EEFE 14,220 14,042
Group's share of net assets of rEBELHENREEFE
the associate 7,110 7,021
Revenue ON 211 200
Profit for the year KEERF 178 160
Group's share of profit and AEBERLHE AT
other comprehensive income of ANEEGEF R Hi2mEUE
the associate for the year 89 80
Dividend received from the SWEELTRE
associate - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The financial information of Hoi Bun Godown
relating to the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018
included in the consolidated financial statements
do not constitute Hoi Bun Godown's statutory
annual financial statements for those years but is
derived from those financial statements. Further
information relating to these statutory financial
statements required to be disclosed in accordance
with section 436 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is as follows:

264

0)

(ii)

(iii)

As Hoi Bun Godown is a private company,
Hoi Bun Godown is not required to deliver
its financial statements to the Registrar of
Companies, and will not do so.

Hoi Bun Godown’s auditor has reported on the
financial statements of Hoi Bun Godown for
the year ended 31 March 2018. The auditor’s
report was unqualified; did not include a
reference to any matters to which the auditor
drew attention by way of emphasis without
qualifying its reports; and did not contain a
statement under sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Hoi Bun Godown’s auditor has yet to report on
these financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019.

20. BARICHEE &)

FREMBBREREEHEB8E_Z—1F
F—E-N\E=ZA=+—BLLEEZE
BERUBENEYFTENZEFTESE
ERZEEFEMBERK BRAEZEM
Kk - BEBARBE B D ARHGIZE436
BRFURBEZZELEM KRR E—
TERUOT:

(i) ARNBEERR—BRARF B
BE B KRG H BB IRRE

(i) BEEENZEMEMEEERR
E_EZ-N\E=A=+—HILEE
2 BBMRFELEBRE - ABERE
WHRABER WESHEZEERN
HEBREEENERT REHEE
EMEMoltzRFAEE FEEE
RIEE B D TRHEIZ5406(2) - 407(2)
IR ()R AE H Ay R At

(i) BEERREMEAREBE_F
—hF=A=+t—-RLFEZZ%
B wRAF LIRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. EELEZHER
31.3.2019 31.3.2018
= —Z2-N\#F
=A=t+—-8 =A=+-H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Interests in joint ventures BELEIERERE:
comprise:
Cost of unlisted investments in ASELEIIFETREZHKA
joint ventures 432,862 432,315
Share of post-acquisition (losses) A faWIBE (B8 ) imFI Rk
profits and other comprehensive Hp 2 m (itﬁ)”&ﬁ
(expense) income, net of (MEREBRZKRE)
dividends received (35,878) 32,010
396,984 464,325

Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures as at

31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

RIBE-NERE-—NF=ZA=1+—
B AEBFTEMESECEFHBNT:

Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
business and principal Class of voting power
Name of joint venture structure place of operation  shares held held by the Group Principal activities
MRUBER iSRG RAEERERARER
RELEVAR ERRERA TEEXBY B3 REE LA IEXH
2019 2018
~2-NE —E-N\E
Haining Jiafeng Limited liability The PRC  Registered 49% 49% Property development in
Real Estate company HE capital Haining, the PRC
Development Limited BRAR aHER RPEREETNERRER
(“Haining Jiafeng")
BEELRHERRLA
(=1 )
AG Acquisition M Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 25% 25% Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
BERAR  ABRLZHE/ER REBETREZRER
AG Acquisition O Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 25% 25% Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company Hong Kong EBR Hong Kong
BRAR  EBRZEE/EE REBETREERER
Eltara Limited Limited liability Hong Kong  Ordinary 25% 25% Property development in
company BE LBk Hong Kong
BRAF REBETNFERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

21.

266

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

N
-l

S 2 it o B i

op

BhxzHE &)

Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures as at R=FB-AFR=-F-N\F=A=1—
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued) B AKEEENSEREIFENT
(#&)
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
business and principal Class of voting power
Name of joint venture structure place of operation shares held held by the Group Principal activities
AMELBER iSRG FRERERAEER
RELECER ERRERA TEEXNY £ REE LA IEXH
2019 2018
ZB-hE “E-N\%
338 Apartment Holdings Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 40% 40% Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company Hong Kong EER ~ Hong Kong
ERAR  KBRZHE/ER REBEL &ﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁ
338 Apartment (BVI) Limited  Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary - 40% Property investment in
company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
ERDE  ABRLEE/ER Fﬁrﬁ}ﬁﬁ%%kﬁ#ﬁ
Gallant Elite Enterprises Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding in
Limited company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
BREEBRAT BERAR  KBRZEE/ER REBETREERFH
Nimble Run Limited Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding in
RALBRAR company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
ARNY  REELES/ER REREFRELRER
Trillion Mart Development Limited liability HongKong  Ordinary 50% 50% Property investment in
Limited company ) EEL Hong Kong
ARAR REBES %%?"ﬁ%iﬁ
Victorious Troops Limited Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong LER Hong Kong
BRAF Eﬁtﬁ%/ﬁrﬁ H@éaﬁh&ﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁ
Popular Castle Limited Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
BRAR EJE!Z%%/?% Fﬁéiﬁﬁ}&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
Berncastle Group Limited* Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% - Investment holding in
company Hong Kong LER Hong Kong
ERAE  ABRLZHE/ER %Eézﬁﬂhﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ
Ever Peak Creation Limited*  Limited liability HongKong  Ordinary 50% - Property development in
ESABERAT company BB EER _ Hong Kong
BRAF FE‘:%}E?T%%?&‘E%?%
Point Base Limited* Limited liability Hong Kong  Ordinary 50% - Property development in
HEERAR company BB LBk Hong Kong
BRAH REBES 7%%?&%%7}%
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

BE=

21. SERRZHE

ZE-—NEFE=ZA=+—-HILEE

(#&)

Details of the Group's principal joint ventures as at R-B-NER-F-—NF=A=1+—
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued) B AEEXTENSECEFHBNT:
(#&)
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
business and principal Class of voting power
Name of joint venture structure place of operation ~ shares held held by the Group Principal activities
dMELEER  FARRG FEERERTERR
RELECER ERRRR TEEXMY Lol REE LA TEEH
2019 2018
BN BN\

Park International Investment  Limited liability Hong Kong  Ordinary 50% - Property development in
Limited* company b LER Hong Kong
REERRERRAT BRAA E"Ef&iﬁﬁ%%?ﬁ‘%%ﬁ
Great Splendor Enterprises Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% - Investment holding in
Limited® company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong

BERAR  KBRLZHE/ER FE%}E{TE%FH"%&
Ideal League Limited® Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% - Investment holding in
company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
BRAR  KBRZEE/ER E"Ef&}ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ}‘:ﬂ“%ﬁ
Grace Universe Limited* Limited liability  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% - Investment holding in
BFERAA company Hong Kong BBk Hong Kong
BRAE EXBRZHE/EE Fﬁé}&fﬂxﬁmﬁﬁ%
Super Plus Limited* Limited liability Hong Kong  Ordinary 50% - Property investment in
company BE LBk Hong Kong
BRAA REBETNFRREER
& Joint ventures which were newly incorporated # NEBE-_E-—hhE=A=+—HILEE

during the year ended 31 March 2019.

& Joint ventures which were newly acquired during

the year ended 31 March 2019.

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

MAMBL 2 aE -

* REBEZE-NFZA=T-HLFE
MpEzaghk-

R ESRAYAEEXEREE
FEARPEZREEGRE L% i%
R AVNHEMEELENER &<

BRITR-
SEL I ) st 42 I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. S EREZHEE #)
(Continued)
All joint ventures are accounted for using the equity FEEELEGCARREINZEREH
method in these consolidated financial statements. G E PN
Summarised financial information in respect of the RE-B-NER=ZZF-NF=A=+—
Group's joint ventures as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 B AEEEELECHBERNBERT
is set out below: mE:
2019 2018
—E2-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current assets RBEE 1,534,594 956,735
Current liabilities REEE (3,076,101) (2,538,806)
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,371,739 2,549,471
Non-current liabilities ERBER (8,606) (5,659)
Net assets EEFE 821,626 961,741
Group's share of net assets AEED h2EEFE 396,984 464,325
Net profit for the year REEFRF 211,746 265,536
Group's share of profit for the year ZAEE S G2 FEEER 74,423 125,677
Dividend received from a joint EREELERE
venture 134,952 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B % ) 2 ¥t 53

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. S EREZHEE #)
(Continued)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The unrecognised share of loss of RNEERBR O hHEE L EEIB
joint ventures for the year 11,375 -
Cumulative unrecognised share of Z5t KRR D hEE LEEE
loss of joint ventures 11,375 -
22. LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES 22. AERRER
31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
=A=+-8 | =A=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loans to joint ventures EETEER 522,498 201,128
Analysed for reporting UHERBENZDMN:
purposes as:
Current assets RBEE 24,209 137,482
Non-current assets FRBEE 498,289 63,646
522,498 201,128
RS AR A RAR 2018/20194E% 269



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BHE=

22.

23.

270

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Loans to joint ventures are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
joint ventures have the financial capacity to settle
the loans amounting to HK$24,209,000 (2018:
HK$137,482,000) and the loans will be settled
within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period and the amounts are classified as current
assets as at 31 March 2019. The Group has no
intention to request for repayment of remaining
loans amounting to HK$498,289,000 (2018:
HK$63,646,000) within the twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the loans
are classified as non-current assets.

The Group assessed the ECL with reference to
the internal credit rating of the counterparties.
A reversal of impairment loss of HK$105,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2019. Details of impairment assessment are
set out in note 52.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

The properties under development for sale located
in Hong Kong, is classified under current assets as
it is expected to be realised in the Group’s normal
operating cycle. The entire amount is expected to be
recovered after twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

22,

23.

SELEER#)
EECEERAREKR REREBE
BRH -AQATESIAE SELERN
KeE N 4L BEFBYE24,209,000T (==
— \ £ : }8%5137,482,0007T) ' :ZZEF
RBEHR T _BAREE ZELER
—E-NF=A=+—-BHIEARBE
E - AEEITEINREHREST =@
BAEREEHEREFE%£498,289,000
7T (ZF— \F: #%63,646,0007T) Z
A Bt ZEZER 2 EAFRDE
E °

AEEZEHHFRABEEFRTMEE
HEEFE -B8Z_Z—NF=R=1+—
HIEFE - 85§ E 518 8% 105,000
TRIBEER BEFGEFBERAMTE
52 ¢

RERPDZFEYE

HRURBEEBNRRP 2HEWERD
TRASEEREERPNER 808
PARBEE - 2 SHMAHNREDRRE
t=@EAEA AURE -

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

24. INVENTORIES 24. 8
31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
=ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Health products - finished goods #2EE fm — &K M 12,245 11,840
Others — finished goods Hith— R 3,112 3,453
15,357 15,293

25. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE)
ON CONTRACT WORK

25. Bl (B SHIERE

31.3.2018
—E-N\E
=B=+—H
HK$'000
BT T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised  FrE4 2 & QWA

profits less recognised losses e BEHER B e EREIE 10,451,352
Less: Progress billings W HEE R (10,824,489)
(373,137)

Analysed for reporting purposes as: EEBBN 22T
Amounts receivable on contract work FEWEHNITRRIE 96,992
Amounts payable on contract work ENEYITREHE (470,129)
(373,137)

Both balances of amounts receivable (payable) on
contract work were expected to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.

FEUy (FEAY) A TRRFIAWE WA BRI
BTN EHRRN T —ERRESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

26. RETENTION MONEY RECEIVABLE 26. Bz E &

31.3.2018
—E-N\E
=HA=+—H
HK$'000
BT T

Retention money receivable from: EWREESRE :
A joint venture BEDE 7,731
Third parties £=hH 238,298
246,029
Amount receivable within one year —FRERESEE 166,489
Amount receivable after one year —FRENRSEE 79,540
246,029

Note: Retention money receivable was reclassified to
contract assets upon initial application of HKFRS 15

M BRAREER-Z-/\FHNA—-AE
RERBE B BEHMELAE+HRR

on 1 April 2018. WEHIBERENEE-
27. CONTRACT ASSETS 27. ¥ EE

31.3.2019 1.4.2018*

—E-NF —E-N\F
=B=+—H mB—H*

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Construction contracts BETREEY 267,080 418,001

& The amounts in this column are after the
adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15.
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The Group has rights to considerations from
customers for construction contract, interior and
renovation contract and installation of building
materials contract. Contract assets arise when the
Group has right to consideration for completion
of construction contract, interior and renovation
contract and installation of building materials
contract and not yet billed under the relevant
contracts, and their right is conditioned on factors
other than passage of time. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade
debtors when such right becomes unconditional
other than the passage of time.

Included in carrying amount of contract assets
comprises retention money of HK$175,652,000 (1
April 2018: HK$246,029,000) as at 31 March 2019.

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free
and represented the monies withheld by customers
of contract works fully recoverable within 1 to 2
years from the date of completion of construction
contracts, in accordance with the terms specified in
the relevant contracts. Upon satisfactory completion
of contract work as set out in the contract, the
architect for the building project will issue a
practical completion certificate. Generally, upon the
issuance of the practical completion certificate, half
of the retention money of such contract work will
be released to the Group, while the remaining half
will be released to the Group upon the issuance of
the certificate that identified defects in respect of
the entire building project have been made good.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

AEEERBEERIREN EEIRES
TREARZEEENMRIRENDE
FHEBAE -EHNEERAEETRES
TREN KEHREEIRSARTER
EMBPIRENALLER WER B ER
5 B3 18 14 R AR B AE B & 49 BA B8 W ER
REL MKXEREERBABURRN A
BEBUIMEZ - LACEAREDN
EEMNEARIETI RN A BRI RS EF
fH(RTRBER) KER D EERKA
15 o

NR-ZEBE-—HhhE=BA=1+—H A48 E8E
WEREEEFRE£8B%175,652,0007T
(Z2—N\EMWA—A : #%246,029,000
JT) °

RESHEEFARREE  BRREFHRE
WIEMEAENKE AREEEEH
REZHRARERIREHNTR AR
FF—EMFERAZHKE - RENFHIEZ
BHIREMTHE BFTHE Z2BEM
EBRHERRTIRE  —RM = BEHE
BMRTREER WESHIREZ—¥RE
THRBERTAEE MR —FEREH
EMBFEERMBR2RECEEERZ
HERHEBERTAEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

27. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 27. S¥V8&E #)
The retention money would be settled, based on REEHER—"ZE-NF=A=+—HE
the expiry of the defect liability period, at 31 March RREEEHNIRLEE FHB0T

2019 as follows:

HK$'000
BT T
Amount receivable within one year —FRNEKRERE 91,501
Amount receivable after one year —FRENRSEE 84,151
175,652
Included in the above contract assets are amounts UEEHNEERNBIEREKBEHALTAE
due from related parties of trading nature as SMHEZRIBSIAMT :
follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Joint ventures EENE 3,862
As part of the internal credit risk management, EARIEERBEE Y —n  NEE
the Group applies internal credit rating for its MRBREIRESH RHREBIESHAR
customers in relation to construction contract, ZEBEMPNIRENAEEFREAR
interior and renovation contract and installation HEEFR RENEEMAEZEFER
of building materials contract. The exposure to BRFEREEEBERBEERETT
credit risk and ECL for contract assets are assessed & HEREBETHRERNIBMPANE
based on provision matrix, except for contract assets HEEETEBIFEHBRI
receivable from departments of The Government of
HKSAR which are assessed individually.
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended BE-ZTE-NF=ZA=+—HLFEW

31 March 2019 are set out in note 52. AR T B E M FES2 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

28. Bl HRIA - EZE& R A RIF

PREPAYMENTS

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
=ZA=+—-8 | ZA=+—8~
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade debtors BBRE 76,534 211,989
Other receivables %ﬁﬁgqﬂ%ﬁﬁ 4,677 8,232
Deposits Ze o 12,417 10,461

Deposits for properties under BRTPZEENRZES
development for sale . - 29,000
Prepayments FETFRIE 20,520 7,013
114,148 266,695

Proceeds from property sales are receivable
pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. For the business of construction services
and others, the Group generally allows a credit
period of 30 to 90 days and not more than 90 days
(2018: 30 to 90 days and not more than 90 days),
respectively, to its customers. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group will internally assess the
credit quality of the potential customers and define
appropriate credit limit. Other receivables are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Management closely monitors the credit quality
of trade debtors. 88% (2018: 86%) of the trade
debtors that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality based on their historical
repayments. Included in the trade debtors balance
are trade debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$4,193,000 (2018: HK$21,787,000) which are
past due over 90 days at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as the directors of the Company
considered there has no default occurred as these
trade debtors are still considered fully recoverable
due to long term/on-going relationship and good
repayment record from these debtors. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
There are no balances included in other receivables
which are past due.

REMEBEERWAESRENREER
BNIRRETT - EREERBRHEME
B AEE-RETEHEFIR=1TZ
ATERAZRATH(ZZE-NEF:
=tEATERAZRATRIZEE
HoEEMIER 28 AEEBHERE
BEP 2 EREERFENTE  XETSE
EERME - LB FATEIER 28
RAERIEE-

EEESRYEREWRFEZEEEE
Hihgg% (ZZ—)\F :86% ) EWFIE
BEAE TERBE MRBEFREZER
BEms FEEZRF -ESRERK
T8 45 63 AR TH {E 42 5578 154,193,000t (=
T — )\ :;8%21,787,0007T ) 2 FEU TR
HRIREH RS BHI0 A M A< & B 3 &
BEREBEELERE REALRQATE
ERE HREZZEERANRE FE
BEKERFNERRE  WEERKA
EHN O 2 EWE > F I3 8 R
# o AEEMERZSERITE T MK
meHMEKWREYEBECBY &
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 454 B %5 3k 3 B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 28. BB - & R TAFRIA
PREPAYMENTS (continued) (#&)

FEWGRIR 2 BRER D AT D RIBIRE KR 2
BRERMAB=EH (MER)RZ5M

The aged analysis of trade debtors presented
based on the invoice date or agreement date, as

appropriate, at the end of the reporting period is as ™
follows:

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—g-hE | ZB-N\F
=A=+—H | ZA=t+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within 30 days =+tHR 54,957 153,378
31 - 60 days =t+—Zx+H 8,562 31,630
61 — 90 days AT—ZhTH 8,504 2,571
Over 90 days BBNATH 4,511 24,410
76,534 211,989

R-EBE—-N\E=A=+—0 @Bk
BEZERREZRRDTNT

The following was an aging analysis of trade
debtors which are past due but not impaired as at
31 March 2018:

31.3.2018
—ZE-N\E
=BA=+—H
HK$'000
BT T

276

Within 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
Over 90 days

=tHA
=+—ZxtH
At—Zh+H
BBt H

688
4,821
2,263

21,787

29,559
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28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Included in the above trade debtors are amounts
due from related parties of trading nature as
follows:

28.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

BUHREA - -EZeRAMRIT

(4 )

EUELERBREANBREEREBRALR
EEMEFIRSIAMT :

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

=A=+-8 | =A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Joint ventures e 1,727 1,718

Related companies in which KRARETES

certain directors of the REPERZHEZ

Company have control 2] NG - 542

1,727 2,260

As part of the internal credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers
in relation to construction contract, interior and
renovation contract and installation of building
materials contract. The exposure to credit risk
and ECL for trade debtors are assessed based on
provision matrix, except for trade debtors receivable
from departments of The Government of HKSAR
which are assessed individually.

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended
31 March 2019 are set out in note 52.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT
VENTURES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The Group assessed the ECL with reference to the
internal credit rating of the counterparties. An
impairment loss of HK$847,000 was recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note
52.

29.

L) At B AT PR A ] 2018/2019 4E- 3

ERRBEERREEZ —B0  AEE
MEETIREHN RHBHREBIRSOR
ZEEENHIRSNAETFRAR
BEERH - ERIRFAE ZFER
Rk AREEEBENBRFBERET
il MEFEIR B B4 BT B BT ARPT KRR
TRE (T8 B FF AR BRI o

BE-ZE—NF=ZA=Z+—HLFEN
B EE A EES2 o

BRSELERT

ZEFRRDEERER RERRERKE
Eo

AEESZH LT RABEEFRFEE
BEEFR -BE-T-hF=A=+—
HILFE  NEBREZRERREREE
#847,0007T < BUEFE BN MIEES2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BHE=

30.

31.

32.

278

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
PARTY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The amount is due from
Million Hope and fully settled subsequent to the
end of the reporting period.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

The amounts represent investments in equity
securities listed on the Stock Exchange whose fair
value amounted to HK$519,000 as at 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$580,000).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash represent cash held by
the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less at interest
rate at a range from 0.01% to 2.45% (2018: 0.01%
to 0.55%) per annum as at 31 March 2019.

At 31 March 2019, bank balances and cash of
HK$28,000 (2018: HK$1,270,000) were denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) which is not a freely
convertible currency in the international market.
The exchange rate of RMB is regulated by the PRC
government and the remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

30.

31.

32.

FEU RR B A TR

ZRIEDNEERR RERNERKEE-
AR BRETHRIE  RREPRE
BB

ERRBBLFEHHAEZHE
RE RBHEEEZRR

BERBRERBR AT LT 2 RAE 5K
B R-BE-NFE=A=1+—-H HA¥
% 78%519,0007T (=T — \ & /8%
580,0007C) ©

BMITHERRA®

R-Z-AE=ZA=+—10 RITEHR
ReiEAEEEE2HeREAREHA
A=EARIR=EA 2 ZHRITF

FRNRNF0.01%E2.45% (=ZF— N\
£ :0.01%%E0.55% ) °

RZZE—-—HEFE=F=+—H ' %8¥%28,000
7T (ZF—\F : #B%1,270,0007T) Z R
THHERRESBRAREIE  ARETEE
RERETEERLE AREEXZHE
BARERTTEELEEESAST
Bl I S B Jite ) 71 BEE PR 1) #5 BR ©
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(Continued)

The Group’s bank balances that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities are set out below.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

2. BTTREBRRAE &)

AEELEBEEEER 2 WEEB U
ZEBIEZRITHERHIIMT -

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

=A=+—-8 | =A=+-8H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Euro BT 2,241 =
Macau Pataca (“MOP”") ks 872 893
RMB AR 655 1,546
United States Dollar (“USD") ET 39 531
Australian Dollar (“AUD") BT - 17

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 1 February 2018, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of its 50% interests in and
shareholder’s loan to a joint venture, Pagson
Development Limited (“Pagson Development”)
together with its wholly owned subsidiary, namely
Wall Street 38 Limited (collectively referred to as
“Pagson Development Group”). The directors of the
Company assessed whether the held-for-sale criteria
set out in HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” were met. Taking
into account (a) the fact that the subject equity
interests and shareholder’s loan were immediately
available for sale, and (b) the conditions to be
met to complete the disposal as set out in the
terms of the relevant agreements, the carrying
amount of 50% interests in the joint venture of
HK$282,067,000 as at 31 March 2018 was reclassified
from interests in joint ventures to assets classified
as held for sale. The disposal was completed on 10
April 2018.

33. XEBIBEHESE

RZZE-NFZA—B AXARIZHEE
TEWMBARE -—BBUE=FFIX
BEEWHR UHEHREE %¥Pagson
Development Limited ([Pagson
Development ]) ' ERFH2EHE A
7 (BIwall Street 38 Limited %85
[Pagson Development& & |) 250%#E
BRBREF -AARESIHREH
EEBMBRELEAERRHFELE
FARBEERCKRILLEEER | TEEF
EHERE - Eit RQ@QZBZFHNRER R
REMEEE A HHE R (b)HEE =R IF
MR TREZBEHEETS 2GR
RZZE-N\E=ZA=+—H NREegr%
F150% 5 2 B 1 {578 %5 282,067,0007T
CHEECEREZEN»EZ2EAR
EHEEE - HEER-Z—/\FEA+
HIEH e
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

34. FEf+ IR K& H i FE £ & IR

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
=B=+-—-H | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade payables FEf+RRIR 73,312 124,862
Retention payable — amount EHREE-—FRENEEE
payable within one year 98,301 144,147
Retention payable — amount EHREE - —FERENERE
payable after one year 106,952 77,867
Accrued operating costs and et EM AR E R
charges 226,660 208,237
Accrued costs for construction FEstEE IR
work 249,532 143,455
Temporary receipts fia BF s B 2 TR IR 8,110 14,024
Deposits received B WEZRE 9,298 7,721
772,165 720,313

The credit period on purchase of goods and
payment for subcontractors’ works is ranged from
30 to 90 days.

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

WEEEREIIOEIRNEZEE
BAF=+ENT A

FEASFRIR 2 BRie 20 AT TO RSB AR e i A K
ZBRERAHRBEZIUT

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

=A=+—-8 | =ZA=t+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 30 days =t+HA 68,646 113,550
31 - 60 days =+—Zx+H 192 713
61— 90 days At—ZA+H 649 260
Over 90 days HEA+H 3,825 10,339
73,312 124,862

As at 31 March 2019, the retention payable balances
included retention payable to Million Hope Group
amounting to HK$196,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

35. PROVISIONS

The Group’s provisions are analysed for reporting
purposes as:

35. @

FEBEZHABNBRBEITOT

HK$'000
BT T
Current liabilities RBEE 87,637
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 200,299
287,936
The movement of the Group's provisions are as rEERESBNOT
follows:
Provision
for
Warranty rectification
provision work Total
BYIR
RIEERE BiE Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BET T
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-NF=A=+—H - - -
Adoption of HKFRS 15 (Note 2.1) RRABBHBREER
E+ R (HE2.1) 42,164 318,078 360,242
At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\EWA—H 42,164 318,078 360,242
Addition =t 1,556 126,509 128,065
Utilisation A (2,309) (102,331) (104,640)
Interest expenses FMELH 2,047 = 2,047
Reversal [ (2,523) = (2,523)
Dividend by way of distribution in LB IKMB AR 2R
specie of subsidiaries (Note 12) DR E (FzE12) (40,935) (54,320) (95,255)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=F=+—H - 287,936 287,936

L) At B AT PR A ] 2018/2019 4E- 3
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BE=

35.

282

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

PROVISIONS (continued)

The warranty provision represents management'’s
best estimate of the Group’s liability under the
warranty period, mainly for a period of maximum of
15 years from the end of the defects liability period
for provision of design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services.
The estimated cost of work is determined based
on relevant correspondences and contracts with
customers and management’s prior experience on
warranty claim in the past.

The provision for rectification work relates to
the cost of work to be carried out in relation to
construction contracts, interior and renovation
contracts, supply and installation of ceiling
system and provision of design, supply and
installation of aluminium windows and curtain
walls services supplied to the Group’s customers
during the defects liability period, mainly for a
period of maximum of 2 years, based on relevant
correspondence and contracts with customers
and management’s prior experience with the
consideration of the rectification work claim in the
past. These amounts have not been discounted
for the purpose of measuring the provision for
rectification work because the effect is not material.

35. ¥ {§ (=)

RIEBELEEBAREPALEE 2
SEFHNREMET  TERRBEEH
FRE-—BERESENHRE HEEE
Kz sRat - R 2R RIS 1E H A5
B TRNMEETRATIERESFHEE
RUERENUREERYBERBRE

BYTIRBBIRAEENREEEN
R EFRUECEETIRESH £
REBEIREN HERZEXERE
mURRE HERZEEERFRDN
INA EREZFNEBERERS
HWUREEBHBIERNTIERBENE
BoREECHEIES -—BRERE2ZFN
BB - AN A E L RER  HMEEE
B AT ERATEBEETINR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

36. BANK LOANS 36. BITHEHR
31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E-N\HF
=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Bank loans (Note a) IRITER (MizEa) 351,000 395,507
Less: Amount shown under B oBAREAEBE 2SR
current liabilities (BEAREREEY
(including bank loans BITE)
with a repayable on
demand clause) (351,000) (395,507)
Amount shown under B RDEBCSE

non-current liabilities - -

The carrying amount of SEREREERAZEBITER
bank loans that contain a REE (2EARBERB)ERT

repayment on demand clause DI HAREE (FizEb) :
(shown under current liabilities)
but repayable (Note b):

Within one year —F R 179,050 52,586
Within a period of BBE-FETEEMFHER
more than one year
but not exceeding two years 9,050 342,921
Within a period of BEMEETEBLFHER
more than two years
but not exceeding five years 162,900 -
351,000 395,507
Secured (Note c) S (KizEc) 351,000 395,507
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

36. BANK LOANS (continued)

37.

284

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

The Group’s bank loans are floating-rate borrowings
which carry interest at market rates ranging from
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“"HIBOR") +
0.85% to HIBOR + 1.10% per annum (2018: from
HIBOR + 1.10% to HIBOR + 1.50% per annum) and
are repayable in instalments over a period of five
years.

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the respective loan agreements.

The bank loans are secured by charges over certain
assets of the Group, which are disclosed in note 44.

The weighted average effective interest rates on
the Group’s bank loans is 2.50% (2018: 2.00%) per
annum.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

36. BTTER (&)

37.

B & -

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

AEMBTERDUTSRETEDN
FEHAEER FRARHEBRITRE
FEMO.SS%EFBRITRAEREM
1.10%stE(ZE—N\F - HEBRT
BEEFEMN.10%EEFBRITAEFE
5n1.50% ) MG BR A ERD EEE-

ZESBERBEANSERG R 2 TR
REHEE-

ZERITERUAEEE TEERKT
HBERMF44F K E -

REBRTERZ BT HBERFFIR
%2.50% (= —\F:2.00%) °

2GS UBIRRKRE - & TIELEHRE
ERSEEEAREE - UT HRMBRE
B S 2 BB IR A BR 2 04

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-NE —E-N\F

=ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Deferred tax assets EERHIEEE 2,538 358
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE (12,356) (8,110)
(9,818) (7,752)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) of the Group and movements thereon

37. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

during the current and prior years:

37.iEERIA (&)

o o 2 R B
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

FEEETRELERBRE (BE) RRAAX
FERBEFEHEMEEZSBMT

Accelerated

tax Tax Provision
depreciation losses for ECL Total
niE BAHEE
BEHE REER BERE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETTT
At 1 April 2017 NZZE—-tHENE—H 16,455 (4,947) - 11,508
Acquisition of subsidiaries e K A A (BfEE40)
(Note 40) 984 (565) - 419
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBL R (K1)
(Note 41) (7,272) 1,640 - (5,632)
Charge (credit) to consolidated RAFEHFABERIIH
statement of profit or loss (tA)
for the year 2,916 (1,459) - 1,457
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=+—H 13,083 (5,331) - 7,752
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Note 2.2) HREEBEEREEIFENS
(FEE2.2) - - (2,065) (2,065)
At 1 April 2018 (restated) RZZE-NENE—H
(&) 13,083 (5331) (2,065) 5,687
Dividend by way of distribution AE¥2KE X2 KR E
in specie (Note 12) (KiEE12) (526) 258 169 (99)
Charge (credit) to consolidated RAFEHFABHERDIH
statement of profit or loss (5t A)
for the year 6,853 (2,780) 157 4,230
19,410 (7,853) (1,739) 9,818

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$100,130,000
(2018: HK$77,676,000) available for offset
against future profit. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$47,592,000 (2018: HK$32,306,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining approximately HK$52,538,000
(2018: HK$45,370,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. All the unrecognised tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

RBERR REBARAZHBEEEN
#78%100,130,000Tt (= — \F 8
#577,676,0005T) - A] A{EIREEAR R 2
i Al o B W B 1H 5 18 40 78 #647,592,000
T (Z=ZZ—)\F:#5%32,306,0007T)
BRELEHBEEE - BARFREMET X
RemF MEREBBBEEBEYE
#52,538,000t (ZZ— \F: B
45,370,0007T) R IEERIBEE - FTH
RERZHIEEE BRI EE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. K&
No. of shares HK$'000
KRB E BT T
Authorised: SEIE
Shares of HK$0.10 each B RE0.10T 2R 17D
Balance as at 1 April 2017 A—ZE—tFMA—HZ4&S 1,200,000,000 120,000
Increased during the year FREM (HzEa)
(Note a) 300,000,000 30,000
Balance as at 31 March 2018, R=ZB-NF=A=+—8"
1 April 2018 and —E-N\FHWNA—-HK
31 March 2019 —E-hF=A=+—H
25 ER 1,500,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: CEITRHRE:
Shares of HK$0.10 each BRB¥0.107T 2K 17
Balance as at 1 April 2017 RIE—+FNA—H2z4%8 1,038,003,926 103,800
Issue of shares upon exercise TEBREMBITZRG
of share options (Note b) (MEEDb) 8,172,725 818
Balance as at 31 March 2018 R-ZB-NE=ZB=+—HK
and 1 April 2018 —E-N\FWB—-HZ#&& 1,046,176,651 104,618
Issue of shares upon exercise TEBREMBITZRG
of share options (Note b) (MgEb) 44,654,925 4,465
Balance as at 31 March 2019 R=-FB-NF=A=+—H
ZEEBR 1,090,831,576 109,083
Notes: Fif et :

(@) Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual
general meeting held on 22 August 2017, the
authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$120,000,000 divided into
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$150,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each by the creation of an
additional 300,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each.

(b) The new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares in issue.
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(a)

(b)

BEE-Z—tENA=Z+=ZHETZ
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Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate share capital
of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued at the time of the
group corporate reorganisation, less the par value
of the bonus shares issued by the Company.

Special reserve of the Group represents the
aggregate of contributions from the then
shareholders of the companies comprising the
Group and other subsidiaries of HKR International
Limited (“HKRI"”) before the group corporate
reorganisation.

On 2 March 2018, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shining Bliss Limited,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to acquire the entire issued
share capital of and shareholder’s loan to Richway
Group Holdings Limited together with its wholly
owned subsidiary, Sunny Way Properties Limited
(collectively referred to as “Richway Group”) at a
consideration of HK$505,144,000. The acquisition
was completed on 12 April 2018. The major asset
of Richway Group represent the whole block of
property located at No. 222 Hollywood Road, Hong
Kong. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that this transaction does not constitute
business combinations as defined in HKFRS 3,
therefore, this acquisition has been accounted for as
acquisition of assets.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

REBEZHABS ERAQRABRBZE
MEARER ZEMELQRZRABE
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REZE-NF=ZAZH ARAZHEE
2EMBARISHEERAGE—EEY
B=RFI LB &EWE LW EBRichway
Group Holdings LimitedZEHE 2 &
MEBARBEXERAR (KBA
[RichwayS B ) 2 2 BEBTRAR
B ERE K KB A B ¥£505,144,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 454 B %5 3k 3 B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

40. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. IS B AR (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Continued) B_E-NF=A=1+—HLHTF
E (&)
The assets acquired and liabilities recognised on the RWBHEFWEBE2EERERZERE
date of acquisitions, are as follows: mF:
HK$’'000
BT T
Investment properties REYE 506,023
Property, plant and equipment M BERRKRE 358
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FERERIE R RIENTRE 601
Trade and other payables FEAFEREENRIE (1,838)
Net assets acquired EWBEEFE 505,144
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration paid 2R ENRE 454,506
Deposits paid for acquisition of ERNEFREBHREBEARZRS
a subsidiary in prior year 50,638
505,144
Net cash outflows on acquisition: W 2SR E5E
Consideration paid during the year RBE=ZE-NE=Z=A=+—HLEE
ended 31 March 2019 REFKE 454,506
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were
three acquisitions entered into by the Group
including (i) Waller Holdings Limited (“Waller
Holdings”) together with its wholly owned
subsidiary, Rich Victory (Hong Kong) Limited
(collectively referred to as “Waller Group”); (ii)
Faithful Sun Limited (“Faithful Sun”); and (iii)
Ultimate Elite Investments Limited together with
its wholly owned subsidiary, Vision Smart Limited
(collectively referred to as “Ultimate Elite Group”).
The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that these transactions do not constitute business
combinations as defined in HKFRS 3, therefore,
these acquisitions had been accounted for as
acquisitions of assets. Details of these transactions
are summarised as follows:

(i) Acquisition of Waller Group

On 13 July 2017, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Heroic Elite
Investments Limited, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Waller Holdings together with the
shareholder’s loan at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$145,395,000. The acquisition
was completed on 14 August 2017. The major
assets of Waller Group are office units at
20/F and car parking spaces of a commercial
property, namely Kings Wing Plaza 1, situated
in Shatin, New Territories. Waller Holdings was
acquired so as to relocate the Group's existing
office to the commercial property.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

RBE-_ZE-NF=A=Z+—HLHF
B AEFETV-"BERBEEE B2
(i) Waller Holdings Limited ([Waller
Holdings ) E R H 2 & i B A A & i
(BEB)BRAF (HBAWallerk
Bl ()EBARAE ([ERB])Kii)
Ultimate Elite Investments LimitedsE
B H 2 & KB 7 Vision Smart Limited
(#:% A [Ultimate Elite @ ]) c 2N Q 7]
EERAZERF U T EBRE BYBER
HEAE=SFRAEZEBREO Bitt
ZEWBEECOEABEERB AR -ZZ
REZFHBEHMENT :

(i) WiEwaller&E

A—ZE—tFtA+=H'X2QH
ZBEEZEMBARERRERR
ARE-EBIE=AILEE
& - LAk B Waller HoldingsZ 30
ERTRARBRRER ReXE
#) 578 %5145,395,0007T ° :Z WS
BRAZZ—tENATHAZTK
WallerEBz B EEANURITR
PHz-—EEENE (DREES
—H) 202 ETHAZTENRE
By o Y& Waller Holdings§ £ #%
REBZRERLAEBEZREY
Fo
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. KRB B 27 (&)

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued) BE-E—-N\E=ZA=+—HLHF

E (&)

(ii) Acquisition of Faithful Sun (i) WiEEH
On 13 July 2017, an indirect wholly owned R-ZE—tFtA+=H &2
subsidiary of the Company, Oriental Elite ZREEZEMB AR REEREER
Global Limited, entered into a sale and NAIE—BBILE=FFLEEH
purchase agreement with an independent BEUNBEAAEHERTRARE
third party to acquire the entire issued share REM KENAREY149,878,000
capital of Faithful Sun together with the TeozWBEER-_Z—tFNA
shareholder’s loan, at a consideration of THBEEK BEZEBEEAN
approximately HK$149,878,000. The acquisition RERDHz —EmEYE (R
was completed on 14 August 2017. The major HES—H)2B2ETHAZE
assets of Faithful Sun are office units at UREEN - WEEHEEKASE
22/F and car parking spaces of a commercial BeRERAEBEZEENE-
property, namely Kings Wing Plaza 1, situated
in Shatin, New Territories. Faithful Sun was
acquired so as to relocate the Group’s existing
office to the commercial property.

(iii) Acquisition of Ultimate Elite Group (iii) YW BB UItimate Elite 5 &

On 31 July 2017, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Keen Elite
Developments Limited, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Ultimate Elite Investments
Limited, together with the shareholder’s
loan, at a consideration of approximately
HK$149,729,000. The acquisition was
completed on 28 August 2017. The major
assets of Ultimate Elite Group are office units
at 21/F and car parking spaces of a commercial
property, namely Kings Wing Plaza 1, situated
in Shatin, New Territories which were classified
as investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

40. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. KRB LT (&)

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

The assets acquired and liabilities recognised on the

BE_ZE—N\EF=A=+—HL*=E

E (#)

RUEBRHMBBE2EERER 2RE

date of acquisitions, are as follows: M :
Waller Faithful Ultimate
Group Sun Elite Group Total
Ultimate Elite
Waller&E & 2 58 @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETR BET T BT
Investment properties RENE - = 149,209 149,209
Property, plant and equipment ¥ -BERRE 145,370 149,700 = 295,070
Deposits and prepayments RERBAHE 25 178 125 328
Bank balances and cash BOTESRES - - 1,634 1,634
Other payables Hit MR - - (820) (820)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIERE - = (19 (419
Net assets acquired BEWBREEFE 145,395 149,878 149,729 445,002
Satisfied by: A
Cash consideration paid BRREERE 145,377 149,858 149,826 445,061
Consideration receivable, incduded in ~ BEREMERRE 2
other receivables ERRE - - 97 (97)
Consideration payable, included in BEREMEGTREZ
other payables EARE 18 20 = 38
145,395 149,878 149,729 445,002
Net cash outflows on acquisition: Wi 2 H R FE
Consideration paid BRE 145,377 149,858 149,826 445,061
Bank balances and CRERTESRES
cash acquired - - (1,634) (1,634)
145,377 149,858 148,192 443,427
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. HEMRE LA 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019

On 24 August 2018, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Flair Forward Limited,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to
dispose of its entire interests in and shareholder’s
loan to Pleasing Ideal Limited (the “Pleasing Ideal”)
together with its wholly owned subsidiary, Superb
Leading Limited (the “Superb Leading”) at a
consideration of approximately HK$1,252,907,000.
Superb Leading is engaged in property
development. The major asset of Superb Leading

EZE-NF=ZA=1+—HLF
E

RZB-NFNBEZ+THNE AXATZ
EE2ENBELARREBARLARE —F
BYE=H(TEFDTIESH:E U
HERBEGRAR ([BY ) EFHE2E
MEBAREBEERAT (MEBE])EE
ERTRARBRREFT REHLNEBYE
1,252,907,000T - B R IE B EHE o
BETBEEEANVNEBNE=ZRA9
ERBEBNELEHIEBAIZEIR
RE|Z2ITEYE-HECHR=Z—N\E
+—A+HRARERK-

represented an industrial property, namely “Mee
Wah Factory Building”, situated at No.19 Sam Chuk
Street and No.1 Tsat Po Street, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The disposal was completed on 15 November
2018.

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries on the REEBHHBEARZEERBENT
date of disposal:

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Properties under development for sale ~ R 2 FEYE 931,998
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWFRIE - R E RN FRIE 1,034
Bank balances IRITHEER 225
Trade and other payables FEAFEE R E e R (1,191)
Taxation payable Ef 18 (161)
931,905
Direct attributable cost HEEG R 2,896
Gain on disposal HE W 318,106
1,252,907
Satisfied by: XfAR:
Cash consideration received 2WRERE 1,252,907
Net cash inflows on disposal: HEZRERAFE:
Consideration received 2 WRE 1,252,907
Bank balances disposed HEZRITHEE (225)
1,252,682

2 9 2 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



On 21 February 2018, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Hanison Construction Holdings
(BVI) Limited (“Hanison BVI"), entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”) to dispose of its 50%
equity interests in and shareholder’s loan to Gallant
Elite Enterprises Limited (“Gallant Elite”) together
with its wholly owned subsidiaries, Nimble Run
Limited and Trillion Mart Development Limited
(“Trillion Mart”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$332,651,000. Trillion Mart is engaged in
property investment. The major asset of Trillion
Mart represented commercial property “PeakCastle”
situated at No. 476 Castle Peak Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The disposal was completed on 28
March 2018. Subsequent to the disposal, Gallant
Elite became a joint venture of the Group.

According to the sale and purchase agreement,
the Group granted a put option to the Purchaser,
and pursuant to which the Purchaser is entitled
to, sell back 50% interests in Gallant Elite and any
shareholder loan made available by the Purchaser
and for the time being outstanding or due owing
from Gallant Elite (the “Put Interests”) to the
Group at the Purchaser’s discretion. The put option
is exercisable by the Purchaser at any time during
the period starting after (and exclusive of) 28 June
2020 and ending on (and inclusive of) 28 September
2020.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

R=ZZE—-NFE-A=Z+—H &XAQF
2 2 & B A Hanison Construction
Holdings (BVI) Limited ([Hanison
BVINEE—EBYE=F ([EF]) AT

BEEHE UHEERBELEZRTRA
A(EEDAUAREZEK B QTR
AR A E K Trillion Mart Development
Limited ([ Trillion Mart ) 250%f%
EERBREZRRER REANABE
332,651,000 T ° Trillion Martit=4%)
¥R E-Trillion Martze T EEE BN
REBNAESILEATCE 2B EDE

[PeakCastle |- HEERZZE—-—NF=
B+ N NHERK -REETRE  BEHEX
ABREEzEERHE-

RIFEE NS  ARERELRHZEH
B B B ARNROAREERR
BEZ50%EE AR B L RE R & R4
B REERGE R ZEMRRER ([FRo
i) RAHETHEIR-Z-F
E/\H TNBE (FEEER)RBEBE
—ECERFAASTNR (BEER) &
Rz BEAEAEBITAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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41.
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

The exercise price shall be agreed by the Group
and the Purchaser with reference to (i) 90% of the
market value of the commercial property on the
date of exercise of the put option; (ii) 50% of the
consolidated net asset value of Gallant Elite on
the date of exercise of the put option; and (iii) the
exclusive of all expenses relating to the sale of the
commercial properties concerned, subject to the cap
of HK$1,300,000,000. If the Group and the Purchaser
fail to agree on aforesaid exercise price, it shall be
determined by the auditor of Gallant Elite or Trillion
Mart and agreed property valuers appointed by the
Group and the Purchaser with reference to (i) 90%
of the market value of the commercial property
on the date of exercise of the put option; (ii) 50%
of the consolidated net asset value, excluding the
market value of the commercial property, of Gallant
Elite on the date of exercise of the put option; and
(iii) the exclusive of all expenses relating to the sale
of the commercial properties concerned. As at initial
recognition, 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019,
the fair value of the put option is estimated to be
insignificant since the management of the Group
considers that the put option is highly unlikely to be
exercised based on the current Hong Kong property
market.

41. HEREB AT (&)

BE_ET—NE=A=+—HLE=E
E (&)

THEERHASEHEEFKSETIE
HEGRE: (VRITERGHERR
YIETEZ90% ; (i)RITERAHER
H B2 REEEFEZ50% ; K(iii)
TERHELERERMENERRBZME
B W7 £ PR %51,300,000,0007T
FriRBR o e AR B ELE 5 R et Ll 1T (&
BERGZE BIEBBEESTillion Mart
ZREMRAEBRERFEEZHED
XAEMESETHREREE ()T
BRI R BMEMETEZ90% ;
(DRITERGHEBE BEZGREE
EFE (TEEBEYETE) 250% ;
ki) EREREEEEHEENERREZ
FERZ RAOTHEIZ R-_ZE—NE=
B=t+—-HR=Z-AFE=ZA=+—8"
AAEEEEBRARBEETBNENS
BN ROL BN R REM AT 5 HfhEt
ROLHENAFETREK.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % Rk % [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HEMEB AT (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued) BE-Z-N\F=A=t—HL#F
E (&)
The assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries on the MBARRHERH2EERERE:

date of disposal:

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Investment properties BEYE 1,600,000
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERRE 648
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWFRIE R E& RN FRIE 12,947
Bank balances R1TH R 25,681
Trade and other payables R FRIE R B A FE (S FRIB (13,326)
Amount due to a group company B EB A RRIE (92,292)
Bank loan IRITER (960,000)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAE (5,632)
568,026
Fair value of retained interest in REETLECZREEEZZATE
a joint venture (included in (BREREELEZER)
interests in joint ventures) 284,013
Other payables H{th FE (S FRIE 2,816
Assignment of shareholder’s loan HERREX 46,146
Loss on disposal HERE (324)
332,651
Satisfied by: XHAERX:
Cash consideration received BYRRESKRE 332,461
Consideration receivable, BEREMEWRIE 2 ERNAE
included in other receivables 190
332,651
Net cash inflows on disposal: HEZRERAFE:
Consideration received 2 wRE 332,461
Bank balances disposed HE 2 BITEEER (25,681)
306,780
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ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s existing share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted and
became effective on 21 September 2011, all
directors (including independent non-executive
directors), full-time employees and consultants of
the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated
companies/associates are eligible to participate in
the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the
participants who have been granted options
under the Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interest in the Company and to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

(a) Maximum number of shares available
for issuance

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the Scheme, subject
to renewal as approved by the shareholders
of the Company. Upon the refreshment of the
Scheme mandate limit at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 August
2016, the maximum number of new share
options that can be granted under the Scheme
was 103,654,057 (the “Refreshed Share Option
Limit”). As at the date of this annual report,
the total number of shares that may be issued
under the remaining Refreshed Share Option
Limit is 56,390,557, representing approximately
5.17% of the number of the Company’s shares
in issue at that date.

42. W Bx 4 &t 2

REARBRBBRESS ([ZHE])
(R=F——FhA-+-RERARE
) AR -HWBARKR,REBE
DR/ BMBAZHBES (BIEBIF
HITESR) 2RESREBNGS28EZ
&2 &K

ZatEl 2 BNERAREBE AT ERE
REARBALFTEBR 228E  2H]
BAXLDBMAEARZ RS Y@
BREDBADARERRZEEA
BhHReARARERG ZEE-

(a) ATABITZRHHE LR

RIEZETEIR A A BRI E MG 2
REWFMEERERTEM AT T
BITHROEE LR FEEAR
ZEt Bt EZ B AR AR ZE BT
BR1310% » MHEBL AR D TR ERALE
BH -RAQNRAE=—Z—~ENA
TH=HET2REBFAEL
BT ERERIER  RIBEZE
BT HBREZE LRA
103,654,0578% ([ 485 37 88 B2 #E (R
B - RAFHMAH REKT L
FHERERIERERITZRMOE
B B £56,390,5578% » th A 2 AR
ZABBITROEE H5.17% °

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)

(b)

Maximum number of shares available
for issuance (Continued)

The overall limit on the number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the number of the
Company'’s shares in issue from time to time.
Taking into account the remaining Refreshed
Share Option Limit to subscribe for 56,390,557
shares and the 9,298,175 shares that may be
issued upon exercise of the outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme, the cumulative total number of
shares that may be issued under the Scheme is
65,688,732 shares, representing approximately
6.02% of the number of the Company’s shares
in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

(1) The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised options)
under the Scheme or any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company
in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the number of the Company’s
shares in issue unless otherwise approved
by the shareholders of the Company.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

42. MERR T8 (=)

(a)

(b)

B AN A A R 2018/2019 47

BT ZROHME LR

(#&)

RIEZT 8 R A QA EAE MG
BIFT A 1% M 180 AR 4T 15 B AR A
THEEUERITZADTARMDE
IR BBBARATTIEFNE 3
TRHOEHE 230% - LFT R AIRE
56,390,557 IR0 2 R T KR EH 8
RERBERATEZTEETE
REBRERITEZBRER T T3
1729,298,1758% Bz 10 1% > 7zt 8118
TAFRTZEFROELEER
65,688,732 » 1 A~ 2 B] A AR F 3R
HEER1TRMEE £86.02% °

B2RECBRERSE LR

W
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

298

(b) Maximum entitlement of each
participant (Continued)

)

Where any grant of options to
a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules),
would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted to
such person in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the number of the Company’s
shares in issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based

on the closing price of the shares of

the Company on the date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to
prior approval of the shareholders of the
Company who are not connected persons
of the Company as defined in the Listing
Rules.

42. Rk E (=)

(b) BS2HEEZBRERELR

(#&)

()
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(9)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an
option is granted or such shorter period as the
board of directors or the relevant committee
thereof may specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of granting an option, the board
of directors or the relevant committee thereof
must specify the minimum period(s) (if any), for
which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in whole or in part.

Period open for acceptance of an option

The offer of the grant of an option (of which
the date of grant must be a business day of the
Stock Exchange) must be accepted within 14
days after the date of grant.

Amount payable upon acceptance of the
option

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

42. MERR T8 (=)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(g) Basis of determining exercise price of
the option

The exercise price of the option shall be no less
than the highest of:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day;

the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

(h) Remaining life of the Scheme

300

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 20 September 2021 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme.

42. MERX 18Rt 8 (=)

(9)

(h)

BERRBITEEZREE

BREZITEESXATMERTI=
EzBEE:

() BXFFREREBH (ARER
BBz ARRAM2AED
AR THE

(i) BEPrREEIRH BRI @A
EXRHBHZARRAML A
DE R FIHRHE R

(i) AAAROREEBHZE
{E_O

Zat Bl 28R T F R
BRIERIBZAGTBRA T UL L &

AZE 8 2 BERERBI10FE W44
RZE-_—FhB=-+HE®R-
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At 31 March 2019, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme was 9,657,800 (2018:
54,415,725), representing approximately 0.89%
(2018: 5.20%) of the shares of the Company in issue

at that date.

Details of the movements of the share options

granted are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2019

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

42. MERR T8 (=)

RZFE-HAE=A=+—-H0 REZ
FEERERERTEZEREZR
% 2B £9,657,8000% (=& — )\ F:
54,415,7258%) " EZ BB AATE
BRITRHZ2H0.89% (=T — N\F:

5.20% ) °

RHUBREHE 2SBHBEOT

BE-Z-NE=Z=A=+—HLEE

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Exercised Lapsed asat
Category of Exercise price 1 April during during 31 March
participants Date of grant Exercise period per share 2018 the year the year 2019
(note 1)
R=B-N\F RZEB-hE
mA—H =A=1+-H
SHREQRH REAH kil BRTEE HATE RERTE  RERAXRX i RAT B
(3]
HK$
it
Directors 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96 3,785,500 (3,785,500) - -
25 November 2019
B2 ZE-WET-AS+AH ZE-OF+-AZTRHEE
“E-NE+-B=+EA
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 1.54 35,392,000  (30,200,000) - 5,192,000
4 September 2022
“Z-t¥NAEA “EZ-t§NAEAZ
“Z-"FENAMA
39,177,500 (33,985,500) = 5,192,000
Employees 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96 2,918,225 (2,002,925) - 915,300
25 November 2019
&8 “E-WE+-B=t+RE ZEB-OF+-AZ+RHEZE
ZE-NE+-A=TAH
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 1.54 12,320,000 (8,666,500) (103,000) 3,550,500
4 September 2022
—E-tFNAARA “Z-tENARERE
“E--ENAWA
15,238,225  (10,669,425) (103,000) 4,465,800
Total 54,415,725  (44,654,925) (103,000) 9,657,800
@zt
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 9,657,800

RESHRATTHR

L) At B AT PR A ] 2018/2019 4E- 3

301
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

42. MERX 18Rt 8 (=)

BE-Z-N\F=ZA=+—HLFE

Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Reclassified Exercised Lapsed asat
Category of Exercise price 1 April during during during during 31 March
participants Date of grant Exercise period per share 2017 the year the year the year the year 2018
(note 2) (note 1)
R-%-t& R=-N%
mA-B RER ZR=t-B
25EEY RiLBH fit:2 ) BRITEE HATE  REARHY ENSE  RERTR  RERR HATTE
(W) (GEA))
HKS
L
Directors 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 096 11,938,450 - - (8,152,950) - 3,785,500
25 November 2019
i3 ZE-MET-AZtAR ZE-BET-ACTRAE
“E-AF+-B=tER
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 154 - 34,060,000 1,332,000 - - 35,392,000
4 September 2022
ZZ-tEnAER Z2-t§NREAZ
Z2ZZENARA
11,938450 34,060,000 1,332,000 (8,152,950) - 39,177,500
Employees 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.9 2,938,000 - - (19,775) - 2,918,225
25 November 2019
8 ZE-PMET-AStRE ZE-BET-AStRE
“2-NE+-A=1ER
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 154 - 13,812,000 (1,332,000 - (160,000) 12,320,000
4 September 2022
“E-tFNAER ZE-tENRRRE
ZZZZENAMA
2,938,000 13,812,000 (1,332,000 (19,775) (160,000) 15,238,225
Total 14,876,450 47,872,000 - (8,172,725) (160,000) 54,415,725
&t
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 54,415,725
REEBRAGE
Note 1: In respect of the share options exercised during Mzl : BRERDITEZBRENS  HE
the year, the weighted average closing price AT B EA R0 2 bR E 3
of the shares immediately before the dates of BEAEBRB®1.26T (ZF—\F:
exercise is HK$1.26 (2018: HK$1.42) per share. W1 .427T) ©
Note 2: 1,332,000 share options were reclassified from a2 : AREBRELEENR=ZE—+tF+=

AARBEZEAARDIYTES W
1,332,00017 fE R FE R R S 5B B E 5
DEAEEER-

category of employees to directors as Mr. Lo Kai
Cheong was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 6 December 2017.
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In respect of fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2018, the inputs
into the model were as follows:

Spot price REE

Exercise price TEE
Expected volatility S
Risk-free rate # [ B ) R
Expected dividend yield FEHIR B =R
Exercise period TEHARE

The fair value of the share options is determined
using the Black-Scholes model. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair values of
the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimates. Change in variables and assumptions may
result in change in fair value of the share options.
Expected volatility is based on the historical share
price volatility of the Company over the past 5 years.
Expected dividend yield is based on the historical
dividend payment of the Company. The risk-free
interest rate is assumed with reference to HK$ swap
rate zero coupon yield as at the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
recognised equity-settled share-based payments of
approximately HK$12,582,000 (2019: nil) in relation
to share options granted by the Company to the
directors and employees of the Group.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

RREBEZZE-N\F=ZA=+—HLLHF
EHERCREBRENDIFENS - @A
RENWABBENOT

5 September 2017
—E-tFhAAH

HK$1.54

B #1.547T

HK$1.54

B #E1.547T

33.70%

1.11%

5.19%

5 September 2017 to
4 September 2022
—E-tFhAABE
“EZFHhAMA

BREZQAFEDERB DT EFHEET
BHBE -FEBREZQIFERER
CEEBRBRIENRES 2HEMTT-
SBERBRZEDUEEHBREZR
FEEZE AHKESIREARRBRESR
FUERERETE - BHREWERTS
RIEA A B LER BIRAS 5T E AR
RNSEREH AR 2 BB EHR KT
SEBmEERELHER-

REBE=Z-—N\E=ZA=+—HILEFE:

AEBRAQARABRETFAEEEERES
ZIERERRAURREER ARG
2 RIBH B %512,582,000t (= FE— N
FoME)o
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43. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 July 2016 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise the
contributions by certain persons (“Eligible Persons™),
including employees and directors of companies
within the Group, and to give incentives to them in
order to retain them for the continuing operation
and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by directors of the Company, the Share
Award Scheme is valid and effective for 3 years from
the Adoption Date (the “Award Period”).

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the directors
of the Company may, from time to time, at its
absolute discretion, select any Eligible Persons to
participate in the Share Award Scheme as selected
participants and determine the shares to be
granted, vesting criteria and conditions, and period
for the shares to be vested, subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the Share Award Scheme. The
directors of the Company shall not grant further
awards if they would result in the number of Award
Shares (defined as below) under the Share Award
Scheme exceeding 5% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of the Adoption Date.

The Company established a trust to purchase shares
of the Company for the benefit of employees and
the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
under the Share Award Scheme (the “Award
Shares”). Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award
Scheme, the Company has appointed a trustee,
Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited
(“Trustee”), to administer the Share Award Scheme
and to purchase and hold the Award Shares during
the Award Period. The Company would contribute
a maximum of HK$74,000,000 to the trust for the
purchase of shares under the Share Award Scheme.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & BA % 3t 3% Fff 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

43. Bk {7 Wt &

ARARRZZE—ARELAZ+NH ([
MAE]) RA—ERDEBTE (TRH
RETE]  URBEETAL ([EEH®
Ax]) (BEAEEETARZEER
EE)FHEMIUYE SR TER 8
B REREAREEZISEEER
BRMN RAFREEE-SBRERSE
BAS M AHARNATES I RREIRA
#1E > BRIRMREETEIRFRM B HE=
FR([REBHE]) BRRER -

RIS R R AR DESTLTE
2RBBEAARRALFREESR
E5RR R B - MR R
£ BEEERFEURR BB
A R DRI BT R 2 KR R 4
PR - IR (3 R B T 2 AR
BE (RERTX)BERFMEMER
TRHBME 25% AADESTEE
e ELE

ARAREBERODRBFECSHEARAR
HWBRAREERES 2FBERIUET
LB EARQBRMD (TRER®D]) - R\
ROZEFE 2R ARFEEER
BRRABLSETAERIABETA(E
AANRERBHERNEZRO KRB
SIRBEURKSAERBRM -REKRH
RBE ARADETEMRSEE
74,000,0007T LA BB B IR 17
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Unless the board of directors determines
otherwise at its absolute discretion, an award
shall automatically lapse upon (i) the resignation
of the selected participant’s employment; or
(ii) termination of the selected participant’s
employment or early termination of the contractual
engagement with the relevant member of the
Group by reasons of misconduct or otherwise
pursuant to law or employment or engagement
contract, and the relevant Award Shares shall not
vest on the relevant vesting date.

If there occurs an offer by way of takeover, merger,
scheme of arrangement, share repurchase or
otherwise, all the outstanding Award Shares shall
immediately vest on the date when such offer
becomes or is declared unconditional or in the case
of a scheme of arrangement on the record date for
determining entitlements under such scheme and
such date shall be deemed the vesting date.

If there is an event of any spin-off and separate
listing of any subsidiary, assets or businesses of the
Company on the Stock Exchange or elsewhere,
structured in whole or in part as a distribution
in specie or in respect of which shareholders are
otherwise entitled to participate, all the outstanding
Award Shares shall immediately vest on the earlier
of (i) the date of approval of the listing by the Stock
Exchange or other relevant regulatory body, and
(ii) the date that falls five business days prior to the
record date for the distribution in specie or other
date set for the entitlement to participate. Such
date shall be deemed the vesting date.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

BEEESRERE N()EESHEE
HASBEHEERE A AK L ERBEERES
HEASEHERE AR ZENERRER
RERHERISHNEAREZTRK
ERNHMRERMEANLL  RESEEE X
X0 MARRRBRD T ENEEEE B8
BE-RIESS2REHBEZITRE B

A oy 24
FE R °

fid AWEE - SO EAZ P S RO E
BRHEMTARELRY FIEERE 2R
B 1 R 2 B A R B K E i B AR
HEEIRREARIEME  NEEE
MBI T 2 Rz 28k A BB
BB MZAMSERAEBERN-

AN BZEMHE AT EEHEER
BXAREMRZAAFREBL LT 2
D BEE D IR R A AT
NEEZE At RE ZRBRD KR
LT RH (UREERE)NKGEE: (i)
BB aEmEEEReitEL®
Z B R>GNEWDIKET B A A EE
EHOZRALHEESE ZHMBAR-
FERSEERAREEBAY-
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BHE=

43.

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Trustee
purchased an aggregate of 51,700,000 shares of the
Company from the market at a total consideration
of approximately HK$71,995,000 (including directly
attributable incremental costs) and a total of
51,542,000 shares were granted to 88 eligible
participants on 10 March 2017 pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme. No shares were purchased or
granted by the Company under the Share Award
Scheme during the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.

Details of the movement of the Award Shares
granted under the Share Award Scheme are as
follows:

Number of
Award Shares

43. R EE B8 (=)

RBEE-ZE—tF=A=+—HLHF
E-EXACRTSLBEARQATE
$£51,700,000 B 17 R BRAEN BB
#£71,995,0007T (BiE H ERGIEE K
) BRZZE—tE=A+HRERN
REGECEOBEEERSHEHERES
351,542,000 B 13 - REBZE—Z—NF
FE=E-NF=ZA=+—BLEE &R
I EIRIER MO REEBERRER
ﬁ}o

RIEIR R BN > RDBR G 22
BHEDT

Number of Number of

Award Shares Award Shares

outstanding outstanding outstanding
as at 31 March Redlassified Lapsed as at Vested as at
Category of and 1 April during 31 March during 31 March
participants Date of grant Vesting date 2017 the year 2018 the year 2019
R=B-t# RZB-N\§F RZZ-N§
mA-H =R=t+-H =R=t+-H
HABEZ HREEZ eS| A
SHEER RUBH BRAM RBROEE RENEHDIE REREN RBRGA#E RERER RBRHHA
(Note)
(HizE)
Directors 10 March 2017 30 June 2018 31,664,000 2,209,000 - 33,873,000 (33,873,000) -
B3 “Z-t%=H+H “2-N\¥xAZtA
Employees 10 March 2017 30 June 2018 19,878,000 (2,209,000 (126,000) 17,543,000 (17,543,000) -
&8 “E-t§ZA+1H ZE-\§5A=1H
Total 51,542,000 - (126,000) 51,416,000 (51,416,000) -
@t
Note: 2,209,000 Award Shares were reclassified from Mizk: AREBREXER =S —tHF+=

BARBEZEAAQRTAHTES &
2,209,000/ S8 B RR (o R E E BRI B3
PEAESER-

category of employees to directors as Mr. Lo Kai
Cheong was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 6 December 2017.
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43.

44.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the shares granted pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme amounting to HK$67,189,000
was determined with reference to market value of
the shares at the grant date taking into account
the exclusion of the expected dividends during the
vesting period as the directors and employees are
not entitled to receive dividends paid during the
vesting period. During the year ended 31 March
2019, the Group recognised equity-settled share-
based payments amounting to HK$12,760,000 (2018:
HK$51,172,000) in relation to shares award pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme by the Company.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group'’s
bank loans were secured by the Group's assets as

43.

44.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

BB ET B (=)

RERORBFAZIAREROGZAFES
7 %£67,189,000T ' HI32ZRMHHREH
E B 2 mIBEEILE E R R B MER
EHRE (RRAZESREEREBH
EEEWEMRE2RE)MEE -
RIBEAQARRDRETERE 2B D &
EERBE-_ZT-AEF=A=+—AH1L
FEHEABRIAZUEREER UKD X
142 FRIBA7B%12,760,0007T (=ZF—N
F : #851,172,0007T) ©

HEEH

RIS DA EE 2 & B MR
FEKZERNT

follows:
31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Investment properties BREYE 697,250 1,049,200
Leasehold land and buildings HELHRETF 244,901 32,288
942,151 1,081,488

L) At B AT PR A ] 2018/2019 4E- 3
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
PERFORMANCE BONDS

308

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal
actions in respect of allegations of copyright
infringement and defamation were taken
against certain subsidiaries of the Company
carrying on its health products business. No
further steps had been taken against the
Group in respect of such actions after the
court hearing for directions to appoint experts
and exchange witness statements took place
in 2004. In 2018, the counterparty has been
voluntary winding-up and the case was closed
accordingly.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had an
outstanding corporate guarantee issued
to a bank in respect of banking facilities
granted to a joint venture of approximately
HK$67,125,000, which represents the Group's
proportionate share of the banking facilities
utilised as at 31 March 2018. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the fair values
of these financial guarantee contracts were
insignificant at initial recognition and no
provision for financial guarantee contracts has
been made at 31 March 2018. During the year
ended 31 March 2019, the joint venture’s bank
loan has been fully repaid.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

45. RARARKEBHRE

(a)

(b)

REBZ-ZEENF=A=+—H1
FEA RQARETHREREER
XK 2B A RMEBILIRERFZE
ZIEERREEERAD-R-ZZ
MEREFERRIIBEARME
BB ziETRRKRME  ZSHAR
BRRAMREAAEERNE—F1T
B -R—E-—N\F BHLBEMEE
B oHEER-

RZZBE-NEFE=ZA=+—0 K&
ER—BeELXERZBITHE
BHER—ERTREZARERY
B #67,125,0007T Z R EHARE
BRI IEZR=E—N\FE=A
=St+—HEBAZRTREEE K
RAEERB ZEUBEREY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
PERFORMANCE BONDS (continued)

(@

(d)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had an
outstanding counter indemnity in favour of
the partners of a joint venture amounting to
HK$62,000,000 which represents the Group's
maximum liability. This maximum liability
was determined among the parties to the
counter indemnity with reference to the
Group’s proportionate share of estimated
amount of interest payment under the banking
facilities granted to the joint venture and the
cost overrun in respect of the renovation,
management and marketing and leasing of
the property held by the joint venture. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair value of the counter indemnity is
insignificant at initial recognition and no
provision for counter indemnity had been
made at 31 March 2018. During the year ended
31 March 2019, the joint venture’s bank loan
has been fully repaid.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had
outstanding performance bonds in respect
of construction contracts amounting to
HK$136,941,000 (2018: HK$222,991,000).

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

45. XR BB REBEVRE &)

(9]

(d)

B AN A A R 2018/2019 47

RZE-NF=ZA=+—H &&
EEaE (e B ARBRBER
%5 %62,000,0007T - HAHE R A
SEvEaABE - ESAEIIH
RABRBZIINFESELRER
Rl E2RTFTEELEZR
TREEEET 2 ME KM
SHENEHAECENBEYE
ZHH EERTEEEREEYS
ReRABLEEE - RNQARES
RE RBERBZATFERDS
BREBETIEN R =ZF—N\F
ZA=+- AT ERRBERS
ELBE - REBZE-ZT—LF=A
=S+—HLEFE SELEZRIT
BERCBHEER-

R=ZB-NE=ZRA=+—80 &&
EREESVNBFECBARZAE
#5136,941,000T (ZZ— N\FE B
#£222,991,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

46. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

the following commitments:

For v S 2 A B

46. W B K i

VRERR  NEEB AT EE:

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\E
ZA=+—-H | ZBR=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Capital expenditure contracted  Fh T ¥ FEE T Q1B KRR
for but not provided in REMBHRRANZERIZ S :
the consolidated financial
statements in relation to:
Acquisition of a property under WHEBEREPZFEME
development for sale - 409,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—ERE AR - 454,505
Acquisition of investment WEBREYF
properties 440,100 -
440,100 863,505
The Group’'s share of the commitments made rEBOEEAMEELEBHENEE

jointly with other joint ventures relating to the
joint ventures, but not recognised at the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

13 B 1F H B P 3R 5 HA 18 R e 3 2 7K

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

=A=+-8 | =B=+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Commitments to provide loans R E R EYE 382,857 757,206
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k

47. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
in respect of rented premises under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

47. EEHEKIE

A A

RBEHR  RNEERBEN T REEER
EERERYE 2 R RREEE K
EZEBBERMT

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—8H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within one year —FR® 4,310 4,100
In the second to fifth year F_EZEFEDLF (BREEEWMSE)

inclusive 2,425 2,682

After five years HFE#% 6,400 6,400

13,135 13,182

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable REHEREEAEEAEETHAE

by the Group for certain of its office properties,
warehouses and shops. Leases are negotiated for
term of one to three years (2018: one to three
years), except for an office located in Hong Kong
with term of thirty years. Rentals are fixed over the
respective leases.

There are certain lease agreements, according to
which the Group is committed to pay the higher
of a minimum guaranteed amount or a monthly
payment equivalent to a prescribed percentage of
a monthly sales as rental. The minimum guaranteed
rental payments are included above. The respective
contingent rental payment for the year ended
31 March 2019 amounted to HK$209,000 (2018:
HK$213,000).

M EEREBHESz2HS KERHZ
HEABNTF—Z=F (ZB—NF: —
2=F) HEHA—EEBNHAENAE
ENRASFERI - FEHEZHEAE
TE o

REETHESYH  FEEEFITRE
RESEIATRE(ZEAREALEE
HeiETa 2 EAHS ) MEPRSH
RE-REREHESREBERLRRA -

BE-ZE-hE=A=1+—HALEE:

MBS A & FIE A B %209,0007T (=
Z— \F : #B%213,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 B4 % ) 2 ¥t 33
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

47. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 47. EEHERIE &)
(Continued)
As lessor HEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RIBER AEBCHBFEN BB
had contracted with tenants for the following REYEZHERKESOT:

future minimum lease payments in respect of the
investment properties:

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within one year —FRr 19,708 17,804
In the second to fifth year F_EELF (BREEWSF)
inclusive 11,001 21,677
30,709 39,481
Leases are negotiable for lease term ranging from HAORAER FHENF—ZE=F-
one to three years.
48. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 48. iR fFi& ¥l 5t &
With the implementation of Mandatory Provident BER—_ZEZEF+-A—BEBET
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong on 1 December 2000, BEMEAEEETE AEEEEFRIER
the Group has maintained the defined contribution FRNGTEBURBIEMER L 2 ERBH KRG
scheme registered under the Occupational 2 WEERRETRAMEARETEIK
Retirement Schemes Ordinance and has obtained Bl ([FREERBI]) ZHRE -

an exemption satisfying the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(“MPFO").
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48. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

To comply with the MPFO, a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with voluntary
contributions has been established. New employees
must join the MPF Scheme since its commencement
on 1 December 2000. The Group contributes 5% to
10% of the relevant payroll costs for each employee
to the MPF Scheme, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 for the MPF Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees.

The amounts charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represent contributions paid and
payable to the schemes by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes less forfeitures
arising from employees leaving the Group prior to
completion of qualifying service period. The amount
for the year is as follows:

48.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

RAFRFIGHR (2)

ARERBEESHRI AEEEKRIA
BREMHRzBESE ([REEE
g - R-ZZTZEF+-_A-—HHKBE
TEEEI AR HESLAMA RS
- AEREAS U ESMNBESEIH
HMEETERANS%E10% ' 5 ABIE
© 5T 811 RI WA it X L BR %2 78 630,000
T HERGEESHENTS -

EFESBEERANRZSEEAEERR
ZEFERABEE 2L ROZEFET
R 2R BmERED B HREF
BENEERSABRBRAEE ZEEF
BB HR - AFEZRBENT

2019 2018

—E-AEF —ZET-N\EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Contributions paid and payable B 14 & FE{ 5k 21,422 21,586
Forfeiture R U TR (379) (44)
21,043 21,542

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, there is no forfeited
contribution arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits schemes and which were
available to reduce contributions payable.

B AN A A R 2018/2019 47
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

49. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position and notes 22, 26, 27, 28, 29 and 30, the
Group also entered into transactions with the
following related parties during the year:

49. B AT RBEREZ S

BRI EGRE BIISARR R K BiEE22 ~26 ~27 »
28 29 30PN & 2 RASE A A5 ER AN - AR
EEFRTETIEBALERRS:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Subsidiaries of HKRI (Note d): REEBBEEMB LR (MEEd) :
- Construction income (Note a)  —ZEZEUA (MfzEa) - 365
— Interior and renovation —H e RAEBWA (FizEa)
income (Note a) 188 43
Joint ventures of the Group: REFEESELE:
- Construction income (Note b)  —ZZEUR A (KizEb) 5,847 53,945
- Project management income —THAEEWRA (H&Eb)
(Note b) 6,030 1,628
Subsidiaries of Million Hope ESWHB AR (MiaEd) :
(Note d):
- Rental expenses —HeEA (MFakc)
(Notes a and ¢) (54) =
— Rental income (Notes aand ¢) —f& U A (Kfzfakc) 2 -
Related party in which certain REARRETESESZ
directors of the Company BEEEA L
have control:
- Design, supply and installation —R&t - HERZEERER
of aluminium windows and iR A (Fizta)
curtain walls service income
(Note a) 1,631 -
- Rental expenses (Note a) —HEeEA (H:Ea) (32) (34)
An associate of the Group: REAEEHE AT :
- Rental expenses (Note b) —HeER (MzEb) (211) (200)
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49. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

These related party transactions constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules but are exempted from disclosure
and other requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

These related party transactions do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Subsequent to distribution of Million Hope's shares
held by the Group to the shareholders of the
Company on 18 March 2019, Million Hope and its
subsidiaries ceased to be the subsidiaries of the
Group. The amounts represent the rent paid to
Million Hope Group for the office premise and the
rent received from Million Hope Group for the car
parking space for the period from 19 to 31 March
2019.

HKRI and Million Hope are regarded as related
companies in which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
("CCM Trust”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and certain discretionary trusts have
beneficial interests.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

49. BEA T REBEREZH (&)

MIaE -

(a)

(b)

(o]

(d)

HERBA TR B EH LEHRAE14A
BEEECHERS MHERELHRAE
VAR A H R EREAMBRE

HEABALTXZTERLETRAUE
VAR EZHERGRFEBER
%O

REZB-NF=ZA+NHAXRDIARE
IRBEAKEREXTHROEK XFR
HNBARATBAAEENB AR Z
SHEE—_T-NF=ATNABE=1+—
RHESBAZMECS N X KENE
ERBEENERETEENESE-

BERAEEHITHEEARQTEERR
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited ([CCM
Trust ) REFEEGETENEFHEEE
Eny 3agpd )P

FTEEBAS 25

AEEESRAMTEERAS 2 HH

of key management during the year are as follows: M
2019 2018
—E-hnEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
For continuing and BESERCRIEREER
discontinued operations .
Fees we _ 5,000 5,000
Salaries and other benefits FERHEHAMET 30,874 18,755
Performance related incentive ITERRERE
payments _ 44,220 49,550
Retirement benefits schemes RREFIET IR
contributions 2,811 2,589
Equity-settled share-based URESEER AR T 2B
payments 11,536 57,928
94,441 133,822
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVES

50. 0T Z M # KR &R R & 0w

31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-hEF —E-N\E
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RER—EHEAF 326,740 326,740
Current assets mEBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEULHT B L R FIE 559,941 449,848
Other receivables H{th FE R FRIB 14 1
Taxation recoverable AR B B8 - 118
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE 3,657 9,352
563,612 459,319
Current liabilities nBEE
Other payables and H B RRIBER
accrued charges EstEA 3,751 1,120
Amounts due to subsidiaries PEAS FfY B A BRI FRIR 4,417 2,847
8,168 3,967
Net current assets REEEEE 555,444 455,352
882,184 782,092
Capital and reserves IR R 4
Share capital [N 109,083 104,618
Reserves (Note) & (ML) 773,101 677,474
882,184 782,092
The statement of financial position of the Company ARBZzHBRRRLEEER=F
was approved and authorised for issue by the board “AEANA-THRARERRERM
of directors on 25 June 2019 and is signed on its WHTHESRKKEE:
behalf by:
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Tai Sai Ho
T ittE Hit=
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZ EE
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

50. E 0T Z M # KR &R R 0w

OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVES (#&)
(Continued)
Note: FtaE
Movements in reserves of the Company: ARBZHEE2EE:
Shares
Share- held for
based share
Share  compensation award  Accumulated
premium reserve scheme profits Total
DY) RARH
BZ L] #EErE
R 5RE MetE mEEZRG ES gl @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BRI T BET T BRI T
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tFMA—-H 589,023 5,196 (71,995) 55,473 577,697
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEEREFIK 2 HE K= L5
income for the year - - - 100,050 100,050
Dividends paid ERZRE - - - (71,056) (71,056)
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ T{EERIREM 1T 2 KH
share options 8,185 (1,156) - - 7,029
Share option lapsed BRERNY - 42) = 42 -
Recognition of equity-settled BAUERLEER
share-based payments URGBZ A 2RE - 63,754 - - 63,754
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=+-H 597,208 67,752 (71,995) 84,509 677,474
Profit and total comprehensive ~ REERFIR2EKELE
income for the year - - - 600,031 600,031
Dividends paid EfzKRE - - - (78,463) (78,463)
Dividend by way of distribution in XE¥ 2 kK B2 A2
specie of subsidiaries (Note 15) 2k 2R & (HfEE15) - - - (500,048) (500,048)
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ {TfEEERE M T2 R
share options 71,979 (11,033) - - 60,946
Share option lapsed B AR = (27) = 27 =
Recognition of equity-settled BAUEREER
share-based payments DR % 1 2 508 - 12,760 - - 12,760
Award shares vested BERBRG = (67,024) 71,599 4,575) -
Sale of shares under BERGRBE
share award scheme HEZRH - - 39 5 401
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-RF=ZA=+-H 669,187 2,428 - 101,486 773,101

L) At B AT PR A ] 2018/2019 4E- 3
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BHE=

51.

52.

318

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank loans disclosed in Note
36, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors

- BeRRER

FEEEEHES URARAKEANRE
BRAUSECERANEE ARTER
EREREREE ERETEMARR
FERAER - AEEMNEERMBEF

ESRBTE -

AEENEREBRFER (BEKE
RHE6ZRITERNBRREERREE
BE)URER (BEEBTRAEA -RER
RHaR) FER -

RAREEEHMMANEERRBE FARL
Bz —8D  ARRESERESTRA
REZEETHRERR REFQFE
EMER AREREBIRERERET
R URBITHERRBEEBEEEHU

of the Company, the Group will balance its overall THHBREREE
capital structure through the payment of dividends
and new share issues, as well as the issue of new
debts and the redemption of existing debts.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 52. BB IR
Categories of financial instruments BT AR
31.3.2019 31.3.2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Financial assets B EE
Investments held for trading BIEEEZRE - 580
Financial assets at FVTPL ZRBHERAFETEZ
— held for trading MBEE-FHIEFEE 519 -
Loans and receivables (including & & EUWFIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BREeshBELEE) 1,501,508 1,742,337
Financial liabilities ke E
At amortised cost R85 AN 629,565 742,383
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
loans to joint ventures, retention money receivable,
trade debtors, other receivables, amounts due from
joint ventures, amount due from a related party,
bank balances and cash, financial assets at FVTPL/
investments held for trading, trade and other

payables and bank loans.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities is
mainly HK$, the currency in which most of the

transactions are denominated.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets which are bank
balances and cash, of the group entities at the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

52. MBI R #)

BEREEBEREE

REFTEYBTEARESEREER
FE U AR [E] & ~ FEWCRRIR ~ HL A FEURRIR
RS & REFIR - EWEEBA T RIR
RITEBRAS  BRBREATEFTE
ZHBEE FHEEEZRE - BAFR
REEARBERRITER

BEAZEM BT A ZHBRAREMER
B -Z2EUBIASR 2ARKBEAE
FRERzEREN T -EEEEERE
ZZ SRR URRRRENE BRI
BN

™ 15 & By
() EEmEE
FEEEERCUHREERETERB

B REBRZ IR EHE

AEEZERNIMERARUINES
BEzEREERRTHEBRES
ZEREEMNT

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

=A=+—8 | =ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Euro BT 2,241 =
MOP P 872 893
RMB AR 655 1,546
usD =TT 39 531
AUD BT - 17
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. MBI R (&)

Financial risk management objectives and HMERREEEERBER (&)

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) TR (&
(i)  Currency risk (Continued) () EEEEk (&)

The management of the Group considers that
the currency risk of the above monetary assets
and monetary liabilities is not significant to the
Group except from Euro and RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

In addition, the carrying amount of the
foreign currency denominated inter-company
receivable (payable) balances recorded in the
statement of financial position of the group
entities at the end of the reporting period are

FEEEEERR LAEREER
ENEBEzERAR (BTRAR
WRINHAEEL EEATLE-
REEREIEIELPHE - R
- EEEERIMERRE  WAERE
FEREBHPERIMNERM -

O RBERR REEEMBE
AR 3R P RC 82 LAONES 5HE 2 B IR
() AR BAESRZREENT

as follows:
31.3.2019 31.3.2018
=E-NEFE | =R
=A=t—-H | =A=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
RMB against HK$ AR H B - (31,721)
HK$ against RMB BEEARE 101 1,747
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation
against a foreign currency of Euro and RMB
against HK$. The financial impact on the
exchange differences arising from a foreign
currency of HK$ against Euro and RMB is
expected to be insignificant to the Group. The
following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 10% increase and decrease in respective
functional currency (i.e. HK$) against the
relevant foreign currency (i.e. Euro and
RMB). 10% is the sensitivity rate used which
represents the management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in a foreign
exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 10% change
in a foreign currency rate. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
where HK$ strengthens 10% against Euro and
RMB. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against
Euro and RMB, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the
amount below would be negative.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

52. MBI R #)

BREMREEEERBEK (&)

miSEE (F)
() E#EmEE (&)

FEEEBAZE IR ARER B
B2 NER B R R R - TREBEE A
BIRARBZINERBEEZE
RERBAEENMBLEL T
ER-TRHAIAEEY BB IEE
&5 (BN78%) A RAERa SNE (BD
BTk AR BN 10%H
HRBE-10% (EAZBRE)TS
EEEHIEERTREHRAZE
EoPNFL -BRESNERRE
B REH LN SIENE R IRE
WA FRFINEER10% S BIE L
BIAE - T L IEBRRB KR
mERBEELBRTRAREE
10% °fid B R BT R ARBER
TER10%  #EHRBRENEE
ERMERNEE MUTSEAUS
=E L

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Euro against HK$ BT B (187) =
RMB against HK$ ARBH B - 2,649
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%< Mtk

52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. MBI R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HHEREERFERBEEK (&)

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) %
(i) Interest rate risk (ii)

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to the Group’s variable-rate bank loans which
are linked to the HIBOR and bank balances
at the prevailing market deposit rate. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The directors of the Company consider the
Group's exposure of bank balances to interest
rate risk is not significant as interest bearing
bank balances are within short maturity
period. The Group’s sensitivity to interest
rate risk has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank loans at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. The
Group's sensitivity to interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period while all other
variables were held constant is as follows:
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i1)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

52. MBI R #)

BKEREREEERBER (#)

S EkE (&

(i) FIFEmEE (&

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\E
Reasonably possible change 3R] BE & 18 ih 2% A 1L 50 basis 50 basis
in interest rate points points
SOfE & & SOfE & &
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Decrease in post-tax profit for REERBEER
the year as a result of an AR FIZE EF s
increase in the interest rate (1,465) (1,651)
Increase in post-tax profit for REERBEER
the year as a result of a FR A FI 2= TS & 1 38 A0
decrease in the interest rate 1,465 1,651

Equity price risk

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL (2018:
held for trading investments) include listed
equity securities in Hong Kong. These listed
equity securities are subject to market price
risk. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. Details of the financial
assets at FVTPL/investments held for trading
are set out in note 31. The management of the
Group considers that the market price risks of
these investments are not significant to the
Group.

(iii) R (BB f2

AEEZBBEEEATEAEZY
BEE (ZZ2—/\F BFEEZR
B)EREBELMRAES ZF L
mRAESAEAZHSERRR-
EEEURITERERKFHRE
HEREHBRRER BBBERE
DRPEAECHBEE HIEFEE
ZREFBHRMEE - AKEE
EERAREREZTSERAR
HAEEMSAEFREKR
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. MBI R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERBEEEREREE &)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERB R REETM
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which rEEFREAZZEAEERR (IR
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure ShHARBITHEEIMEHAREE LR
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is BB K) B2 BIRBFEE M BARR R
arising from the carrying amount of the respective BIERBHERATTENUREERDE
financial assets at amortised cost and contract RENEEZREHE-

assets recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Other than those financial assets whose carrying RIEEEGZERKRMEERAXEERR
amounts best represent the maximum exposure to WZEMBEEN FEERAEERR
credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit BRAEETRGKEL  BEBERAE
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group BRUUEERZIABBEEERK
arising from the amount of contingent liabilities FE45 ©

in relation to financial guarantees provided by the
Group is disclosed in note 45.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the ATRERKEERR ~KEEEED
management of the Group has delegated a team ZE-HEANEEEEITEERE &
responsible for determination of credit limits, Rk H A B fE i 0 AR R B HREUR
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures ETBREEBAR -FRLmS  AEEH
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover EEERALAEE2EERKRE KGR
overdue debts. In this regards, the management Rotboh REBRRAEBMBRELE
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk BN RERRERENEERER
is significantly reduced. In addition, the Group BERHEFEBEEXN (Z2-N\F:E2
performs impairment assessment under ECL model EEBBEER) IERNBEERETRE
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred o

loss model) on trade debtors and contract assets
individually or based on provision matrix.

The Group has no significant concentration of HRERDSHRZEHTREF &
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of rEBUTEIMEMEARTINEER
counterparties and customers. Bz o
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

52. MBI R #)

BKEREREEERBER (#)

EERRNBER L ()

REEABEERBRBFFEREUAT

comprises the following categories: Hhl:
Internal Trade debtors/
credit rating Description contract assets Other financial assets
RS E R Bk BURE/ SREE HitHEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
Bk REHFENERE BEYEEMENSE FERECEHEESE 2EARMEERSRE
- BEEHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
but usually settle after due date - not credit-impaired
BRLE ERARERIARAEREBENIHE FEPBABCESE 12EARHEEEE
&&B -BEEHE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit risk since initial recognition through - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
A& BREANASERIIMBERGHNEERR FERE RNEERE FREUBABEEER
BRER EREEM - BEEHE -BEERHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - credit-impaired - credit-impaired
i AREBERTEECHREERE FENB RAGEERE FEPHCEMEEESE
-BHREERE -EHREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
6 ARBETERARABREMBRE mAL KEHEMH % & ZE M 35
EEERES WE R
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In addition, the Group has applied different loss
rates to the internal credit rating category according
to the classification and nature of respective
financial assets.

Trade debtors and contract assets

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the
Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECL for trade debtors and
contract assets.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group applies internal credit rating for its
customers. The ECL for credit-impaired trade debtors
with gross carrying amounts of HK$12,249,000
as at 31 March 2019 and trade debtors and
contract assets receivable from departments of
The Government of HKSAR with gross carrying
amounts of HK$36,573,000 and HK$140,721,000 are
assessed individually. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade debtors and contract assets which are assessed
based on provision matrix as at 31 March 2019
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

52. MBI R #)

MEEREEBEERBER (&)

EERRNBER L (&)

o AEEERESMBEE 2D ER
HEMBPRBEEFRARNERTEE

BRe

BRI BEREHEE

RZZB-NFHA-BRATBYKR
HERBENRE  NEBEABLERE
BUBREZENENFAENEAHREE
BERENXHREBE  AFRBUERS
NEEERFEBE2AHEESE

ERAEAEBEERREEN —I5
rEBAEREFERARBEETR
—E-hEF=ZA=+-—HEREAEBESB
#512,249,0007T HY 15 B 8 B FE WL =X 18
% BRH 42 {5 78 #536,573,00000 & B ¥
140,721,0007T =2 FE UK & B 45 Bl 1T BUE B
AP zEBRERENEENTERE
EFESRERTE  TRIEMEEEK
MEREHNEEGERBNER ZEE
RIIREBE-_FT-NE=ZBA=1+—HNHEF
BEOEEREESE (UEEERE)
9 135 485 B fE SR o
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

52. MBI R #)

BEREREEEEREE (&)

FERBREBRERN G (#)

(Continued)
Gross carrying amount BRE4E
Average Trade Contract
loss rate debtors assets
FHUBEE W A BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit rating ABEETR BETT BETT BETT
Low risk 1B LB 0.41% 30,854 127,129
Watch list BREE 0.97% 9,323 -

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is reasonable, supportable
and available without undue cost or effort.
Management performs review regularly to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.

ETBRRDIREEBAFHFHNB
EMEEENRME  URBATHBE
AR N A IESEE AT
HERMEL AR EREEHESSA
IR EH BB EERANEREER
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. MB IR (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERREEBEERBEE (&)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERBRREENE (&)
(Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime TRATRAERBIERIBBRIER
ECL that has been recognised for trade debtors and BHREENGFEPER-RBEEFES
contract assets under the simplified approach. o
Trade debtors Contract assets
ERE ANEE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(credit- (not credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired) Total impaired)
FEBEZ
HHEERE FERE FEBEZ
(BHE BHREEES BRHREEESR
FEHE) (LEREEHE) ait (YEEEHE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BETR BETT BETR

At 1 April 2018 - HKFRS 9 RZZE-N\EMA-A
-ERUBHRERNENR 2,649 14,208 16,857 1,623

Changes due to financial instruments RZZ-NEMA-H

as at 1 April 2018: AEBIEEENED:

- Transfer to credit-impaired -EZFERE 9,600 (9,600) = =

— Impairment loss recognised -ERARESE - - - 466

- Impairment loss reversed -CRERERSE - (3.837) (3,837) (1,145)
New financial assets originated FEEIBENHBEE

or purchased - 196 19 321
Dividend by way of distribution NENARKELAZ

in specie of subsidiaries KA RZRE = (751) (751) (495)
At 31 March 2019 RZB-AFZA=+-H 12,249 216 12,465 770
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Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Included in the impairment loss recognised on trade
debtors are individually impaired trade debtors
with an aggregate balance of HK$12,249,000 (2018:
HK$2,649,000) which have either been placed under
liquidation or in financial difficulties or in dispute.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The Group writes off a trade debtor when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade debtors are over
three years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has concentration
of credit risk with 48% of the total trade debtors
was due from the Group’s largest customer,
departments of The Government of HKSAR. In view
of their credit standings, good repayment record in
the past and long term relationships with the Group
and taking into consideration of forward-looking
information, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is not material.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

EERRNBER L ()

BERERAEVZKENREBERN
4EER A FE 8 512,249,000 (=& — N
F : 7B%2,649,0007T ) A 1B B E 2 FEU
MIE  ZERE 2 YRR IE IEfE 5 A8 5 B
BHEBRR#SFET SEESERZE
RS EEMIEER-

ERENETEBABMABREN BRE
B Ip B R U 0 FRIR A W e i (W1E 75
ABBEBRIEANRER  RHEWFR
Ms ESHCBAPEB=F (URFH#
EERE)) AEESHFEREYFR-

N-B-NE=ZA=+—1 KEEE&E
FiEERR 8% EWFEABELME
WAEBERAZFHNRIE  BEKEBSE
BT E AT ZBFI I FRIE - R B EWE
BARR - BERFHERGCEREREE
WRIBEILFT RAEEER KATE
ERAEEENEERBRIEFTEK-
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

330

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group's other financial assets, which are subject

to ECL assessment:

52. MBI R (&)

BERREEEEREE (&)

EERBNBER G (&)

TRAFNEEHEBMBEERAEZRF
Rk AZRBEEERT GRS

Gross carrying

External Internal amount as at
credit rating credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL 31 March 2019
TR R=-E-h#F
HIBEE RABEE FEHMe ZA=t-H
R R BHEEER fEREAE
HK$'000
BET T
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBERATENGEEE
Loans to joint ventures N/A Low risk 12m ECL 522,498
BEREER TEA KRR +T-EAEBEESE
Amounts due from joint ventures N/A Low risk 12m ECL 864
EREErERE TERA KRR +T-EAEBEERSE
Amount due from a related party N/A Low risk 12m ECL 24,364
FEWR BB A T FUB TEA KEKR +T-EARHEESE
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL 8,581
Hib WA TEA KRR +T-EAEBEESE
Bank balances A or above N/A 12m ECL 868,896
RITH& AZ L E TER TZEREHEERE
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

For the purpose of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. The Group determines that the internal
crediting rating for loans to joint ventures, amounts
due from joint ventures, amount due from a related
party and other receivables are low risk.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

52. MBI R #)

BKEREREEERBER (#)

FERBREBRERN G (#)

RETANEERRER AEBEAE
BEXEHENAETEERTEEERRES
BARERE RGN - AEEBEESE
HEER  BREEDERR - EIREE
ATHERHEMEVRFENREEERT
RBERE

Not past due/

no fixed

repayment
Past due terms Total

REH,/
Bl KETEROR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BETT
Loans to joint ventures SEDEER = 522,498 522,498
Amounts due from joint ventures EINAE HEFE - 864 864
Amount due from a related party FEURBIE A LB = 24,364 24,364
Other receivables Hib W FE = 8,581 8,581
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans to joint ventures and amounts due from joint
ventures

For the purpose of internal credit risk management,
the Group regularly monitors the business
performance of joint ventures. The Group's credit
risks in these balances are mitigated through the
value of the assets held by the joint ventures.
Before granting the loans to joint ventures,
the management of the Group has obtained
understanding to the financial background and
business performance of the joint ventures. In the
opinion of the management of the Group, the
counterparties are with good credit worthiness
based on their financial background and the risk
of default by the counterparty is not significant.
As at 31 March 2019, the gross carrying amounts
of loans to joint ventures and amounts due from
joint ventures are HK$522,498,000 and HK$864,000,
respectively.

52. MBI R #)

MEEREEEERBER (&)

EERBNBER G (&)

BELEENRENEELFNE

AETABEERKRERE  FAEETHE
REEPENEBRE - AEBERZE
EHNEERRBASELEMSNE
EEBERL BTFEELEENA K&
EEEEC TREELENMEKES
¥RRB - AEBEEERA HAHARH
MBEEEMEERTF WEHTEANE
BARRK-RZZB—AF=A=+—0'&
ECEETNEAAERERESEE
HIFRIE 5 Bl A& 78 #5522,498,0007T K 78 %
864,0007T °
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. MBI R (@)
Financial risk management objectives and MERREEEERBER (&)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment FEERBRBENE (&)
(Continued)

Loans to joint ventures and amounts due from joint BELXEHNRENEELFKHNIE
ventures (Continued) (#&

The following table shows the movement in 12m TRIATAECHEELCEERRERSE
ECL (not credit-impaired) that has been recognised EhHXEREI T @EAEHREESE
for loans to joint ventures and amounts due from (BREERE) WS-

joint ventures.

Amounts
Loans to due from
joint ventures joint ventures
ERaeE
EEDEER I
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 April 2018 — HKFRS 9 HN-—ZE—N\EWmA—H
—BEBNBRELERENR 105 -
Changes due to financial R=-Z—NFMA—H
instruments as at 1 April 2018: HUBTITAEEENEE:
— Impairment loss reversed — B EREEIE (105) =
New financial assets originated ¥ ELHBEMNHTHEE
or purchased - 847
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZE-NE=ZA=+—H - 847
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. MBI R (#)

334

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Amount due from a related party

No allowance for impairment was made since
the management of the Group considers that
the loss given default is minimal after assessing
the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

Other receivables

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the management of the Group has obtained
understanding to the credit background of the
debtors and undertaken the internal credit approval
process. The Group applies internal credit rating
for its debtors. No allowance for impairment was
made since the management of the Group considers
that the probability of default is minimal after
considering the counterparties’ repayment history.

Bank balances

For the purpose of internal credit risk management,
the Group mainly transacts with banks with
high credit ratings and regularly monitors the
international credit rating of the counterparties.
No allowance for impairment was made since
the management of the Group consider that the
probability of default is negligible as such amounts
are receivable from or placed in banks with good
reputation.

MEEREEBEERBER (&)

EERRNBER L (&)

EREEBEA £+ 50 H

HREFEETHWYBEEREER
FEEERERBBAENREN HIAL
EIHRRERE -

H 1t fEW KR

ERAEREERBEEN 3D £&E
EEEEC THERANGESRLE
TTARBEERERF AEEHEBA
ETRBEENR -REBYH S ZEERT
®& AEEEEERAENNTREMEE
B AL SRR E R

RITAEE

RETABEERRER AEETERHE
FEARSNRITRS  UERETHT
KBS ERTAR - IR BB FUR WS TF
HABERFNRT AREEEEIR
BN R T 2R A5t IR
ERfE-
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Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank and
other loans and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group has available unutilised borrowing facilities
of approximately HK$1,554,344,000 (2018:
HK$2,100,389,000). Details of bank loans are set out
in note 36.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

REE SRR

EEERBESERK AEEEERE
REERRARAEERHESEERE
ZRERREEZE2KFRBERER
RETR2FE EEEERRITRHAM
ERBARBRES EREGE-

AEBRBRITEMMEAEENRHE
ERRE-R-_ZE—-—HIhF=ZA=1+—8>

AEENESZABARTEEENS
7B#51,554,344,0005T ( —F— /\F : B
2,100,389,0007T) ° SR{ITER ZFHBHN
Ff5E36 °

TS 2R A 7S B I8 L A 160 T 22 R AR R Y B
BEBEZENRGRIMAE -HRETE
BHEE LRDREAEEATES

XTWRFRAHzUBEERTRARE
MR B2 SRBEREEKRRZE
TENRFARERBR TWRITRES
AR BT EEER - Kb I 0T E B 58
BEZIYAREHEERAPEE-
ZREEANERAERER -
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

52. ¥ TR (&)

BRREEEEREEK (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEERER (&)
Liquidity tables REEL &K
As at 31 March 2019 ﬁﬁ‘:j;—:f-lb_fiﬁ Weighted  On demand
- average or Total
effective less than 1-2  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years cash flow amounts
MEFY RERY i)
ERA= TR-F 125 RERAH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAl BETT BETR BETR BETR
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ JEfT4 B EE
Trade and other payables ENREREBEMNTE - 171,613 106,952 278,565 278,565
Bank loans - variable rate * BRITER-FHEE 2.50 351,000 - 351,000 351,000
522,613 106,952 629,565 629,565
As at 31 March 2018 R=E-NF=ZA=+-H
Weighted On demand
average or Total
effective less than 1-2  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years cash flow amounts
IAEF g RERHY RTR
BRA= TR—F 1-2% BeREHE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BOL BETT BRI BETT BETT
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 MK EE
Trade and other payables EAFERE RN TE - 269,009 77,867 346,876 346,876
Bank loans - variable rate * RITER-—FHEE~ 2.00 395,507 - 395,507 395,507
Financial guarantee contract BEEREN - 67,125 - 67,125 =
731,641 77,867 809,508 742,383

& The interest rates applied to projected undiscounted
cash flows of variable rate bank loans are the
interest rates at the end of the reporting period.

* FEHERRTERZEMARTRARER
PR AB R RS MERR 2R
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
E-hE=ZBA=+—-HLHFE

52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

The amounts above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rate differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 1
year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$351,000,000 (2018: HK$395,507,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank loans as at 31
March 2019 will be repaid within three (2018: two)
years after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements, details of which are set out in the table
below:

52. MBI R #)

BE=

BKEREREEERBER (#)

REBEERMR (&)

MBELH (B

MEAFETEFKEBZETIAZS

%E AERF B RIR 2 BB RN R E

HiRE

B NEREHE=REFHED-

HEUERH DA

SRAREREER

MZBRITERDIWATRERS TR —
FIREARN R-—ZE-—HAF=ZA=1+—
H ZERTERZRITBELASEES
75 #351,000,0007T (= — N\ F B
395,507,000t ) ° 5 & 7~ & @ = B 75 AR

W AR BEBL A
HEBEE

= REBEERGRMH 2R
2 EZ—%EA—Q—jLE—H—-i-—EIE’JfE
AR EARE=F (=T —
FMF)AER-FBRIARTXR:

TEZR

REEREBTETE
KRENBFER - AN T ESH

e u:::!:[-,

gt =

Less than Cash Carrying

1 year 1-2 years 2 -5 years outflows amount

PR-F —EWE 2 HERdE REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BET T BT BET T BT T

31 March 2019 R=-Z-hAEF=A=+—-H 187,828 13,351 166,974 368,153 351,000
31 March 2018 HWZZ-N\F=A=+—H 60,511 349,791 - 410,302 395,507
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. MBI R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERBEEEEREE &)

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRRE (&)

Liquidity tables (Continued) MEBEEZH (&

As at 31 March 2018, the amount included above RZZB-NF=R=+—H LAk
for financial guarantee contract is the maximum RENFAFTANEEIRESTRRER
amount the Group could be required to settle under THERARERBLZHFAEBCZBIER
the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount SHENESSHE - RERNREHRNE
if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to H AEERBRRURBERBLRIFIM
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end RAIERE o AT - WIEMET R FH HRE
of the reporting period, the Group considers that ERIBHPROAEEME - ML AR
it is more likely than not that no amount will be E'J%E:_FiiﬁiféﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁE’JFEH&EE#‘\%
payable under the arrangement. However, this SEXGCEBRBE -REBE-Z-hF=A
estimate is subject to change depending on the :+—EJJZ$J;W BERENRITER
probability of the counterparty claiming under the E2REE HRERSHEK-

guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, the joint venture's
bank loan has been fully repaid and the guarantee
was released.

Fair value A¥E

The fair value of financial assets and financial BBREERMBEG 2 ATFEDETH

liabilities are determined as follows: FREE:

e the fair value of financial assets and financial s BAEEGRRMEMARERREED
liabilities with standard terms and conditions SEENNHREERMBEEZA
and traded in active markets are determined FESETSMBRENEAEE
with reference to quoted market bid prices; S

e the fair value of other financial assets o HtHMBKBEERMBEGZAFE
and financial liabilities are determined in BREEMNTBEBEEROMTNARE
accordance with generally accepted pricing BERAEE-

models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
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The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the level of the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

J Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

RAREFRR REESUBRREZBE
AR B EER VB EEZIRE
EHEEQAFERSE-

BREFHEREN DAV EFEZEAEH
MBEEENAFE

FEBEFLHBEEREREHRED
FEE - TRELEBEEZSENHE
EQAFEzZAE(LHEMAZEER
MR AR UARZAFESFERAE
BB ERES QA FEFESEZA
FESRERN (F-—Z2=ZR)2EH-

o E-RAVEFENRBEEREE
FEENERT S D ARER (K
EREE)SH

o EIRADNFEFEIIRE-RTA
ZHREN REEENEBIEE
(EMER)REEZE (BERITE)ER
BEZHAREEE R

o EZRLNTVEFEREHEEIFK
BOUBmchmEENNEEREE
ZEARH (TSR AZE) W
HERNEHN A FEE-
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

52. M¥ETIT R (&)
NFE (#)

BREFHERENDAFEFEZEAEHE
MBEENAFE (4)

(Continued)
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets 31 March 2019 hierarchy and key input(s)
R=ZZ-hF
=HA=+—H RERER
MBEEE ZRFE REEER FTEBASH
Financial assets at FVTPL HK$519,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
— Listed equity securities (2018: N/A) active market.
in Hong Kong
BRBHREANVETEZ 78 #519,0007T B SERMIZEARE -
BREE-BBLTRARS (ZZE—-NF:FER)
Investments held for trading N/A Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
- Listed equity securities (2018: HK$580,000) active market.
in Hong Kong
FEEEZRE FER(ZE-NF: B-H SERMIZEARE -
—REBLHZBRAEES 78 #£580,0007T )

There was no transfer among Level 1, 2 and 3

during the current and prior years.

REAFERBEFE F—R F-KK
BRI BER -
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53. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BE-Z-hE=B=+—HALEFE

53. MERGELEZARYHIE

TREJIAEEREXBELNRES
B BERERFREET BEHX
BEENEEAKRAKEGERER
EXRPIBEAREXBREANESR

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in HARBEER
the Group'’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.
Dividend
payable Bank loans Total
BRRE RITEM st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
(Note 36)
(Bi&E36)
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tEWMA—-H - 822,155 822,155
Financing cash flows BERSR (71,056) 533,177 462,121
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-ERBA A - (960,000) (960,000)
Exchange adjustments EXRE - 175 175
Dividend declared BERRE 71,056 - 71,056
At 1 April 2018 R-Z-NENA—H - 395,507 395,507
Financing cash flows HERER (405,630) (44,507) (450,137)
Dividend declared ERKE 78,463 = 78,463
Non-cash dividend by way of NENKMBARZ
distribution in specie of EAakzkREeRE
subsidiaries 327,167 - 327,167
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=ZA=t+-H - 351,000 351,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=t+—-HLEE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

54. T EME AT HFHS

R-EBE-—hER-E—NE=F=1+—
B ARBEEMBATFEMOT :

342

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
“B-7EZR=1-H “Z-\EZB=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRAR ERTRAR
R /EM/ LERE/ EEEEE LERY/ RREEE
HEARER EXBH ifEx BRRAER AfER BHRAEE TEXH
(note a) (note a)
(Hizta) (Mza)
Befit Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% HK$2 100%  Property investment
g8 LYV B NERE
Care & Health Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% HK$2 100%  Trading of health products
EMRERAT g A Ly REERES
Emwell Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100% HK$2 100%  Property investment
AEERARA £k B BT NERE
Exceed Advance Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100% Uss1 100%  Investment holding
HEBRAF Hong Kong 1£7 1%7 REER
ARELEE/ AR
Excellent Delight Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100% Uss1 100%  Investment holding
RRBRAR Hong Kong 1%7 1% REZR
RBRLEE/BH
Fairview Harbour Limited A~ British Virgin Islands/ uss2 100% - - Investment holding
Hong Kong PEYr REER
ABRLEE/BR
Faithful Sun Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property holding
BAERARA g LA b BRI NERE
Fortune Shiner Development  Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property development
Limited & BRI AR NEBR

EERRARLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54. X EME L THIE &)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

RZIEB-NERZZE-NF=ZA=1+-—
B ARBAEZEMBARASFBENT:

(#&)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ZE-nFZA=1-H ZE-N\EZA=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered attributable registered attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRHR BRITRAR
R/ LERE/ AEEEL LERE/ AEEEG
KEARER EXBE ifEx BERRAER AfEx BARAER IEXE
(note a) (note a)
(Ka) (Kita)
General Target Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% HK$10,000 100%  Property investment
HMERLR % 70,0007 10,0007 NERE
Golden Years Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Licence holding
BB L b BRER
Great Virtue Ventures Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 100% Uss1 100%  Property investment
EEARBRLT Hong Kong (ES %7 NERE
ARRLAHE/BR
Hanison Construction Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%  Ordinary shares 100%  Property construction
Company Limited R HK$1,000 HK$1,000 NERE
ABREERAR Deferred shares Deferred shares
HK$60,000,000 HK$60,000,000
(Note b) (Note b)
EER EER
& %1,0007 & H1,0007C
413 EER
1% %160,000,0007C 7%%60,000,0007C
(Mrith) (Biath)
Hanison Construction Holdings  British Virgin Islands/ uss2 100% us$2 100%  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Hong Kong PES ES REER
(Notec) (FfzEc) ABELHE/BR
Hanison Contractors Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% HK$2 100%  Property construction
ABEEERAA R BB BRI E3: 2
10,000,0007¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % )k 2 [ 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

344

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

54. FEMBE AT S (&)

R-EBE-—hER-E—NE=F=1+—
B ARABETENBRAAFHBANT
(#)

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
“2-nFZA=+-H “E-\¥ZB=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRHR BRTRER
R/ LERE/ AREER LERE/ AREEG
KEARER EXBE ifEx ERRAER AfER BHRAER TEEH
(note a) (note a)
(Ka) (Kita)
Hanison Estate Services Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100% HK$2 100%  Provision of property
BENERBERLT R B¥ BB management services
RENFERRH
Hanison Foundation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property construction
ABRETIRARAA g8 LAV Ll NERE
Hanison Interior & Renovation  Hong Kong HK$14,800,000 100%  HK$14,800,000 100%  Provision of interior and
Limited BB 714,800,000 75%14,800,0007T renovation services
ABEARELERLT RUKHREERS
Hanison Project Management  Hong Kong HKS2 100% HK$2 100%  Provision of property
Limited % LYV LY leasing and marketing
ABEERERERAT services and project
management
RENFRERTEER
BEARBAER
Hantex Engineering Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% HKS1 100%  Plant maintenance and
BETIREARAF R BT BB servicing
REEEREE
Healthcorp Trading Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% HK$2 100%  Investment holding
RECFERAA g B BT REER
Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 100% HK$400,000 100%  Property holding
HEARLF e 7%400,0007 71400,0007T E3S]
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

54. ¥ R E L FFRE &)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

RZIEB-NERZZE-NF=ZA=1+-—
B ARBAEZEMBARASFBENT:

(#&)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ZE-nFZA=1-8 ZE-N\EZA=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered attributable registered attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRHR BRITRAR
R/ LERE/ AEEEL LERE/ AEEEG
KEARER EXBE ifEx BERRAER AfEx BARAER IEXE
(note a) (note a)
(Ka) (Kita)
Honour Gain Global Limited  British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100% Us$1 100%  Investment holding
BERRERAR Hong Kong 1£7 1% REZR
ABELBE/BR
Masswell International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property investment
KHERERAA & LAV L b NERE
Million Hope Industries Cayman Islands/ - - HK$10 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited * Hong Kong (see Note 12) BEI0T REER
ATEXERERAR RERE/ Bk (RH&E12)
Million Hope Industries British Virgin Islands/ - - Us$1 100%  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited * Hong Kong (see Note 12) %7 REER
ABELEE/BR (RH&E12)
Million Hope (BVI) Limited * British Virgin Islands/ - - Uss$1 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong (see Note 12) %7 REER
ABELBE /AR (RH&E12)
Million Hope Industries Hong Kong - - HK$11,000,000 100%  Supply and installation of
Limited # B (see Note 12) £#11,000,0007 building materials
ATERERAA (RH&E12) HERZERENH
Paramont Forward Limited *  British Virgin Islands/ - - Uss$1 100%  Investment holding
EBRBERAF Hong Kong (see Note 12) 125 RERR
ABELEE/BR (RH&E12)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-_Z-hF=ZA=1+—RHLEE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

346

54. FEMBE AT S (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

R-EBE-—hER-E—NE=F=1+—
B ARABETENBRAAFHBANT

(#&)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
“E-NEZA=1-A “E-\¥ZB=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRHR BRTRER
R/ LERE/ AREER LERE/ AREEG
KEARER EXBE ifEx ERRAER AfER BHRAER TEEH
(note a) (note a)
(Ka) (Mfia)
Protic Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property holding
BEERAR 5 LA b BRI NERE
Regal Prosper Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property investment
REBRLT B LA b BRI NERE
Rich Victory (Hong Kong) Hong Kong - - HKS1 100%  Property holding
Limited * £ (see Note 12) BRI NEHE
& (BR)ARAR! (RH&E12)
Richway Group Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 100% - - Investment holding
Limited A Hong Kong 127 (see Note 40) REER
ABRLEE/BR ( R Ht&z40)
Sanney Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property development
REBRAR & LA b BRI NEER
Silver Wave International British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 100% Uss1 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 17 1% RELER
REERBRAT ABELHE/BR
Sunny Way Properties Hong Kong HKS$1 100% = - Property investment
Limited A £ BB (see Note 40) NERE
HEEXERATN (R Ht40)
Superb Leading Limited * Hong Kong - - HK$1 100%  Property development
EERRAF BB (see Note 41) BT ES
(RHE41)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B % i & B 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54. X EME L THIE &)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at RE-B-IER=ZZF-NF=A=+—
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued) B AQXBAETEMBLARFROT:
(#&)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
“§-hEZA=1-A “E-N\§=fA=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered attributable registered attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRHR BRITRAR
R/ LERE/ AEEEL LERE/ AEEEG
KEARER EXBE ifEx BERRAER AfEx BARAER IEXE
(note a) (note a)
(Ka) (Kita)
Superior Future Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$ 1 100%  Property holding
¥SERAF 5 LA b BRI NERE
Tai Kee Pipes Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100%  HK$2,000,000 100%  Property investment
FLERAA &% 712,000,000 7 12,000,0007T E3iE
Trigon Building Materials Hong Kong HKS2 100% HKS2 100%  Supply and installation of
Limited £ kP BT building materials
ERERNERAT HERZEREMH
Triple Sky Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property development
5t LA b BB ES:
Vast Media International Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$ 1 100%  Investment holding
Limited & AR BRI REER
EEERERAT
Vision Smart Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% HK$100 100%  Property investment
&% A1007 BE1007 NERE
Westpac Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% HK$ 1 100%  Property investment
REERAF g LA b BRI E3E
EEFHEERH (M) The PRC - - HK$64,997,630 100%  Manufacture and supply of
BIRA 7 (Note d) HE (see Note 12) % 164,997,6307 building materials
(Mrtd) (RHaz12) HERMERENH
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BE=

54.

348

ZE-—_NE=ZA=+—-HILEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

& Subsidiaries which were disposed of during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

2 Subsidiaries which were incorporated/acquired
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

L Million Hope and its subsidiaries ceased to be the
subsidiaries of the Company upon the distribution of
Million Hope shares to the Company’s shareholders
on 18 March 2019 as special interim dividend by way
of distribution in specie.

Notes:
(a)

All being ordinary share capital except the registered
capital for the subsidiaries registered in the PRC.

The deferred shares are shares whose shareholders
are neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote
at any general meetings nor to receive any dividend
out of operating profit and have very limited rights
on return of capital of the subsidiary.

(b)

() Other than Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI)
Limited, which is directly held by the Company, all
other companies are indirectly held by the Company.

(d)

A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the year or outstanding at the end
of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, principally affected the results or
assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

54. FEMBE AT S (&)

Bifet -

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

REBE-Z-NF=A=1+—-RLEFE
HEZHMBAR -

REBE-ZE-NF=A=1+—-RHLEFE
MRS WIE 2B R

ETREMBLARANR-ZE-NF=A
TNABUBENFE AR R TRRDIKE
TROEAERITHRERTBAER
AIMB AT -

BRETBEEMNMEQAREMER
M 2REBRRA -

EER R ESE ABBEBEMRRA
SEE ERLFEEMRRASRES
ERE - TEEVNEEEENKE 2
EARERENBRABERARR
EXEREREFNNRE-

BRAQXNBEERHREZHanison
Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited
S FRBEEM ARG AR AR A B ERS
Ao

—BoEBEERERE-

WEEMAHEQXRARAFERTENE
BREFIANAFEREREMERRS -

RRBDESBRH ERAFINAQ BB
NAHAEENEENEEREERE
REE - ARBRESRR  BIE B
DRANFBESTAREBR TR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B4 #% 3t 5 it 5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE—_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

55. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 55. HEHEER
PERIOD
On 15 April 2019, an indirect wholly owned REZE-HNFNA+ER KAQARBE
subsidiary of the Company, Great Virtue Ventures TEWMBAREZRARBRARE—
Limited, entered into a sale and purchase EBIYE=FFILEEHE URKE
agreement with an independent third party 7 489,000,000t EE NN E B NEE
to purchase a property located at No.1 Tai Yip BREREMBZIVE-R_ZF-—NEF
Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, at a ZA=+—-R FAEEEXNEERS
consideration of HK$489,000,000. As at 31 March 78 #£20,000,0005T It X FRE & B U
2019, the Group had paid the initial deposits 28,900,000t - BERARZR—ZF—N&EH
of HK$20,000,000 and paid stakeholder money B\ B X 8T & %%440,100,000
amounting to HK$28,900,000. The transaction TR B 4T

was completed on 8 May 2019 and the remaining
balance of consideration of HK$440,100,000 was
paid on the same day.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

)
Fo 75 WE B
For continuing and discontinued operations
BREEROCRIESEK
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NF | ZE-NF SE-tF ZE-nf  -F-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BET T BETT BET T BETT
RESULTS £
Revenue 'ON 2,315,007 2,849,504 3,216,077 2,623,043 2,095,154
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 645,734 648,301 554,491 674,513 511,470
Taxation BEXH (67,712) (32,003) (37,552) (26,817) (24,008)
Profit for the year FERF 578,022 616,298 516,939 647,696 487,462
Profit attributable to: THALEEER:
Owners of the Company AREERA 578,022 616,298 516,939 635,701 419,202
Non-controlling interest FERER - - - 11,995 68,260
578,022 616,298 516,939 647,696 487,462
As at 31 March
R=B=1+-8
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-hE | ZB-N\F ZE-tF ZE-AFE CZEBE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BET T BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREHE
Total assets EEMAE 5,269,714 5,340,587 4,997,263 4,486,066 3,455,472
Total liabilities aEeE (1,490,270)|  (1,614,841)  (1,930,648)  (1,788,824)  (1,638,413)
3,779,444 | 3,725,746 3,066,615 2,697,242 1,817,059
Equity attributable to: THA LR
Owners of the Company RREERA 3,779,444 3,725,746 3,066,615 2,697,242 1,743,560
Non-controlling interest FERES - - - - 73,499
3,779,444 | 3,725,746 3,066,615 2,697,242 1,817,059
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A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

A. BARRDRFERESBAR

RENTAL PURPOSES % 3
Attributable
Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions (R property rEEH of lease
B (FHFR) MIEME B4 RE = HOER
1.  Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A, 28,912 Industrial 100% Medium-term

Workshops 12-15, (excluding lease

4/F, Block B, area of flat

Workshops 1-11 & roofs and

majority portion of car parking

Workshop 23 (including spaces)

flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6), (Saleable

4/F, Block A, area)

Workshops 1-2, Workshop 3

with flat roof, Workshop 4

with flat roof, Workshops 5-6,

5/F, Block B,

Car Parking Spaces

V31, V36, V49, V50,

V55 & L53

Shatin Industrial Centre

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit

Shatin, New Territories

S H 28,912 I%¥ 100% H HR

RIEESZE 735 (TBfEEA

DHIEHD REfNZ

AREE—12T{ER7 HE)

BEEME TER12£15 (BERE®E)

ABRMZTERIZENR

TEB23 2 EEERp

(BIEIEBSKR6ZFE)

BERZT/HERBIZE2

TEMIEFE  TEB4EFESE
TERBSE6 R BRIV ~V36

V49 - V50 * V55K L53
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES = 24 £ 4§ 22

A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A. FEREVRELSHESIBAR

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) & (#)
Attributable
Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions (R property AEE of lease
B (FFR) MEME Bl EisR Sk
2. Various lots 142,066  Agricultural 100% Medium-term

in Demarcation District No. 76 (Site area) lease

Ping Che

Fanling

New Territories

s 142,066 Eih 100% &

BeE (#hBETETE)

e EHNH765

& THhER
3. Leasehold interest in the 2,731 Commercial 100% Midium-term

Head-Lease for the residual (Saleable lease

term of 30 years commencing area)

from 1 December 1989 with

an option to renew for a further

term of 30 years of whole of

No. 31 Wing Wo Street,

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

EB LRKMEIVERIEZ 2,731 [GES 100% H HA

REERN 2 HEHER (EF@E®)

HEFHBE-NNA\IE

+TZA—HE% BH=1+F

(EEEITSI=1TFHBZ

R
4.  Workshop Unit 4,192 Industrial 100% Medium-term

Nos. 4 to 6 (inclusive) on (excluding lease

2nd Floor and Lorry Carpark area of car

Nos. L7 & L8 parking

on Ground Floor, spaces)

Kin Wing Industrial Building, (Saleable

No. 33 Kin Wing Street, area)

Tuen Mun, New Territories

SR 4,192 I 3% 100% i HA

A3 (FEFEEN

BRI X RNE_B4Z65ET/EM ZHE)

(MEBEER) (BERE®E)
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A.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES = 224 2£ 4 22

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued)

A. FEREVRELZHESBAR

= (#)

Attributable

Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions (R property AEE of lease

BR (FFR) MEME iR iR Sk

5. Lot No. 716 and The Remaining 11,492 Agricultural 50% Medium-term
Portions of Lot Nos. 719 and 721 (Site area) lease
in Demarcation District No. 132,

Tuen Mun, New Territories

FREMLENMI1325E R 11,492 Bt 50% 5
7165R AR 7198 R 72155 2 (M EEETE)

TR EB 17

6. One Eleven 22,010 Residential 100% Long lease
No.111 High Street, (Marketing
Hong Kong gross floor

area)

E#ES1H1115%,20ne Eleven 22,010 = 100% RH
(ATERSE
Hi&)

7. PeakCastle 145,394 Commercial 50% Medium-term
No. 476 Castle Peak Road (Gross floor lease
Kowloon area)

NEEBILEAT6H 2 145,394 [GES 50% H HA
PeakCastle (BREME)

8. West Castle 21,188 Industrial 100% Medium-term
No. 22 Yip Shing Street (Gross floor  (with special lease
Kwai Chung, New Territories area) waiver for

commercial
uses)

R EBEMA225 2 21,188 T 100% 1 Hf
West Castle (BEmME) (HEEER
BREHRER)

9. West Park 40,158 Residential 100% Medium-term
Nos. 256-258 Tung Chau Street (Gross floor lease
Kowloon area)

NEEBMAT256 225855 2 40,158 = 100% B
West Park (REMmMR)
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES = 24 £ 4§ 22

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A. FEREVRELSHESIBAR

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) & (7)
Attributable
Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions (R property AEE of lease
BR (FHR) MEME FEfh Rz HAER
10. The Edward 28,620 Commercial 100% Long lease
99-101 Lai Chi Kok Road, Mong (Marketing
Kok, Kowloon gross floor
area)
NERAFKABBEINRE01H 2 28,620 [HE S 100% =B
The Edward (ATERE
EE)
11. Offices B, J, K, L, M, N & P on 7,377 Commercial 100% Medium-term
21/F and Car Parking Space (excluding lease
Nos. P48 and P49 on B/F, area of
Kings Wing Plaza 1, car parking
3 On Kwan Street, Shatin, spaces)
New Territories (Marketing
gross floor
area)
VAR RN R IRES — 1 7,377 [GES 100% o HA
Q2P AZEBJ K LM NKP (F~EHF
LA K 3t [ PABSSE K2 PA9SE fF EE U BEyzEE)
(ATEREE
E&)
12. Shop 2, 3 & 5 on G/F, 9,923 Commercial 100% Long lease
The Austine Place, (Marketing
No. 38 Kwun Chung Street, gross floor
Kowloon area)
NEE 9,923 [GES 100% =B
BERH385% (ATEREE
The Austine Placeits T HE)
2355 ~ 39% KR 5% A
13. Hollywood Hill 27,414 Residential 100% Long lease
No. 222 Hollywood Road, (Gross floor
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong area)
ERRFIEE2225 2 27,414 F=E 100% R
Hollywood Hill (BEMmE)
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES =24 2 fi 22

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

FOR SALE IN HONG KONG

B. RERZRREPZHEMR

Site  Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of
(sq. m.) (sq. m.) Stage of date Nature of ~ the Group Category of

Descriptions HERER BEER  completion AixI property r5E lease
R (FEXK) (FHK) THRER F: NELE L3 BAEH
No. 57A Nga Tsin Wai Road, 8,092 Notyet  Planningin  No definite  Residential 100% Medium-
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon determined progress plan term lease
hEENEERAEESTAR 8,092 WARE KatEgET EARE = 100% i
Central Industrial Building 24,337 Notyet  Planningin  No definite Industrial 50% Medium-
57-61 Ta Chuen Ping Street, determined progress plan term lease
Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
BB R LRI 24,337 HARE KatEgETD EEARTE I% 50% i
STE6IRZPRIEKE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

C. RPBAMZERPZFED

FOR SALE/PROPERTIES HELD FOR X BEGEDE
SALE IN MAINLAND CHINA
Site  Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of

(sq. m.) (sq. m.) Stage of date Nature of  the Group Category of
Descriptions WEREE BEME  completion BRI property 8- | lease
R (FEHX) (FHK) TR B A& NEME gL BORH
A development project located 35,680 144,656 Phase 1 - Phase  Commercial 49% Medium-
at the west of Wenyuan Road Completed 2and3- term lease
and south of Houfutinggang, Phase 2and  No definite
Haining City, Zhejiang Province, 3 - Planning plan
The PRC (including sold but not in progress
yet handover units and unsold
units of Phase 1 and land for
Phase 2 and Phase 3 development)
IR BT E 35,680 14465  F—H- R GES 49% R
BEMEXRAR - BRI F=1-
rESEEAN-ERRER -k EHETE
(BRE-HOHER E=H-
IARBZEURAEEEN A EETH

UREZ ZHRR2LH)
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES = 24 £ 4§ 22

D. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE BFESEME
Attributable
Area interest of
(sq. ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions [ property X5E of lease
BR (EER) MEHE FEfh R HLOER
1. Shop 1 on GfF, 1,443 Commercial 100% Long lease
The Austine Place, (Marketing
No. 38 Kwun Chung Street Gross floor
Kowloon area)
N 1,443 [EES 100% R
BB #385 (EER
The Austine Place mE)
T35
2. Unsold units at Mount Vienna, No. 8, 6,710 Residential 25%  Medium-term
Lok Lam Road, Fo Tan, Shatin, (Saleable lease
New Territories area)
RO N R EMEESYE 2 Mount Viennaz R HE 6,710 % 25% bt
By (BEAER)
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22/F., Kings Wing Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T., Hong Kong
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	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	GROUP STRUCTURE
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	OPERATIONS REVIEW
	FINANCIAL REVIEW
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
	BACK COVER

